






























(All amounts in INR Crore, unless otherwise stated)

 ASSETS 

 Non-Current Assets 

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 6.26                                       2.02                                       

 (b) Capital Work-in-Progress 4 -                                         0.29                                       

 (c) Goodwill 5 146.17                                   176.30                                   

 (d) Other Intangible Assets 5 38.88                                     22.07                                     

 (e) Financial Assets 

 Other Financial Assets 6 0.89                                       0.80                                       

 (f) Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 0.04                                       -                                         

 (g) Other Non-Current Assets 8 0.23                                       0.16                                       

 Total Non-Current Assets 192.47                                   201.64                                   

 Current assets 

 (a) Inventories 9 61.24                                     33.30                                     

 (b) Financial Assets 

 (i) Trade Receivables 10 309.94                                   238.92                                   

 (ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 25.61                                     0.70                                       

 (iii) Loans 12 -                                         0.02                                       

 (c) Other Current Assets 8 6.68                                       15.45                                     

 Total Current Assets 403.47                                   288.39                                   

 TOTAL 595.94                                   490.03                                   

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 Equity 

 (a) Equity Share capital 13 0.26                                       0.26                                       

 (b) Convertible non-participating preference share capital 0.01                                       0.01                                       

 (c) Other Equity 14 237.27                                   216.24                                   

 Total Equity 237.54                                   216.51                                   

 Liabilities 

 Non Current Liabilities 

 (a) Financial Liabilities 

 Borrowings 15 20.23                                     38.39                                     

 (b) Provisions 21 0.46                                       0.36                                       

 (c) Deferred Tax liabilities (Net) 16 0.14                                       4.98                                       

 Total Non Current Liabilities 20.83                                     43.73                                     

 Current Liabilities 

 (a) Financial Liabilities 

 (i) Trade Payables 17

 Micro and Small Enterprises 3.26                                       3.49                                       

 Others 241.37                                   144.58                                   

 (ii) Other Financial Liabilities 18 30.68                                     25.25                                     

 (b)  Refund liabilities 19 54.27                                     39.15                                     

 (c) Other Current Liabilities 20 7.51                                       8.11                                       

 (d)  Provisions 21 0.48                                       0.26                                       

 (e) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 -                                         8.95                                       

 Total Current Liabilities 337.57                                   229.79                                   

TOTAL                                    595.94                                    490.03 
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FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR Crore, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

REVENUE

Revenue from operations 23 498.35                                  431.13                                  

Other income 24 0.03                                       0.05                                       

Total Revenue (I) 498.38                                  431.18                                  

EXPENSES

Purchases of stock-in-trade 400.82                                  290.48                                  

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 25 (27.53)                                   54.32                                     

Employee benefits expense 26 33.88                                     21.84                                     

Finance costs 27 12.44                                     13.55                                     

Depreciation and amortization expense 28 10.45                                     4.55                                       

Impairment loss on goodwill 28 30.13                                     -                                         

Other expenses 29 24.24                                     13.66                                     

Total Expenses (II) 484.43                                  398.40                                  

Profit before tax (III = I-II) 13.95                                    32.78                                    

TAX EXPENSES:
Current tax 16 5.60                                       17.02                                     

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (7.24)                                      -                                         

Deferred tax (4.87)                                      (2.60)                                      

Total Tax (income)/expenses (IV) (6.51)                                     14.42                                    

Profit for the year  (V = III-IV) 20.46                                    18.36                                    

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other Comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit and

loss in subsequent periods:

Remeasurement of gains on defined benefit plans 0.10                                       -                                         

Income tax effect (0.03)                                      -                                         

Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.07                                       -                                         

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 20.53                                    18.36                                    

Earnings per share(EPS) for profit attributable to equity

shareholders (INR)

30

Basic EPS 564.60                                  506.65                                  

Diluted EPS 564.60                                  506.65                                  
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FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR Crore, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit before tax : 13.95                            32.78                            

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 10.45                            4.55                              

Impairment loss on non financial assets 30.13                            -                                

Other Comprehensive Income 0.10                              -                                

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.58                              0.23                              

Finance costs 12.44                            13.55                            

Change in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase) in trade receivables (71.02)                          (141.89)                        

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (27.94)                          54.45                            

Increase in trade payables 96.57                            26.06                            

(Increase) in other financial assets (0.07)                            (0.19)                            

(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets (0.07)                            0.01                              

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 8.77                              (13.20)                          

Increase in provisions 15.44                            28.35                            

Increase in other current liabilities 1.51                              4.52                              

Cash generated from operations 90.84                            9.22                              

Less: Income taxes paid (7.35)                            (8.07)                            

Net cash generated by operating activities 83.49                            1.15                              

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Payments for property, plant and equipment (2.03)                            (0.55)                            

Payments for other Intangible assets (26.62)                          -                                

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.05                              -                                

Net cash used in investing activities (28.60)                          (0.55)                            

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issues of shares -                                25.00                            

Interest paid (1.21)                            (0.53)                            

Dividends paid (24.38)                          (24.38)                          

Dividend distribution tax paid (4.96)                            -                                

Net cash used in financing activities (30.55)                          0.09                              

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 24.34                            0.69                              

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.70                              0.01                              

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 25.04                            0.70                              
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FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR Crore, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity Share Capital

Particulars
Balance at the 

Beginning of the period

Changes during the year Balance at the end of 

the period

March 31, 2018

Numbers                              2,59,100                                           -                                2,59,100 

Amount                                      0.26                                           -                                        0.26 

March 31, 2019

Numbers                              2,59,100                                           -                                2,59,100 

Amount                                      0.26                                           -                                        0.26 

B Convertible non-participating preference share capital - CCPS Series II

Particulars
Balance at the 

Beginning of the period

Changes during the year Balance at the end of 

the period

March 31, 2018

Numbers                                           -                                          100                                        100 

Amount                                           -                                        0.01                                      0.01 

March 31, 2019

Numbers                                        100                                           -                                          100 

Amount                                      0.01                                           -                                        0.01 

C Other Equity

Particulars

Equity Component of 

Compound financial 

instruments

Financial guarantee 

given by ultimate 

holding company 

towards bank credit 

facility

Securities Premium Retained Earnings Total

As at April 1, 2017                                  174.83                                           -                                      24.99                                    (1.94) 197.88                                

Profit for the period                                           -                                             -                                             -   18.36                                  18.36                                  

Other comprehensive income                                           -                                             -                                             -   -                                       -                                       

Total comprehensive income for the year -                                       -                                       -                                       18.36                                  18.36                                  

As at March 31, 2018 174.83                                -                                       24.99                                  16.42                                  216.24                                

Profit for the period                                           -                                             -                                             -   20.46                                  20.46                                  

Other comprehensive income                                           -                                             -                                             -   0.07                                     0.07                                     

Total comprehensive income for the year -                                       -                                       20.53                                  20.53                                  

Financial guarantee given by ultimate holding 

company towards bank credit facility

-                                       0.50                                     -                                       -                                       0.50                                    

As at March 31, 2019 174.83                                0.50                                    24.99                                  36.95                                  237.27                                
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1 Corporate Information

2 Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Statement of Compliances with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

2.2 Basis of preparation

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Revenue recognition

(i)

Contract balances

Contract assets

Trade receivables

FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Future Speciality Retail Ltd (“the Company”) is a company incorporated in India under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 on September 27, 2016. The

registered address of the Company is located at Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off. Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Jogeshwari (East) Mumbai – 400 060. 

The Company has exclusive license to manufacture and market Lee Cooper branded apparel, footwear and other accessories across all distribution channels

in India and the permitted territory.

The Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on April 24, 2019. The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)

and all values are rounded to the nearest crore except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis

except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value. 

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an

asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into

account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, leasing transactions that are within the

scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in

Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties including

taxes. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to

receive in exchange for those products or services.

Sale of goods

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied

to contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method , the comparatives have not been

retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.

The Company deals in fashion products including apparel, footwear and accessories to both the large format stores and directly to customers through its own

retail outlets.

For sales of fashion products, revenue is recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods have been shipped to specific location

(delivery). Following delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when

onselling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised by the Company when the goods are

delivered as this represents the point in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is required before

payment is due.

For sales of goods to retail customers, revenue is recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being at the point the customer purchases the goods

at the retail outlet. Payment of the transaction price is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the goods.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or

services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is

conditional.

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of

the consideration is due)



FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
Contract liabilities

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return

Refund liabilities 

(ii) Interest income

(b) Leases

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

(ii) Transactions and balances

(d) Borrowing costs

(e) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the

period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial

period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates

(‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is entity’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains

and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at

year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after

the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting

period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit

obligations in the balance sheet.

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees

render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by

employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the

reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least

twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Leases of property, plant and equipment where the company, as lessee, has

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of

the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included

in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to

the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end

of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the company as lessee are classified as operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost

increases.

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The

arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right

to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be

measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability

is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company

performs under the contract.

Right of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Company’s right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the former

carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods. The

Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of

the returned products. This is disclosed along with inventories.

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is measured at the amount the

Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in

the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.



FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(iii) Post-employment obligations

Defined Benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

(iv) Termination benefits

(f) Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

(i) Current income tax

(ii) Deferred tax

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Property, Plant and Equipment Number of Years

Plant and Equipment 15 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Furniture, Fixture and other Fittings* 7 years

Leasehold Improvement* Lease term or 7 years, whichever is lower

Vehicle 8 years

Computers (End User Device) 3 years 

Computers (Other than End User Device) 6 years 

Payment to defined contribution plans such as provident fund etc. are recognised as expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to such

contributions. Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost

includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. The cost of property, plant and equipment acquired in a business combination

is recorded at fair value on the date of acquisition.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic

benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component

accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period

in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable

certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,

based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations

being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset

ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in

other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in

retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is

calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as

follows:

 -  service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

 -  net interest expense or income; and

 -  remeasurement

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss

because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current

tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or

deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding

tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets

are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that

taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not

recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the

initial recognition of goodwill.

*Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to

use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and the effect of any changes in

estimate is accounted for prospectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of

the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and

losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the financial statements represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any

surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in

future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the

entity recognises any related restructuring costs.



FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(h) Intangible assets

Goodwill

Other Intangible assets

Amortisation methods and periods

License rights Over the period of license

Computer software 6 years

Technical Know-How 4 years

Trademarks & other intellectual property rights 4 years

(i) Impairment of non financial assets

(j) Inventories

(k) Provisions, contingent liability and contingent assets

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Cost of inventories

comprise of cost of purchase and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of

the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past

events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the

control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the

realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any

indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to

determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company

estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be

identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating

units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted

to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for

which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-

generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its

recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the

end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful

lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses,

if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Company's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to

benefit from the acquisition.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit

may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the

carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Company amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the straight-line method over the following periods:

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from

derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in

profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be

required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,

taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present

obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an

asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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(l) Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

(1) Debt instruments at amortised cost

(2) Debt instrument at Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(3) Debt instrument at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

(4) Equity investments

Impairment of financial assets

Derecognition

(ii) Financial liabilties and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Equity instruments

Compound financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or

sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the

financial assets

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet

the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

All equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments for

which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of the

gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are

included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using the effective interest method.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound financial

instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion

option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to

other component of equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible instrument, the balance recognised in

equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments.

This amount is recognised as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the

instrument’s maturity date.

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets,

expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial

recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance

at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in statement of profit or loss.

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for

amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company

continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial

assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair

value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial

assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A debt instrument is measured at Amortised Cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash

flows and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling

Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued

by the entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by the Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with

the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by

the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Offsetting of financial instruments

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n) Dividends

(o) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

  - the profit attributable to owners of the company

Diluted earnings per share

2.4 Recent accounting pronouncements

On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the ‘Modified Retrospective Approach’ for transitioning

to Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019). Accordingly, comparatives for the

year ended March 31, 2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The Company has elected certain available practical expedients on transition.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C,

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,

unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to

determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use

in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable

profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank

overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

  - the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity

  - the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting

periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest

method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an

integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where

appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange

between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the

recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the

financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The

difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year

and excluding treasury shares

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end

of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Ind AS 116 Leases : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116 on Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases Standard,

Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for

both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and

liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to

the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor

accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

• Full retrospective – Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

• Modified retrospective – Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the

incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

 - Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the 

date of initial application or

 - An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 

immediately before the date of initial application.

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

(iii) Valuation of deferred tax assets

(iv) Defined benefit plans

(v) Provisions and Contingent liabilities

(vi) Revenue recognition

Amendment to Ind AS 19 – plan amendment, curtailment or settlement : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19,

‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments require an entity:

• to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or

settlement; and

• to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously

recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company does not have any impact on account of

this amendment.

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined

using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include

the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature,

a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the management of the Company are required to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the

estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the directors have made in the process of applying the Company's

accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are dependent upon an assessment of both the

technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs.

Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the Management.

(ii) Impairment of non financial assets and goodwill

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required

to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each Balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the

current best estimates.

Determining whether the asset/goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which asset/goodwill has been

allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Company to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable

discount rate in order to calculate present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The company has recognised revenue amounting to INR 498.35 Crores for sale of Lee Coooper brand products to customers during March 31, 2019 (March 31,

2018: INR 431.13 Crores). The customers have the right to return the goods if their consumers are dissatisfied. The company has, therefore, recognised

revenue on these transactions with a corresponding provision against revenue for estimated returns.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - i) Full retrospective approach – Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to

each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight

and ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting

comparatives. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company will adopt the

standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting

comparatives.

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insignificant in the financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 – Income taxes : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’,

in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity

according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this

amendment on the standalone financial statements.
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

 As at April 1, 

2018 
 Additions 

 Deletions/

Adjustments 

 As at March 31, 

2019 

 As at 

April 1, 2018 

 Deletions/

Adjustments 
 For the Year 

 As at March 31, 

2019 

 As at March 31, 

2019 

 As at March 31, 

2018 

Leasehold Improvements 0.17                        0.40                        0.04                        0.53                        0.01                        0.01                        0.06                        0.06                        0.47                        0.16                        

Office Equipments 0.09                        0.69                        0.02                        0.76                        0.02                        0.01                        0.06                        0.07                        0.69                        0.07                        

Computers 0.23                        0.57                        0.08                        0.72                        0.05                        0.01                        0.15                        0.19                        0.53                        0.18                        

Furniture, Fixtures and Other Fittings 1.38                        1.89                        0.49                        2.78                        0.08                        0.09                        0.28                        0.27                        2.51                        1.30                        

Electrical Installations 0.26                        0.51                        0.13                        0.64                        0.02                        0.03                        0.06                        0.05                        0.59                        0.24                        

Air Conditioner 0.08                        1.45                        0.03                        1.50                        0.01                        0.01                        0.03                        0.03                        1.47                        0.07                        

TOTAL 2.21                        5.51                        0.79                        6.93                        0.19                        0.16                        0.64                        0.67                        6.26                        2.02                        

Capital work in progress -                          0.29                        

Net Block

 As at April 1, 

2017 
 Additions 

 Deletions/

Adjustments 

 As at March 31, 

2018 

 As at 

April 1, 2017 

 Deletions/

Adjustments 
 For the Year 

 As at March 31, 

2018 

 As at March 31, 

2018 

 As at March 31, 

2017 

Leasehold Improvements 0.09                        0.16                        0.08                        0.17                        -                          0.01                        0.02                        0.01                        0.16                        0.09                        

Office Equipments 0.07                        0.02                        -                          0.09                        -                          -                          0.02                        0.02                        0.07                        0.07                        

Computers 0.09                        0.14                        -                          0.23                        -                          -                          0.05                        0.05                        0.18                        0.09                        

Furniture, Fixtures and Other Fittings 0.76                        0.76                        0.14                        1.38                        -                          0.02                        0.10                        0.08                        1.30                        0.76                        

Electrical Installations 0.28                        0.03                        0.05                        0.26                        -                          0.01                        0.03                        0.02                        0.24                        0.28                        

Air Conditioner 0.09                        -                          0.01                        0.08                        -                          -                          0.01                        0.01                        0.07                        0.09                        

TOTAL 1.38                        1.11                        0.28                        2.21                        -                          0.04                        0.23                        0.19                        2.02                        1.38                        

Capital work in progress 0.29                        0.01                        

Note:

(i) Refer Note 32 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

(ii) Refer Note 38 for details of charge against property, plant and equipment.

Descriptions of Assets

Gross Block (At Cost/Deemed Cost)

Descriptions of Assets

Gross Block (At Cost/Deemed Cost) Net BlockDepreciation

Depreciation
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 As at April 1, 

2018 
 Additions 

 Deletions/

Adjustments 

 As at March 31, 

2019 

 As at 

April 1, 2018 

 Deletions/

Adjustments 

 Amortisation

For the Year 

 Impairment

For the Year 

 As at March 31, 

2019 

 As at March 31, 

2019 

 As at March 31, 

2018 

Goodwill (Refer Note below) 176.30                    -                          -                          176.30                    -                          -                          -                          30.13                      30.13                      146.17                    176.30                    

(A) 176.30                    -                          -                          176.30                    -                          -                          -                          30.13                      30.13                      146.17                    176.30                    

Other Intangible assets

Computer Software -                          0.16                        -                          0.16                        -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          0.16                        -                          

Technical Know-How -                          26.46                      -                          26.46                      -                          -                          4.29                        -                          4.29                        22.17                      -                          

Trademarks & other intellectual property rights 26.42                      -                          -                          26.42                      4.35                        -                          5.52                        -                          9.87                        16.55                      22.07                      

(B) 26.42                      26.62                      -                          53.04                      4.35                        -                          9.81                        -                          14.16                      38.88                      22.07                      

TOTAL (A) + (B) 202.72                    26.62                      -                          229.34                    4.35                        -                          9.81                        30.13                      44.29                      185.05                    198.37                    

Net Block

 As at April 1, 

2017 
 Additions 

 Deletions/

Adjustments 

 As at March 31, 

2018 

 As at 

April 1, 2017 

 Deletions/

Adjustments 
 For the Year 

 Impairment

For the Year 

 As at March 31, 

2018 

 As at March 31, 

2018 

 As at March 31, 

2017 

Goodwill 176.30                    -                          -                          176.30                    -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          176.30                    176.30                    

(A) 176.30                    -                          -                          176.30                    -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          176.30                    176.30                    

Other Intangible assets

Computer Software -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Technical Know-How -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Trademarks & other intellectual property rights 26.42                      -                          -                          26.42                      0.03                        -                          4.32                        -                          4.35                        22.07                      26.39                      

(B) 26.42                      -                          -                          26.42                      0.03                        -                          4.32                        -                          4.35                        22.07                      26.39                      

TOTAL (A) + (B) 202.72                    -                          -                          202.72                    0.03                        -                          4.32                        -                          4.35                        198.37                    202.69                    

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Descriptions of Assets
Gross Block Net Block

Descriptions of Assets
Gross Block (At cost / deemed cost)

Amortisation/Impairment

Amortisation/Impairment
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Note: Impairment testing of goodwill 

Goodwill acquired through business combinations and licences with indefinite lives has been allocated to the CGUs below, which are also the operating and reportable segments, for impairment testing :

 - CGU : Lee Cooper Apparel

Carrying amount of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite life allocated to each of the CGUs:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Goodwill 146.17                    176.30                    

Other Intangible Assets with Indefinite life -                          -                          

The following table sets out the key assumptions used for value in use calculations

Management has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows

Assumption Approach used to determined values

Revenue growth rate

EBITDA Margin %

Working capital as a % to revenue

Discount Rate

The recoverable amount of CGU determined as per Ind AS 36 - Impairment of Assets is INR 263.57 Crore

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The implications of the key assumptions for the recoverable amount are discussed below:

Particulars
Increase by 100 

basis points 

Decrease by 100 

basis points 

Revenue growth rate 10.71                      (10.02)                    

EBITDA Margin % 24.27                      (24.28)                    

Working capital as a % to revenue (5.31)                       5.30                        

Discount Rate (14.44)                    15.44                      

Based on the Impairment testing carried out as per various factors given above, the amount of Impairment loss on Goodwill charged to statement of Profit and loss is INR 30.13 Crore (March 31, 2018: Nil)

CGU : Lee Cooper Apparel

The Company tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) is determined based on value in use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The calculations use

cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management. 

Cash flows is extrapolated using the estimated growth rates. These growth rates are consistent with forecasts included in industry reports specific to the industry in which each CGU operates.

Intangible Assets

Average annual growth rate for forecast period is based on past performance of the brand and mangement's expectations of prevailing market conditions

Reflects specific risks relating to the relevant business and industry in which it operates

Management forecast the EBITDA% based on the current business structure adjusting for inflationary increase and not reflecting any future restructring or cost saving measures

Working capital% to revenue based on the current business model
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6. FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non Current

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity                                 0.02 0.02                                

Security Deposits                                 0.87 0.78                                

Total 0.89                               0.80                               

7. NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Advance payments of tax (net of provision)                                 0.04 -                                  

Total 0.04                               -                                 

8. OTHER ASSETS

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Non Current

Capital Advances                                 0.06 -                                  

Prepaid expenses                                 0.17 0.16                                

Total                                 0.23                                 0.16 

Current

Advances other than Capital advances

Advance to suppliers                                 5.41 2.33                                

Advances to employees                                 0.04 0.15                                

Others

Prepaid expenses                                 0.23 10.03                             

Balances with Statutory, Government Authorities                                 0.89 2.84                                

Other current assets                                 0.11 0.10                                

Total                                 6.68                               15.45 

9. INVENTORIES

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

(Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable value)

 Stock-in-trade 60.75                             33.22                             

 Packing materials 0.49                                0.08                                

Total                               61.24                               33.30 

10. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Current

Secured, considered good -                                  -                                  

Unsecured, considered good 309.94                           238.92                           

Doubtful -                                  -                                  

Total 309.94                           238.92                           

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

 Balances with banks in current account                                 0.10 0.70                                

 Cheques on hand                               25.50 -                                  

 Cash on hand                                 0.01 -                                  

Total 25.61                             0.70                               

12. LOANS

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Current

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Unsecured considered good

Loans to employees                                      -   0.02                                

Total -                                 0.02                               
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13. SHARE CAPITAL

i. Authorised Share Capital

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount

At April 1, 2017 4,09,000                0.41                        1,000                     0.09                        -                          -                              

Increase/(decrease) during the year (9,100)                    (0.01)                      -                          -                          100                         0.01                            

At March 31, 2018 3,99,900                0.40                        1,000                     0.09                        100                         0.01                            

Increase/(decrease) during the year -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                              

At March 31, 2019 3,99,900                0.40                        1,000                     0.09                        100                         0.01                            

Terms/rights attached to shares

Equity Shares

ii. Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

(a) Equity Share Capital

Number Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

At April 1, 2017                  2,59,100                         0.26 

Issued during the period                              -                                -   

At March 31, 2018                  2,59,100                         0.26 

Issued during the period -                          -                          

At March 31, 2019 2,59,100                0.26                        

(b) Convertible non-participating preference share capital

CCPS Series II

Number Amount

CCPS Series II of INR 910 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

At April 1, 2017                              -                                -   

Issued during the period                           100                         0.01 

At March 31, 2018                           100                         0.01 

Issued during the period -                          -                          

At March 31, 2019 100                         0.01                        

(c) Compound Financial Instrument

CCPS

Number Amount*

Equity component of CCPS of INR 910 each issued, subscribed  

and fully paid  

At April 1, 2017 1,000                                         174.83 

Issued during the period -                          -                          

At March 31, 2018                       1,000                     174.83 

Issued during the period -                          -                          

At March 31, 2019 1,000                     174.83                   

iii. Details of shares held by holding company

 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Future Trendz Limited, holding company

Equity shares 2,59,000                2,59,000                

iv. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder 

Number % holding Number % holding

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid

Future Trendz Limited 2,59,000                99.96                     2,59,000                99.96                     

CCPS of INR 910 each fully paid 

Beacon Trusteeship Limited ( Trustee of FSRL CCPS Trust) 1,000                     100.00                   1,000                     100.00                   

CCPS Series II of INR 910 each fully paid 

India Customer Insight Fund (an Alternate Investment Fund)

100                         100.00                   

100                         100.00                   

v. The Company has not issued any share as bonus or for consideration other than cash and no shares were bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting

date.

vi. None of the shares are reserved for issue under options.

Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS)

CCPS : The Company has Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS") having a par value of INR 910 per share. CCPS shall carry a dividend of an amount equivalent to INR 2,43,750

per share. Each share is convertible into equity shares of the company such that the percentage of CCPS holder's shareholding post conversion is at least 26% of the equity shares of the

Company on a fully diluted basis. These shares are mandatorily convertible in March 31, 2021. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of these CCPS shall rank senior to the

equity shares and other classes or series of the share capital of the Company.

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

CCPS Series II: The Company has CCPS Series II having a par value of INR 910 per share. CCPS Series II shall not carry any fixexd dividend. Each share is convertible into equity shares of the

company such that the percentage of CCPS holder's shareholding post conversion is at least 2.5% of the equity shares of the Company on a fully diluted basis. These shares are mandatorily

convertible in March 29, 2022. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of CCPS shall rank senior to equity shares and other classes or series of the share capital of the

Company.

Out of equity and preference shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

*This note covers the equity component of the issued CCPS (compound financial instrument) which is included under note 14 Other Equity. The liability component is reflected under Note

15 Borrowings.

Equity Share of INR 10 each Compulsorily Convertible Preference 

Share of INR 910 each (Series II)

The company has equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian

Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The

distributions will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Particular
Compulsorily Convertible Preference 

Share of INR 910 each
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14. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars  March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

i. Reserves and Surplus

(a) Securities Premium 24.99                             24.99                             

(b) Retained Earnings 36.95                             16.42                             

ii. Other Components of Equity 175.33                           174.83                           

Total 237.27                           216.24                           

i. Reserves and Surplus

(a) Securities Premium

 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Balance at beginning of year 24.99                             -                                 

Add:

Issue of Compulsorily convertible preference shares (Series II) -                                 24.99                             

Balance at end of year 24.99                             24.99                             

(b) Retained Earnings

 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Balance at beginning of year 16.42                             (1.94)                              

Net Profit for the year 20.46                             18.36                             

Add:

Items of Other Comprehensive Income directly recognised in Retained Earnings

Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax 0.07                               -                                 

Balance at end of year 36.95                             16.42                             

ii. Other Components of Equity

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

(a) Equity Component of Compound financial instruments 174.83                           174.83                           

(b) Financial guarantee given by ultimate holding company towards bank credit facility 

obtained by the Company

0.50                               -                                 

Total 175.33                           174.83                           

15. BORROWINGS

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Non Current Borrowings

 Unsecured - at amortised cost 

 Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments                               42.69 60.85                             

 Less: Current Maturity of Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments                               22.46 
22.46                             

 Total  20.23                             38.39                             

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Value of preference shares issued 250.00                           250.00                           

Equity component of convertible instrument 174.83                           174.83                           

Non Current Borrowings 42.69                             60.85                             

Interest expense (including dividend distribution tax) 11.23                             13.02                             

Dividend paid 24.38                             24.38                             

The amount received in excess of face value of the shares is recognised in Securities premium. This is not available for distribution of

dividend but can be utilised for issuing bonus shares.

The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined considering the requirements of

the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above may not be distributable in entirety.

The Company has issued Compulsorily convertible preference shares on March 31, 2017. Each share has a par value of INR 910 and is

convertible into equity shares of the company such that the percentage of CCPS holder's shareholding post conversion is at least 26% of the

equity shares of the Company on a fully diluted basis. These shares are mandatorily convertible in March 31, 2021. The preference shares

carry a dividend of INR 24.38 Crore per annum, payable annually in arrears. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of CCPS

shall rank senior to equity shares and other classes or series of the share capital of the Company. The presentation of the liability and equity

components of these shares is explained below:
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16. INCOME TAX

Deferred Tax

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Deferred tax liabilities                   (21.76) (4.76)                    

Deferred tax assets                     21.62 (0.22)                    

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities                     (0.14)                     (4.98)

Movement in deferred tax liabilities/assets

Particulars
 Opening 

balance 

 Recognised in 

profit or loss 

 Recognised in 

other 

comprehensive 

income 

 Closing balance 

For the year ended March 31, 2019

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:

Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets (4.76)                    (17.00)                  -                        (21.76)                  

Total deferred tax  liabilities (4.76)                    (17.00)                  -                       (21.76)                  

Deferred tax assets in relation to:

Provision for employee benefits (0.22)                    1.38                      (0.03)                    1.13                      

CCPS related finance cost -                        17.04                   -                        17.04                   

MAT credit entitlement -                        3.45                      -                        3.45                      

Total deferred tax  assets (0.22)                    21.87                   (0.03)                    21.62                   

Net deferred tax asset/ (liabilities) (4.98)                    4.87                     (0.03)                    (0.14)                    

For the year ended March 31, 2018

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:

Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets (7.58)                    2.82                      -                        (4.76)                    

Total deferred tax  liabilities (7.58)                    2.82                     -                       (4.76)                    

Deferred tax assets in relation to:

Provision for employee benefits -                        (0.22)                    -                        (0.22)                    

Total deferred tax  assets -                       (0.22)                    -                       (0.22)                    

Net deferred tax asset/ (liabilities) (7.58)                    2.60                     -                       (4.98)                    

Major Components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are as follows:

i. Income tax recognised in profit or loss

2018-19 2017-18

Current income tax charge 5.60                      17.02                   

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of earlier years (7.24)                    -                        

Deferred tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (4.87)                    (2.60)                    

Income tax (income)/expense recognised in profit or loss (6.51)                    14.42                   

ii. Income tax recognised in OCI

2018-19 2017-18

Net loss on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 0.03                      -                        

Income tax expense recognised in OCI 0.03                     -                       

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax

liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liablities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
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Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by income tax rate for March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

2018-19 2017-18

Accounting profit before income tax 13.95                   32.78                   

Enacted tax rate in India (%) 34.94% 34.61%

Income tax on accounting profits 4.87                      11.34                   

Effect of

Additional Allowances (10.63)                  5.63                      

Other non taxable income

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:

Impairment of Goodwill 10.53                   -                        

Other non deductible expenses (net) 5.36                      0.05                      

Interest on delayed payments of tax 0.17                      -                        

Utilisation of tax credit (4.70)                    -                        

Current Tax Provision (A) 5.60                     17.02                   

Incremental Deferred Tax Liability on account of Property, Plant and 

Equipment and Intangible Assets 17.00                   (2.82)                    

Incremental Deferred Tax Asset on account of Employee Benefits 

expense (1.38)                    0.22                      

 CCPS related finance cost (17.04)                  -                        

Incremental Deferred Tax Asset on account of unutilised tax credit (3.45)                    -                        

Deferred Tax provision (B) (4.87)                    (2.60)                    

Total Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 

(A+B) 0.73                     14.42                   

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of earlier years (7.24)                    -                        

Tax at effective income tax rate (6.51)                    14.42                   
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17. TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Current

Trade Payables to Micro and Small Enterprises                                 3.26 3.49                               

Trade Payables to Others                            241.37 144.58                          

Total 244.63                          148.07                          

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

For terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 33

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Current

a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 

supplier as at the end of each accounting year

Principal                                 3.18 3.48                               

Interest                                 0.08 0.01                               

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 along with the 

amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the 

year 

Principal                                     -                                       -   

Interest                                     -                                       -   

c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 

payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but 

without adding the interest specified

                                    -                                       -   

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year                                 0.08                                 0.01 

e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually 

paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 

expenditure under Section 23 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006

                                    -                                       -   

18. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

 Current

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Current maturities of long term debts                              22.46 22.46                             

Payable for capital goods                                 4.23 1.04                               

Dues to employees                                 2.55 1.57                               

Deposits from customers and others                                 1.44 0.18                               

Total 30.68                            25.25                            

19. REFUND LIABILITIES

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

 Refund Liabilities                              54.27 39.15                             

 Total                              54.27                              39.15 

Details of Dues to Micro And Small Enterprises

Under the Company’s standard contract terms, customers have a right of return the goods within specified time or when goods remained

unsold at large format store. At the point of sale, a refund liability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue is recognised for those

products expected to be returned. The Company uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the number of returns on a

portfolio level using the expected value method. It is considered highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue

recognised will not occur given the consistent level of returns over previous years.

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis intimation received from the “suppliers” 

regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
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20. OTHER LIABILITIES

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Current

 Advance received from Customers                                 0.01 0.01                               

 Statutory Liabilities                                 7.50 8.10                               

 Total                                 7.51                                 8.11 

21. PROVISIONS

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

Non Current

 Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 31) 

Gratuity                                 0.46 0.36                               

Total 0.46                               0.36                               

Current

 Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 31) 

Gratuity                                 0.02 -                                 

Leave encashment                                 0.46 0.26                               

 Total 0.48                               0.26                               

22. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Particulars  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 

 Provision for Tax (net of advance tax)                                     -   8.95                               

 Total -                                 8.95                               

23. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 

 Sale of products 

 Traded goods (Apparel, footwear and other fashion products)                            497.70 430.33                          

 Other Operating Revenues                                 0.65 0.80                               

Total 498.35                          431.13                          

24. OTHER INCOME

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost                                 0.03 0.05                               

Total 0.03                               0.05                               

25. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 

 Inventories as at the beginning of the year 

 Stock-in-trade                               33.22 87.54                             

 Less : Inventories as at the end of the year 

 Stock-in-trade                               60.75 33.22                             

 Net decrease / (increase) in inventories (27.53)                           54.32                            
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26. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 

 Salaries, wages and bonus                              32.11 20.50                            

 Contribution to provident and other funds                                1.62 1.19                              

 Staff welfare expenses                                0.15 0.15                              

 (Refer note 31 - Employee benefit obligations) 

Total 33.88                            21.84                            

27. FINANCE COST

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 

 Interest expense on financial liabilities not classified as at FVTPL (Including DDT)                              11.23 13.02                            

 Interest expense on borrowings                                0.15 -                                

 Other Interest expense                                0.30 0.01                              

 Other borrowing costs                                0.76 0.52                              

Total 12.44                            13.55                            

28. DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT EXPENSE

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 

 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment                                0.64 0.23                              

 Amortisation on intangible assets                                9.81 4.32                              

 Impairment loss on goodwill (Refer note 5)                              30.13 -                                

Total 40.58                            4.55                              

29. OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 

 Repairs and maintenance - Others                                0.03 0.02                              

 Rent                                3.76 2.84                              

 Travelling and conveyance                                3.13 1.58                              

 Advertisement and marketing expenses                              10.50 3.20                              

 Legal and professional fees                                1.40 1.10                              

 Director's sitting fees                                0.07 0.04                              

 Payments to auditors (Refer note (a) below)                                0.20 0.08                              

 Insurance                                0.26 0.20                              

 Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment                                0.58 0.23                              

 Rates and taxes                                0.07 0.03                              

 Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer note (b) below)                                0.32 -                                

 General expenses                                3.92 4.34                              

Total 24.24                            13.66                            

(a) Details of Payments to auditors

 2018-19  2017-18 

As auditor

Statutory Audit Fee 0.15                              0.05                              

Tax audit fee 0.03                              0.03                              

Other services (certification fees) 0.02                              -                                

Total 0.20                              0.08                              
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(b) Corporate social responsibility expenditure

 2018-19  2017-18 

Contribution to Sone ki Chidiya charity foundation 0.32                              -                                

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 0.32                              -                                

Amount spent during the year on 

(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset -                                -                                

(ii) on purposes other than (i) above 0.32                              -                                

30. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 

Face value per share (INR)                              10.00                              10.00 

Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share (INR) 564.60                          506.65                          

(b) Diluted earnings per share (INR) 564.60                          506.65                          

(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company 20.46                            18.36                            

Diluted earnings per share

Profit from attributable to the equity holders of the company

Used in calculating basic earnings per share 20.46                            18.36                            

Add: Adjustment -                                -                                
Profit attributable to the equity holders used in calculating diluted earnings per share 20.46                            18.36                            

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic 

earnings per share

Equity Shares 2,59,100                       2,59,100                       

Compulsorily convertible instruments 1,03,278                       1,03,278                       

3,62,378                      3,62,378                      

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share: -                                -                                

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 

diluted earnings per share

3,62,378                      3,62,378                      

The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in share transactions during the year.

There have been no other transactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of

authorisation of these financial statements.
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31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Current Non Current Total Current Non Current Total

Leave obligations 0.46                        -                          0.46                        0.26                        -                          0.26                        

Gratuity 0.02                        0.46                        0.48                        -                          0.36                        0.36                        

Total Employee Benefit 

Obligation

0.48                        0.46                        0.94                        0.26                        0.36                        0.62                        

(i) Leave Obligations

The leave obligations cover the company's liability for sick and earned leave.

(ii) Post Employment obligations

a) Gratuity

The amount recognised in the balance sheet and the movement in the net defined benefit obligation over the period are as follows

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

0.37                        0.28                        

0.20                        0.10                        

0.02                        0.02                        

0.22                        0.12                        

(0.11)                       -                          

0.03                        (0.02)                       

(Gain)/Loss from change in experience assumptions (0.02)                       0.02                        

(0.10)                       -                          

Benefit payments (0.01)                       (0.03)                       

As at end of the year 0.48                        0.37                        

Significant risks and assumptions

i. The principal actuarial risk to which the Company is exposed are interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Interest Risk

Longevity Risk

Salary risk

ii. The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Discount rate 7.50% 7.70%

Salary Escalation 7% for first 2 years 

and 5% thereafter

5.00%

Withdrawal Rate Upto 5 years 20% 

and 1% thereafter 

1.00%

Retirement Age 58 years 58 years

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

A decrease in the government bond interest rate will increase the plan liability

The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or after. Typically for

the benefits paid on or before the retirement age, the longevity risk is not very material.

(Gain)/Loss from change in financial assumptions

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Remeasurements

 March 31, 2019 

Interest expense/(income)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

(Gain)/Loss from change in Demographic assumption

 March 31, 2018 

The amount of the provision of leave obligations is presented as current, since the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement

for any of these obligations.

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is greater of the amount calculated as per the Payment of

Gratuity Act, 1975 or the Company Scheme applicable to the employee. The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once

vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of employment. The gratuity benefits payable to the employees are based on the

employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. 

The employees do not contribute towards this plan and the full cost of providing these benefits are met by the Company. In case of death while in

service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting. The Company’s obligation towards Gratuity is a Defined Benefit plan and is not funded.

As at beginning of the year

Current service cost
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Sensitivity Analysis :

Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit liability 2018-19 2017-18

(0.07)                       (0.05)                       

0.07                        0.08                        

0.07                        0.08                        

(0.07)                       (0.05)                       

The following payments are expected payment towards to the defined benefit obligation in future years:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Within the next 12 months 0.02 0.00

Between 2 and 5 years 0.10 0.03

Between 5 and 10 years 0.10 0.05

Total expected payments 0.22 0.08

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 11.42 years (March 31, 2018: 27.38 years)

b) Defined contribution plans

32. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Commitments

i. Capital commitments

ii. Leases

Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Within one year 4.87                        0.46                        

Later than one year but not later than five years 2.32                        0.37                        

later than five years Nil Nil

B. Contingent Liabilities March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

i. Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt -                          -                          

ii. Guarantees excluding financial guarantees -                          -                          

iii. Other money for which the company is contingently liable -                          -                          

The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not provided for (net of advances) as at March 31, 2019 is INR

0.58 Crore (2017-18: INR 0.43 Crore)

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non cancellable operating 

leases are as follows:

The company has entered in various operating lease agreements and lease rents in respect of the same amounting to INR 3.76 Crore (March 31, 2018: 

INR 2.84 Crore) has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the

change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

The company also has defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to Provident Fund in India and Employee's State Insurance Company ("ESIC")

equal to a certain percentage of the employees' salary. The contributions of provident fund are made to registered provident fund administered by the

government. The obligation of the company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The

expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 1.05 Crore (March 31, 2018: INR 0.80 Crore) towards provident fund and

INR 0.57 Crore (March 31, 2018: INR 0.39 Crore) towards ESIC.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis

below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while

holding all other assumptions constant.

Impact on defined benefit obligation or gratuity of increase in discount rate for 100 basis points 

Impact on defined benefit obligation or gratuity of decrease in discount rate for 100 basis points 

Impact on defined benefit obligation or gratuity of increase in salary escalation rate for 100 basis points

Impact on defined benefit obligation or gratuity of decrease in salary escalation rate for 100 basis points



FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR Crore, unless otherwise stated)

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

(1) Holding / Ultimate Holding Company (4) Enterprises over which KMP of the Company or the ultimate holding company can

Future Trendz Limited  exercise significant influence

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited Future Retail Limited

Ryka Commercial Ventures Private Limited Future Enterprises Limited

Lifestyle Trust Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited

Future Sharp Skills Limited

(2) Fellow Subsidiaries Retail Light Techniques (India) Limited

FLFL Business Services Limited Future Generali India Insurance Company Limited

FLFL Travel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Limited Future Generali India Life Insurance Company Limited

FLFL Travel Retail Guwahati Private Limited Future Corporate Resources Private Limited

FLFL Travel Retail Lucknow Private Limited  (formerly known as Suhani Trading and Investment Consultants Private Limited)

FLFL Travel Retail West Private Limited Travel News Services (India) Private Limited (TNSI)

(3) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Hetal Kotak

Kaleeswaran Arunchalam

Vitthal Nawandhar

(ii) Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties

(a) Sale of Products

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 142.20                   151.33                   

Future Retail Limited 214.53                   182.81                   

(b) Purchase of Products

Future Enterprises Limited 1.59                        -                          

(c) Purchase of Property, plant and equipment

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 2.47                        -                          

Future Retail Limited 0.02                        -                          

(d) Sale of Property, plant and equipment

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 0.08                        -                          

(e) Other expenses

Business exhibition expenses & Shared Services

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 1.02                        0.26                        

Supply chain service provider

Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited 5.82                        4.35                        

Employee Training & Development

Future Sharp Skills Limited 0.01                        0.04                        

Insurance Service provider

Future Generali India Life Insurance Company Limited 0.11                        0.07                        

Future Generali India Insurance Company Limited 0.14                        -                          

Rent for Airport Stores

FLFL Travel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Limited 0.24                        -                          

FLFL Travel Retail Guwahati Private Limited 0.20                        -                          

FLFL Travel Retail Lucknow Private Limited 0.29                        -                          

FLFL Travel Retail West Private Limited 0.68                        -                          

Travel News Services (India) Private Limited (TNSI) 0.22                        -                          

Capex Related Expenses

Retail Light Techniques (India) Limited 0.15                        0.01                        

Future Enterprises Limited 0.89                        -                          

(f) Other Income

Shared Services

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 0.72                        0.72                        

(g) Financial Guarantee from

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 0.50                        -                          

2017-18Name 2018-19
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(iii) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services

Trade Receivables

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 131.44                   107.34                   

Future Retail Limited 72.04                      82.01                      

Future Enterprises Limited 8.86                        -                          

Future Corporate Resources Private Limited 0.01                        0.01                        

Trade Payables

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 2.55                        20.20                      

Future Retail Limited 0.02                        -                          

Future Enterprises Limited 0.57                        -                          

Future Sharp Skills Limited -                          0.03                        

Retail Light Techniques (India) Limited 0.06                        -                          

Future Generali India Life Insurance Company Limited 0.02                        0.07                        

Future Generali India Insurance Company Limited 0.11                        -                          

Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited 4.81                        5.09                        

(iv) Key management personnel compensation

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Short term employee benefits 1.91                        1.77                        

Post-employment benefits 0.05                        0.06                        

Director Sitting fees 0.05                        0.04                        

2.01                        1.87                        

(v) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

34. SEGMENT REPORTING

Information about major customers

Revenue arising from sale of products from two customers amounted to INR 356.73 Crore (March 31, 2018: from two customers amounted to INR 334.14

Crore), exceeds 10% of revenue from operations of the Company.

The Company is engaged in the business of trading of branded apparel, footwear and others fashion products, which is the only reportable segment. There is

no other segment which requires reporting as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments".

Name March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the

year end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party

receivables and payables. For the year ended March 21, 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amount owed by

related parties (March 31, 2018: NIL). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and

market in which the related party operates.
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35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Financial Instruments by Category

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Amortised cost

Trade Receivables 309.94                238.92                309.94                238.92                

Cash and Cash Equivalents 25.61                  0.70                    25.61                  0.70                    

Security Deposits 0.87                    0.78                    0.87                    0.78                    

Loans -                      0.02                    -                      0.02                    

Other Bank Balances 0.02                    0.02                    0.02                    0.02                    

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income -                      -                      -                      -                      

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss -                      -                      -                      -                      

Total 336.44                240.44                336.44                240.44                

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amortised cost

Borrowings 42.69                  60.85                  42.69                  60.85                  

Trade Payables 244.63                148.07                244.63                148.07                

Other financial liabilities 8.22                    2.79                    8.22                    2.79                    

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss -                      -                      -                      -                      

Total 295.54                211.71                295.54                211.71                

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate fair value:

(a) Fair value of short term financial assets and liabilities significantly approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities

of these instruments.

(b) Fair value of quoted instruments is based on the market value at the reporting date. The fair value of other financial liabilities as well as other

non current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flow using rate currently applicable for debt on similar terms, credit risk and

remaining maturities.

(c) The fair value of the Company’s interest bearing borrowing received are determined using discount rate that reflects the entity’s borrowing

rate as at the end of the reporting period.

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available. In

addition, the Company internally reviews valuation, including independent price validation for certain instruments.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using

another valuation technique.

Carrying Amount
Particulars

The management assessed that the fair values of short term financial assets and liabilities significantly approximate their carrying amounts largely

due to the short - term maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the

instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction among willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair Value

The Company determines fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities by discounting the contractual cash inflows/outflows using

prevailing interest rates of financial instruments with similar terms. The initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is at fair

value. Further, the subsequent measurement of all financial assets and liabilities is at amortised cost, using the effective interest method discount

rates used in determining fair value. The interest rate used to discount estimated future cash flows, where applicable, are based on the

incremental borrowing rate of the borrower in case of financial liabilities and average market rate of similar credit rated instrument in case of

financial assets.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(A) Credit risk

(B) Liquidity risk

Particulars Carrying 

amount 

Within 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 

years

Total

As at March 31, 2019

Borrowing including Interest accrued 42.69                24.38                24.38               -                   48.76                 

Trade payable 244.63              244.63              -                   -                   244.63               

Other financial liabilities 8.22                  8.22                  -                   -                   8.22                   

295.54             277.23             24.38              -                   301.61              

As at March 31, 2018

Borrowing including Interest accrued 60.85                24.38                48.75               -                   73.13                 

Trade payable 148.07              148.07              -                   -                   148.07               

Other financial liabilities 2.79                  2.79                  -                   -                   2.79                   

211.71             175.24             48.75              -                   223.99              

(B) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

 

Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Amount Payable

Euro -                    8.96                  

USD 0.05                  3.15                  

Total Exposure 0.05                  12.11                

The Company has a Risk Management Committee instituted by its Board of Directors for overseeing the Risk Management Framework and developing and

monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The risk management policies are established to ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks, setting

acceptable risk awareness and transparency. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the

Company’s activities to provide reliable information to the Management and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation

to the risk faced by the Company.

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions primarily on account of import of trading goods and capital goods.

Foreign exchange risk arises recognised liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency of the Company. The company’s exposure to

exchange fluctuation risk is very limited for its purchase from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. 

A 5% strengthening in USD and GBP will decrease the profit for the year by INR 0.002 Crore (2017-18: INR 0.61 Crore) and a 5% weakening in USD and GBP will

increase the profit for the year by INR 0.002 Crore (2017-18: INR 0.61 Crore). In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent

foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligation resulting in a financial loss to the company. The credit risk arises primarily on

trade receivables, store deposit with landlord of stores and deposits with banks and other financial instruments.

The Company’s retail sales is on the counter sale i.e. cash and carry basis on which no credit risk arises, however credit risk arises to the Company on sales to

institutional customers/ wholesale customers. Company manages the credit risk arising from trade receivables through credit approvals, establishing credit limits

and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers. Company’s customer base is widely spread and therefore it does not have concentration of credit

risk. Company manages credit risk on store deposits by timely advance negotiation with landlord of store or through legal action. 

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine expected credit losses. Historical trends of

impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any credit losses. Given that there is no substantial change in the economic environment affecting customers of the

Company, the Company expects the historical trend of immaterial credit losses to continue.

 

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited as company counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned credit rating agencies.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will fail in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The company’s approach to managing liquidity is

to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company monitors the rolling forecasts to

ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs. 

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn

up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based. It include both interest and principal cash flows. The contractual maturity is based on the

earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices. The Company is

exposed in the ordinary course of its business to risks related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company's exposure to interest rates risk and

other price risk is not significant. 

Following table details the carrying amounts of the Company's unhedged foreign currency denominated monetary items at the end of the reporting period:
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(ii) Interest rate risk

37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Borrowings 42.69                 60.85                 

Less: cash and cash equivalents (25.61)                (0.70)                  

Net Debt 17.08                 60.15                 

Equity share capital 0.26                   0.26                   

Other equity instrument 0.01                   0.01                   

Other equity 237.27               216.24               

Total Capital 237.54              216.51              

Net debt to equity ratio 7.19% 27.78%

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Hetal Kotak Sharda Ashwini Agarwal Kaleeswaran Arunachalam

Executive Director and CEO Director Director

(DIN : 07863592) (DIN : 00022814) (DIN : 07625839)

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24 April 2019

38. DETAILS OF CHARGES AGAINST ASSETS OF THE COMPANY

The credit facility from IDFC bank is secured by way of a first & exclusive charge on the entire current assets and movable property plant and equipment of the

Company and corporate guarantee from Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited, the Parent Company.

39. The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary, to make them comparable.

For the purpsoe of the company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, equity instruments, share premium and all other equity reserves

attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concerns through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital

structure of the Company consists of net debt (i.e. borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and equity of the Company (comprising issued capital, reserves

and retained earnings). The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘net debt’ to equity. The Company’s net debt to equity ratio is as follows.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. However,

the company is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates.























(` in Lakh)

 Note No. 
As at March 

31, 2019

As at March 

31, 2018

1

(a) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 3 25.90                 25.90 

25.90 25.90 

2 Current assets 

(a) Financial Assets 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 4 8.20 16.29 

8.20 16.29 

34.10 42.19 

1 Equity

(a) Equity Share capital 5 55.00 55.00 

(b)  Other Equity 6 -21.19 -13.20

33.81 41.80 

LIABILITIES

2 Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i)  Trade payables 7 0.29 0.30 

(ii)  Other Financial Liabilities 8                        -   0.09 

0.29 0.39 

34.10 42.19 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-12

As per our Report of even date attached                                    For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For DMKH & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 116886W

Sd/-

Durgesh Kabra  Sd/- Sd/-

Partner Vimal Dhruve

Membership No.:044075 Director

DIN- 02243595

Place : Mumbai

Date  :24.04.2019

Subodh More

Director

DIN- 07230828

Total Current Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Total Equity 

FUTURE TRENDZ LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

Total Current Assets

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Total Non - Current Assets



(` in Lakh)

 Note 

No. 
2018-19 2017-18

1 REVENUE

(a) Revenue from operations                           -                           -   

Total Revenue                         -                          -   

2 EXPENSES

(a) Other expenses 9                      7.99                     9.93 

Total Expenses 7.99                    9.93                   

3 Profit before tax (1 - 2) (7.99) (9.93)

4 Tax Expense                           -                           -   

5 Profit for the Year (3 - 4) (7.99) (9.93)

6 Earnings per equity share of Face Value of ` 10 each 12

Basic (`) (1.45) (1.81)

Diluted  (`) (1.45) (1.81)

1-12

  As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For DMKH & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 116886W

   Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Durgesh Kabra Vimal Dhruve Subodh More

Partner Director Director 

Membership No.:044075 DIN- 02243595 DIN- 07230828

Place : Mumbai

Date  : 24.04.2019

FUTURE TRENDZ LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements



(` in Lakh)

2018-19 2017-18

A Equity Share Capital

 (i) Opening Balance 55.00 35.00             

 (ii) Change During the Year

         Issue Of Equity Share -                  20.00

Closing Balance 55.00 55.00

B Other Euqity

Retained Earing

Opening Balance (13.20) -3.27

Profit for the Year (7.99) (9.93)

(21.19) (13.20)

Total Other Equity (21.19) (13.20)

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For DMKH & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 116886W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Durgesh Kabra Vimal Dhruve

Partner Director

Membership No.:044075 DIN- 02243595 DIN- 07230828

Place : Mumbai

Date  : 24.04.2019

FUTURE TRENDZ LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Director

Subodh More



(` in Lakh)

2018-19 2017-18

A Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit Before Tax (7.99) (9.93)

Adjusted For:

Interest Income                          -   -                     

Operating (Loss) Before Working Capital Changes (7.99) (9.93)

Adjusted For:

Trade Payables, Othe Liabilities and Provisions (0.09) (0.03)

Cash Generated From Operations (8.08) (9.96)

Tax Paid -                      -                     

Net Cash From Operating Activities (8.08) (9.96)

B Cash Flow From Financing Activity

Proceeds from Issue of shares -                      20.00

Net Cash Provided By Financing Activity -                      20.00

Net  Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (8.08) 10.04

Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 16.29 6.25                   

8.20 16.29

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For DMKH & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 116886W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Durgesh Kabra Vimal Dhruve Subodh More

Partner Director

Membership No.:044075 DIN- 02243595 DIN- 07230828

Place : Mumbai

Date  : 24.04.2019

FUTURE TRENDZ LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent

Director



NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY 

Future Trendz Ltd (“The Company”) is a company incorporated in India under the provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 on September 15, 2016. The registered address of the Company is located at 
Knowledge house, Shyam nagar, Off. Jogeshwari- Vikhroli link road, Jogeshwari (East) Mumbai - 400060 
.The Company is engaged in the business of Retailing of Fashion & related activities. The Financial 
Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on April 24, 2019.The Financial 
Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (₹) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs except 
where otherwise indicated. 
 
2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

2.1. Statement of Compliances with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Ind AS notified 

under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 (as amended)] and other applicable laws. 

 

2.2. Standard issued but not effective  

On 30 March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 116, “Leases” as 

part of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)) Amendment Rules, 2019. Ind AS 

116 replaces existing standard on leases i.e. Ind AS 17, “Leases” with effect from accounting 

periods beginning on or after 01 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the 

recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. It eliminates the 

classification of leases as either finance leases or operating leases for a lessee as required by 

Ind AS 17,”Leases” introducing a single on-balance sheet accounting model that will result in 

creation of Right of use asset and Lease Liability for all the leases subject to short term, low 

value leases and transition relaxations. 

                   

2.3. Basis of Preparation and Presentation 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 

AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial 

instruments which are measured at fair values.  

 

In accordance with Ind AS, the Company’s Ind AS financial statements including, two balance 

sheets, namely, the balance sheet as at March 31, 2018 and 2019, and, two statements each 

of profit and loss, cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2018 and 

2019 together with related notes. The same accounting policies have been used for all periods 

presented. 

 

2.4. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, 
plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management. The cost of property, 
plant and equipment acquired in a business combination is recorded at fair value on the date 
of acquisition. 
 
 



 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is 
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on Derecognition of the asset is included in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

 
While measuring the property, plant and equipment in accordance with Ind AS, the Company 
has elected to measure certain items of property, plant and equipment at the date of 
transition to Ind As at their fair values and used those fair values as their deemed cost at 
transition date. 

 
Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment has 
been provided on Straight Line Method over their useful lives prescribed under schedule 11 
of the companies Act, 2013.  

 
 
2.5. Intangible Assets 

Intangible Assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the 
end of each reporting period and the effect of any changes in estimate is accounted for 
prospectively.  
 
 

2.6. Impairment of non-financial assets (including investment in subsidiary, associate and joint 

venture) 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-

financial assets (including investment in subsidiary, associates and joint venture) to determine 

whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 

indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the 

extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 

amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.  

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been 
adjusted.  

 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 

carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its 

recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and 

loss. 

 

 

 

2.7. Revenue recognition  

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is 
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and similar allowances. 



 
Sale of goods 
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised, when significant risk and rewards of ownership have 
been transferred to the buyer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of 
consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods.  
 
Amount disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of trade allowances, rebates, 
returns and value added tax/sales tax/Goods and Services tax.  
 
Rendering of services 
Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised as they are rendered based on 
arrangements with the customers. 

 
Dividend and Interest income 
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s right to receive 
payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the shareholders and the amount of income can be measured reliably). 

 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic 

benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. 

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at 

the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 

cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying 

amount on initial recognition. 

 

2.8 Taxation 

Current tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income 
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or 
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by 
the end of the reporting period. 

 
Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred 
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against those deductible temporary 
differences which can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if 
the temporary difference rises from the initial recognition (other than in a business 
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor 
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary 
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are 



measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax 
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which 
the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities. 

 
Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they 

relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in 

which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income 

or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial 

accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the 

business combination. 

 

 

 

 

2.9  Earnings per share  
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/loss attributable to the owners of 
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
financial year. 
 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in determination of basic earnings per share 
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated 
with dilutive potential equity shares, and the weighted average number of additional equity 
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential 
equity shares. 

 
2.10 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets,   which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as 
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.  

 
All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in 
which they are incurred. 

 
2.11 Employee benefits  

Short term employee benefits 
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months from reporting date are classified 
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated 
absences, performance incentives and the expected cost of bonus etc. are recognised as an 
expense at the undiscounted amount in statement of profit and loss for the period in which 
the related service is rendered. 

 
Post-employment defined contribution benefits 
Payment to defined contribution plans such as provident fund, employee state insurance etc. 
are recognised as expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to such 
contributions. Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been 
paid.  



 
Post-employment defined benefit benefits 
Cost of post-employment benefit plans such as gratuity and accumulated paid absence are 
recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss for the period in which the 
employee has rendered services. The expense is recognised at the present value of the 
amounts payable determined using projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuation 
techniques at the end of each annual reporting period. Service cost (including current service 
cost, past service cost) and interest expense are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability are recognised 
in other comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognised in 
statement of profit and loss. 
 
Other long term employee benefit 
Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the 
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in 
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Cost of other long term 
benefits are determined using projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuation 
techniques at the end of each annual reporting period and the cost (including remeasurement) 
is recognised in statement of profit and loss. 
 
 

2.12 Inventories  
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are 
determined on weighted average basis. Cost of inventories comprise of cost of purchase, cost 
of conversion and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. 

 
 

2.13 Provisions, contingent liability and contingent assets 
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be reasonably estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by 
discounting (when the effect of the time value of money is material) the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the liability. 
 
Contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or it is probable but no 
reliable estimate is possible. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in financial statements 
however disclosed. Similarly, contingent assets are not recognised however disclosed. 

 
 
2.14 Investment in subsidiary, joint ventures and associates 

Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are shown at cost in accordance with 
Ind AS 27 ‘Separate financial statements’. Where the carrying amount of an investment in 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount and the difference is recognised as impairment loss in the statement of 
profit and loss (refer policy on impairment of non-financial assets). On disposal of investment, 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or 
credited to the statement of profit and loss. 
 



 
 
 

2.15 Financial instruments 
Classification as financial liability or equity  
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities 
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the 
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument 
 
Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised 
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 
 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities 
Initial recognition 
Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets 
primarily comprise of investments, loans, deposits, trade receivables and cash and bank 
balances. Financial liabilities primarily comprise of borrowings, trade and other payables and 
financial guarantee contracts. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets/ issue of financial liabilities 
are added to the fair value of the financial assets/ subtracted from fair value of financial 
liabilities on initial recognition, except for financial asset/ liability is subsequently measured at 
fair value through profit or loss.  
 
Subsequent measurement 
i. Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost 
After initial recognition all financial assets (other than investment in equity instruments and 
derivative instruments) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. All financial liabilities (other than derivative liabilities), subsequently after 
initial recognition, are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. The 
Company has not designated any financial asset or financial liability as fair value through profit 
or loss (“FVTPL”). 

 
ii. Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL 
All derivative assets and derivative liabilities are always measured at FVTPL with fair value 
changes is being recognised in statement of profit and loss. 
 
iii. Investment in equity instruments either at FVTPL or FVTOCI 
Investment in equity instruments are measured at FVTPL with fair value changes is being 
recognised in statement of profit and loss. However, on initial recognition, the Company can 
make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the 
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in 
equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. 
These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. 
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in 
fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for 



equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not 
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments. 
 
iv. Financial guarantee obligation 
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified 
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make 
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 
 
After initial recognition of financial guarantee obligation at fair value, the Company 
subsequently measured it at the higher of: 

 amount of loss determined in accordance with impairment requirement under Ind AS 
109 (see policy on impairment of financial asset); and 

 the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative income 
recognised. 

 
Impairment of financial asset 
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on 
financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights to 
receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL. 
 
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of 
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash 
flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that 
the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective 
interest rate. 
 
The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to 
the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased 
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that 
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 
 
For trade receivables, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 
lifetime expected credit losses. 

 
Derecognition of financial asset 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. 
 

2.16 Share-based payment arrangement 
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the 
equity instruments/ option at the grant date. 
 
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled share-based payments is 
expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s  estimate 
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the 
end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity 
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is 
recognised in statement of profit and loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the 
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share options outstanding reserve. 



 
 

2.17 Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements 
In the course of applying the accounting policies, the Company is required to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.  
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the 
revision affects current and future periods. 
 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
i. Impairment of property, plant and equipment, investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures 

and associates  
Determining whether the assets are impaired requires an estimate in the value in use of cash 
generating units. It requires to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash 
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. When the 
actual cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. 

 
ii.  Provisions, liabilities and contingencies 
The timing of recognition of provision requires application of judgement to existing facts and 
circumstances which may be subject to change 
 
iii. Fair value measurements 
Some of the Company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting 
purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the 
Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. 
 
The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate 
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. A degree of estimate is required in establishing 
fair values.  

 

 

 

2.18 Application of new and revised standards 
 

Ind AS 116 – Leases : 

 

On March 30, 2019, MCA has notified the Ind AS 116, “Leases”. Ind AS 116 introduces a single 

lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases 

with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is 

required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased 

asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. Requirements 

with regard to lessor accounting are substantially similar to accounting requirements contained 

in Ind AS 17. Accordingly, a lessor will continue to classify its leases as operating leases or 

finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently. 



 

The Following are the three transition approaches that are prescribed: 
 

 Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively as 
if Ind AS 116 was always applicable. 
 

 Modified Retrospective approach - Under this approach, Right of Use asset is measured as if 
Ind AS 116 had been applied from lease commencement date and lease liability is measured 
for the remaining lease obligations as on 1 April 2019. Any difference between asset and 
liability recognised in opening retained earnings at transition. 

 

 Modified Simplified Approach - Under this approach, lease liability is measured at present 
value of remaining lease obligations and corresponding Right of Use asset is created. 
 

The company will adopt this standard with effect from 1 April 2019. We are currently evaluating 

the impact of this standard on our consolidated financial statements and the method of 

adoption. We expect this adoption will result in a material increase in the assets and liabilities 

on our consolidated balance sheets and will likely to have an impact on our consolidated 

statements of earnings. In preparation for the adoption of the standard, we are in the process 

of implementing controls and key system changes to enable the preparation of financial 

information. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 Non-Current Assets -Investment

As at March 31, 

2019

As at March 31, 

2018

As at March 31, 

2019
As at March 31, 2018

Non-Current Investment-Unquoted

Investment in Equity Instruments

Subsidiaries (At cost)

Future Speciality Retail Limited                2,59,000                2,59,000                      25.90                                        25.90 

              2,59,000               2,59,000                     25.90                                     25.90 

4 Current assets (` in Lakh)

As at March 31, 

2019
As at March 31, 2018

Cash and Cash equivalents

On Current Accounts                        8.20                                        16.29 

                      8.20                                     16.29 

5 Equity Share Capital

No. of Shares (` in Lakh) No. of Shares (` in Lakh)

Authorised

Equity Share of ` 10/- each 60,00,000             600.00                  60,00,000             600.00                                    

60,00,000            600.00                 60,00,000            600.00                                  

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

Equity Share of ` 10/- each 5,50,000               55.00                    5,50,000               55.00                                       

5,50,000              55.00                   5,50,000              55.00                                    

(a)  Reconciliation of number of shares :

Equity Share of ` 10/- each

As at                         

Mar 31, 2019

As at                         

Mar 31, 2018

No. of Shares No. of Shares

At the beginning of the year                5,50,000                3,50,000 

Add : Issued during the year                            -                  2,00,000 

At the end of the year                5,50,000                5,50,000 

No. of 

Shares held

% of 

Holding 

No. of 

Shares held

% of 

Holding 

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 5,50,000 100 5,50,000 100

(b) Terms/Rights Attached to Equity Shares

(c)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company :

Name of Shareholders

 As at March 31, 2019  As at March 31, 2018 

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value ` 10/- each. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one 

vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the 

Company after distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

        NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Number of Units ` in Lakh

Particulars

Cash and Bank Balances

 As at Mar 31, 2019  As at Mar 31, 2018 
Particulars



(` in Lakh)

As at March 31, 

2019

As at March 31, 

2018

6 Other Equity

Retained Earning (21.19) (13.20)

-21.19 -13.20

For addition and deduction under each of the above heads refer statement of change in Equity

7 Current liabilities -Trade Payables

Trade Payables                     0.29                       0.30 

0.29 0.30

8 Current Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities

Other Payables                          -                         0.09 

                       -   0.09

9 Other Expenses

Audit Fees                     0.30                       0.30 

Miscellaneous Expenses                     7.70                       9.63 

7.99 9.93

        NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019



10.   Related Party Disclosure 

         As required under Accounting Standard 18 “Related Party Disclosures” are given below: 

A. List of Related Parties 

1. Holding Company 

          Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited  

2. Fellow Subsidiary 

i. FLFL Business Services Limited  

3. Subsidiary Company 

Future Speciality Retail Limited  

  

11.   Auditor’s Remuneration                  

                           (` in Lakh)              

Particular 2018-19 2017-18 

Statutory Audit Fee 0.30 0.30 

Total 0.30 0.30 

 

 12.  Computation of Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Shares 

Particulars Units     2018-19 2017-18 

Profit after tax ` in Lakh        (7.99)           (9.93) 

The Weighted average number of Equity shares for 

Basic and Diluted EPS 

No. in 

Lakh 
        5.50            5.50  

Earnings per Equity share (Basic & Diluted) `        (1.45)             (1.81) 

As per our report of even date attached           For and on Behalf of Board of Directors 

For DMKH & Co.      

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 116886W 

 

Sd/-                                                      Sd/-                                  Sd/-     

Durgesh Kabra               Vimal Dhruve                  Subodh More 

Partner                             Director             Director 

Membership No.: 44075                                                   DIN- 02243595             DIN- 07230828  

         

Place: Mumbai                   

Date: 24.04.2019        
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To The Members of Future Speciality Retail Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Future Speciality Retail Limited 
Cthe Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement 
of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and 
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the informat ion required by the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of t he Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2020, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the 
year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsib11lty for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are Independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics Issued by the I nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India (!CAI) 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics . 
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

• The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for l he other Information. The other 
1nformat1on comprises the information Included in the Director's report, but does not include 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

• Our opinion on the flnancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

• In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of 
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

Regd Office: lndlabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27th • 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, ~nstone Road (W), Mumbai• 400 013 
India. (l LP Identification No, AAB-8737 
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• If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report tn 
this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated 1n section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income , cash 
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making Judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management Is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operat ions, or has no rea listic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor 's report thal includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
adequate Internal financial controls system in place and lhe operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 
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• Conclude on the appropnateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention 1n our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
rncluding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user 
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and t iming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any s1gn1ficant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matters 

Due to restrictions imposed in the COVID 19 related lockdown, all maJor inventory locations of 
the Company were closed till date of audit report. The Management maintains inventory In third 
party warehouses and has an inventory physical verification program for perfonnlng physical 
count of inventory during the year- end which was followed. However, due to the 
abovementioned restrictions, the management was unable to conduct physical verification of 
inventory as on the date of financial statements and consequently, we were unable to observe 
the verification or perform test counts on inventory as at year-end. We have perfonned 
alternative procedures to audit the existence of Inventory as per the guidance provided in SA 
501" Audit Evidence - Specific Considerations for Selected Items", which Includes inspections of 
supporting documentation related to purchases, sales, results of physical counts performed by 
the Management during the year and other third party evidences, where applicable, and have 
obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to issue our unmodified opinion on these Financial 
Statements. Our report is not modified In respect of this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) I n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the rele!vant books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the 
Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in "Annexure A". Our re·port expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting for the reasons stated t herein. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report In accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to Its directors during the year is In 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us: 

1. The Company does not have any pending litigat ions which would impact its 
financial position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long--term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

ill. There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by th,e Company. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure Bn a 
statement on the matters specified in paragra1phs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 30, 2020 

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.117366W/ W-100018 

Ketan Vora 
(Partner) 

(Membership No. 100459) 
UDIN: 20100459AAAAKX6567 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE I NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
{Referred to in paragraph 1( f ) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date ) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i} 
of Sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Future Speciality 
Retail Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the 
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management 's Responsibility for I nternal Financial Controls 

The Company's management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on "t he internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal cont rol stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Cont rols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India". These responsibilities Include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, Including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor 's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards 
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively In all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over nnancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assesslng the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's Internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's interna l financial control over finanaal reporting includes those 
pol1c1es and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detall, accurately and fairly reflect the t ransactions and d1sposit1ons of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements In accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due t o error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
sub1ect to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us 
the Company has, In all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on "the criteria for internal financial control over 
financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India". 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 30, 2020 

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018 

Ketan Vora 
(Partner) 

(Membership No. 100459) 
UDIN: 20100459AAAAKX6567 
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(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable In respect of Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Customs Duty, Goods and Services 
Tax, cess and other material statutory dues In arrears as at March 31, 2020 for 
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable excepl for 
Professional Tax (payable under various State Professional Tax Acts) pertaining 
to financial years 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20 amounting to Rs 0.05 crores 
and Labour Welfare Fund (payable under various State Labour Welfare Fund 
Acts) pertaining to financial years 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20 amounting to 
Rs.0.0lcrores. 

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty as on 
March 31, 2020 on account of dlsputes. 

(vii i) rn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted In the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and the 
Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or the 
government and has not Issued any debentures. 

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not raised moneys by way of Initial public offer or further public offer 
(Including debt Instruments) and the term loans have been applied by the Company 
during the year for the purposes for which they were raised, other than temporary 
deployment pending application of proceeds. 

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the Information and explanations given 
to us, no fraud by the Company and no materlal fraud on the Company by Its officers 
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(xl) In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has paid /provided managerial remuneration In accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule v to the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

(xii) The Company Is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under this clause of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the Information and explanatlons given to us the 
Company ls in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by 
the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or part ly convertible debentures and hence reporting 
under clause (xiv) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, during 
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors 
or directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with 
them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable. 
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(xvi) The Company Is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 30, 2020 

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018 

Ketan Vora 
(Partner) 

(Membership No. 100459) 
UDIN: 20100459AAAAKX6567 
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FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 311 2020 
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In t@rms of our report attached 

For Delolo• Hukins & s,ns UP 

Char1ered Accountants 
For and on b~h1lf of the Boord ol Dlrecton 

Firm Re&lslratlonNo : ll7366W/W-l00018 

~ 
Ktu nVor.1 

P•utn.er 

Membersh,p No. 1004S9 

Pl1ce Mumbai 

Oate June JO, Z020 

Ji"~~ 
He talKo tak 

E.ecutive Dlrec:10< ond CEO 

(DIN : 07863592) 

Date June 16, 2020 

(~.~ 
S.unbh Bhudol,a 

Director 

(DIN . 0774B251) 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 
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In 1crms of our repon Jllac.hed. 

ro, Ocloitte ttaskln, & Sells LLP 

Chancrrd Accountlln11 
For and on behalf of the Bo.i,d of Oir!'Ctors 

F,rm Rrg,maouon 110 117366W/W 100018 

Ketan Vora 
P•nner 

t.1tmb~rsh,p No 10().159 

Pl•ce Mumbai 

0Jte, June 30, 2020 

Het.al Kot•k 
ExecuHie Ouector and CEO 

(DIN 07863592) 

Place · Mumbai 

Date June IG 2020 

Sau,.bh 8hudol~ 

011tctor 

(DIN 077482Sll 
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FUTIJRE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31

1 2020 
(All amo..nts u, IN~ Croro, uni, .. ot/ltn.lst stattd) 
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In ,~rm, of OLlf r,pon attached 

for Otloltte Hnldns & Seib LlP 
crun em! A«ountants 

for and on beh•lf of the Boan! ol Olrtttoll 

Firm Rec•st ratton No 117366\Y/W 100018 

J.i:· ~ 
Partner 
Mtmb,rshlp No 100459 

p1.,..,, t.".umb~1 

D•tr Jun• 30, 2020 

Heut Kota~ 

bl'CullYf Director and CEO 
(DIN 07863592) 

Pl•ce Mu.,,b•1 
Date Juoe 16, 2020 

Saurabh Bhudoll.l 

OirtetOt 

[DIN 07748251) 
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FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED 

STATEMENT Of CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2020 
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FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 
(All •mout,ts in INR Ctore. unh~,s;s othe,,wi·se-statt:d) 

1 Corpon .te lnformatton 
FLJtur~ ~pe.tlallty ~~tall lt,d('1"t1e Comp.anV") is o1 c.ompany:lncor-po13tl:!d lh India under the pr'QvisK>ns.of ComplU'lll?SAtl:, 2013 on Se,:;itember 27

1 
2016. TtK' 

regiJter.ed. i dd1e-ss of th~ Company ts k>i:.ated at t<nowkldge- I--IQ~Ut?, Sb~m Nagai', Off. Jogesh'warl-Vikt,rolf lin'k Road, Jog(!ihw:afl (£.a~t} Mumbai - 400 060, 

The Companv has e ic.ctli.~l'\le lk~f\H'l 1:0 m,nuf.actute tind marke t l ee Cooper b~nded .ippJ1re l; foorwu,r .ll'tO o.ther ac.cesso, ie.$ ac10~-all dl:.ttlbl,ltlol" c•h~n f'\e1s 
fo l nd1.r \Ind the J)Ctmft.t~d ternto(V. 

l h,e finanC'ial Statement:S were. approv,M for ,s:,\J~ ,by th~ Soarq qi Ofteuors on Jun~ 1'6,. 2'02U. The Financial Stalements art, plt,sent~d 11\ ln<han Rupees 

,1NR) a nd aJI \ralues are rou,{'ded to the nc-:ilrest arm~ except where ol:nerwi'se fndic.itei;I. 

2 Signifront Accounting Policies 

2 .. 1 Sta\em@-nt of Complrar,tes wlth 1ndlan Accountin& Standards (Ind AS) 

1he '1rianc~ I staternct1'h of the Comfi'\ny comply IJJ' all materiiill -iSpecis wnh l11t,han Accou~tjng Standards ('Ind A~~) no tifiOO !Jndor Sec:Uon 133 of tfie­
Companlits-Ac:t, i.013 rl!'ad With COrnPiilf'lieS (lndhnl A<:coot)flhg Standa(dsJ Roles, 201.S (as amen ded), 

2.2 Buis of,prepa,ratfon 

TM-se f11'1anc:~I state.merits ar.e prepart'C! ill i<Cqrdant.f! with lndkin Account ine Sta ndards. (Ind AS) u ndar th@ bis~or1c..al r;os-t co.rivention Oft the .accn.1:il basis 
except for c.ert.>ff\ fJ(\anaat irulrUn,e_nt:$ whi~h-a, e me;i,sured at fair value, 

Fair valu~ is. the QUte that would be rec~Wed to sell ~n .uset or paid lo l r-ansf~r a hatJUity in .an ttrd erly t ran':fa<tlon betwe~ri market P,af1'c!pants at tbe 

meas~remeJ't dilte. ,egudltss of whethe l' tN!t pti.;~ fs di}ectlv obser\/-.abte or estim ated using another valuation technique, In e .stlnla trne the fair va,lue of.-1n 
asset or a Uabdily, t he Comparw lake-s into account the dliraqteristl<s of t ~ as~t-t or Uabllity if m ark.e.l p~rtk.ipimis w~ ld t.ike tho ~ c-harattertstic$ ir,to, 

account when pricini the u set o r liablllty ilt the measureme nt date. 

Faif vatuc for m~asu rement and/ o, disdos\Jre purposes In thes~ finaf1cial statement~ l:5 determined on -such basis and meaS\Jrements 1ha:l have some 

.sirnil:.1rll(es to fair v~lu~ bul -are no t fair ~ k.te, s.uc:h tt:s. net r&allsabl~ valu€ Ill' Ind AS: i o, value in use inr Ind AS,36. 

li'I ad ~rtlo n, for fil'tanc.lal r~parting pu~oses, fafr 11.Jlue measur@-ments are t otegori.sed into Level 1,. 2, or 3 based (tr,. l .. e d ,tfre~ to whkh the Jnputs to th~ 

fa ir value measofCmef\ts a re c b)ervable ~nd the sigr,mcanc.e oftbe. inputs to the fa ir vofue me-asorement lfl its, ent(rc-tv, whkh a u; ~e.SC.rib.ed aJ fol1ow5: 

, Level l in{)ut5.. a,o quotM ptice-t (u,nadju$ted ) 'in "ictive market.ts for ld entir:al assets 01 Uabl11tres t hat .the e nt ity '4ln ace@s~ al tM ml:!.as.urement date; 

• Le, ... e J z inpu~-are inputs1 ottlet than quoted prices included Within level 1, that ar.e ob5e.rv.lbk! fot th~ a$$el o r liability, e.ittu: r dfrfflly or lndittttly; and 

• lave I 3 rnputs ar.t! unobservable i'rtpuls for t he asstt Or HabJlity, 

2.3 Summary cf dgnlfitant accounting policies 

(~) Revenue ,ecogffilion 

Re-V1!'4'\Ue Is n\l}.:tntred based o" the w n5ide,alJ'on ~pedfied in a co ntra <t with-~ wstome r .and ellch:1des amounts collectl!d on beh1lf of third parties iocludlt'lg 
taxes. ReVo.(IUe Is f@cognbed upon transter of cont ro l of promis~d ptodl.l(ts ot se,vices to custome.rs in an ~mount that rtJll'cts the c9115ideri'ltton we eJl;ped 
10 tece i11e in e>!change for tJ10.1,~ produch or service s.:. 

(I) Sat~ of goods 

,l'hl:! Company deal:s. irr fit.sh,on producu 1riduding apparel, footwear ann acceslOr~s to bOth t~e-1:i;ge for.mat $tores and d ii"ectlv, to custome,s .ttiroush its 
oW'n retail outlets. 

for Sei~s of'fashion prQQllct5, reverwe Is tt:!tognised when c.ootrol ohhc goods has tr.1n·sfe-rrcd, b ~ll'lg w~e~ the £9ods bave bee!" i hJpped to sp.~ific l.oc;:at1on 

(denv@ry). t=:ollqwine d~livery, the custotner has full dlscre tt()n pver the manner *f d 'inrHXitlol'I ~nd J).rk.e t.o sc,11 the good,s, ~as·tfle pf iniary <ts.pon~iblllt',1 
whe ll o ns@llilig U,e goods an:d bei\rs ,he rls.ks of obsofe $c@nt e al)d los.S in relation to th.e goods, A rece!Vablt Is re'cognise-d by t he Company Wh-eo the goods 

ne dehvercd :is this re pre!>f!nts the po int Jn time.a( whkh t ~ rlg'ht 10 con side rat.on b~comes' u nconditional, as only' the. passage of Vr'qe I~ required before 
payment is due, 

Fot $:J' les o f goods to retalt custome (~,. ,e1'ertue Is , ecogn'ised ~hen control of the. go ods 11.as-t ransfetrt!d, beiog at the poir,t t he cuilo mN pu_rch,ase,s 'the 

.eo.ods-at the tetall o utlet. Pavm e n·r of the tt ansa.ctiol'l: pfk e 1s-due imm.edralety a t the point (he c;.ustomc:r pu rt ha~s the good!i, 

Cormact .b alilnces 
Contract assets 

A contr;ict .asset is t ht? right to con.sK1eratjo11 r·n el(Ghang~ fof goods o r services t ransfened to Uie custom~,. If t he Company performs ·by tran.sfe rr tng goods 
o r servict"s to a c.ustome-r b.efor.e the customer pays col\Sfdfflllion or bt!for'~ payment is i;iuc-, a ~or,va~ iS-set ls re,cognised fo, the·eam ed con5idcrati.on that 
Is cond rt.[onal, 

Trade rece iva'bl~s 

A re,c~fvabht repre$enis the (.omp.any'.5 r'ight to ~n amount of cons.kiE:ratio,-, that h, v n,ondition.ll (1.e.1 onfy the pn saae of t ime is required before pa'f'tr'!:C!nt 
of the consicfe,ratlof'l ls due) 

Cont~ct li.ibiUt·IC!s 

A. contract liahtll~ fs the o~teation. to transfer P.OOdJ or ~Mcos to ;, custom<!r for which the Company has re.cel'\led cOffsidN!\tton (01 ii" omQ1;.1nt ot 
£.Onsiderali'on is. due·} from the, custol'n~r. It a· t \Jst9mer ~ys t.o nS'id.erat ion before the: Company transfer$ goo:ds or .seMc;U ro the run omer, a .;ontnu;t 

li.lb1llty i.s rec<,gniseQ Wi')e"Q ~he payment Is m ade o r the. p,1:yr,ent is .due (WhtcJ\t'ver rs t1.atllt1:r}, -COl'l t ract liabllities -are re,;Qgnised u rl!ve11ue w'hi::n thi, 
Com ~ n'y pe1forms un_d~, the con-tract. 
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(All amounts in INR Cro.re, unfl!ss otherwise sUtecl) 

Assets and liabilities arlsing from riCl"!t-i otu.au.rn 

Right oJ return u sets 
Rit h"t of re.t\Jfn iUt!l repfescnt~ ltit Cornpany',;s rlg~t to rec;ove.r the goods- ~xpect~d to be r~i\irne.d W c,momcrs, T~~ ~ntlt ls m<!'asurOO at tt1t.~ former 

carryJ'S\f. imount of lhe invenlo,.,,1 less any e:w.:pet:tc.:d cosb to recn~r 1he gQOds, indudi"G ~rsy potential decrea~es irtV1e vaitue ol the re1;t.Ju11, ,d eo.od1
1 

rti-e 
Company updates the measLJreme.nt Qf the-41.s:~e~ rec:orded ftir iny fyvl1lons 1011S tiJ?~ct~d t-OV~I (lf H!lUrJIS, a,s well a s,any additio" a l dec rea,~e.s- m t he;va'IUe 

of t he ri;itumCd utodt.1cts, This is dlsc-lost>d ak)ng with imil>ntories. 

Ae:fund lfabilith:~• 
.A refU('ld l~abltltv ts l.~e obligagion. to ~fund $0m,e or atl of the 1,o"s1<!eriJtiof1 ,·e,er-voo (or ,vcelvabtir) rrom the eu.stiJ(n.l!!f 3 ~ ts mea.su,e,d at the- amount the 
Company uhirnan.>lyexpec_l$ it w'/11 ha·ve to ,e.,urn to the (tJstOm{l1, The Company updales -its 1b1lrril'lh of feftJnd Vabllmes (and (he c.orrespondjrJ'g .:hange tn 
lt\1! tt~r,saetlon ptlte) ·at th t!l')d of each ,eportir.-, pen'od. 

(il) Interest Income 

lntetf-st lncnmti: f,om a fin:al'l<.ial .tsst t b l'et.6gnl5.ed whefl it is (Hoboble. \hilt t~e ecQ(10f11"i<;-benefits wi11 flow to t h.e CQmpany and the amoum tlf 1nco~ ca.n 
be mec1,sured re l~ bty. lntP.te-s:I inc:ome rs accn.,cq Ort 1 ,tlma badi, by refo~enc~ to thu ptindpal outstanding irid a~ t~ eff4:0t:tiVe- interest ra1P. ap~ (tab_le~ 

whlct, Js. t-he- rate th,n exactly dl~oun\s. estJma1ed futore ca$h retefpU thrm,gh ti'\~ ~)(pected )ife of the. flnintlal ~S:St!t to that. a1~ t':i. f'letcarf\'!ng amourtt on 
tni~1ol t ecogr,!tlo 11. 

(bJ ln.sn 
The Company had 10 chan,e rts-:ac,co11nting p.olicles as a result,of .1dopt1'1'\g tM AS j 16. This ls thsd0;sed In Note no 3 l 

Tht company ~s tessee 

The Company'1 leGse as.set dasse.:-; p,UT1ati1V ~ Of1$i.sts of lea~e fo, bOildlngs~ The Company iilssesse's Wti~tfl~; ~ Ct;tntract ,ootafn.s a teai:e 1t h,c,ptiO_n of a 

t;:Qntrict, A wnt,a,t fs1 o r contain~ .1 leiue If tti~ cootratt conveys fh2 rtght to control the UH' of .rn Klentiffod -uet tor a period of time tn exchange fa, 
consic;f~r~t!Qn. To .1s.sess wt\ether a (;'Ontract conveys the r ight to contro l tht,, u'se of an idct1tirled as~t, tfie f;ompany assf!s.se1· wh~tl,,er; 

{Q \ hf <:i;u1t~li:, invqtves th~ '1,$e of an identified ass<'t 
(II) the tDOtpanv has ~b!otanU.ally iii:II o1the economic beoefits-from us·e ofthe-a.u,ct thtoogh the f>@r,lod ofthl!! lea.se -1nd 

(Ill) the Comp·any hast~ tjgh! \odfrect t~ Uje.Q, ,he a:sset , 
At lh~ d.1te. of {Or'rhl'tencement of'lhe le:.t$e1 the Coff!panv re-cogniles ;a right,of-u~ ~s~ t ,rnd: ~ corfe$_POHdlng tl!"a.s@ lla_biljty fat all l~ase .1rrang(!:ments In 
whict- it i$ ~ fe~, exc.ept for leaJ:@f wlt,h a 1~,m of tw~[..,e months 'Or less fstiort-term leases) or- wtlere. the lesspr holds .a rJeM to (f,anBe tho specffTc 
location c f the IM!ee or leases W'i1t, low values. F-or these short•lN1'1'r ~nd tow v,l(Je, ln.i!les-, tJ,e· comparw· recoJn~eJ the l~as.~ payme.nt.$ itS- ai, ope.ratfrlg 

e,11.p·~1ue. o,i a M~ lght-llne basis over the te,m of the lease Cemtin !H S,t'! ar rangements inciudes the o~ions to e-'KtC-n,d or termfn-a~e the ~a~e before \tie end 
Qf tti~ le.~,s~ term, ROU use.ts an-d lea~ llablUtfo:s Includes tile$~ optJon.s whtm it.i:s. re.asonably r;ert.i3iin t hat they wlll be tXerd~·. The rfght•of..use uset1'Ue 
Iii itfo lly ,ec;ogob:ed at cort, 'w'hit-h cornpris~!o t.he i:nitial amQun( of lhe tease lial.t!Utv. adju$\ed for any tease payments-mctd'- al or,pr'iot :to th·e comme:n~m@nt 
datE: of the lease i>lu·s M Y initial di,iect rosu les$ -a,r,v· lea~ lncc.-nt>ves. t hey ct~ -sobsequeotfy measure-cl at cost fess accumulatea die-pteci~tion arid 

impatrmen.t lo,'l-Ses. 

Rff!ht•of·,use assets air@ df!p.N!!clated fl"Ofn the. commencement d,ate on a slraight -lfm: l:>ij,Si$ over the shorter Qf the le.;,se le.rm amf> usefuJ lifr of t_ht.> 

unde-ciyine ,nsec .Right of US4?! u~ts .ll'i!l evaluated for fC!.tO\lctatHllt'v w henever event~orc.haNes iJYflrC.umstances Tridiate that their cirryin.g • mounts,may 
not be recoveFable-. f or tM pLlfp_o:s.e of imp;,itment' te1trng, thf? tt'.!c~rabt(! amount((.~. the h-eher of lh!!- fali ..,alue less cost ~o sell and dw. v.ill.l¼ln-use} i.s 
.deterrnirted on an indrndl.MI 1me1 basis unle$s the a sset d~s not gene.rat~ CJ)Sh nows thilt! 11te l.arge.ly Independent of those from other 411sset$, In sur;h 
case-$, thit recoverabl~ <1mooot ~ determined for the Ca.sh Gen@rntll'ig . .Uoit {CGU) .to wtiic,h tl\e ,HSf!l be.longs. 

Th~ fease Uatiiljty ls- lnftialty mc::aSYfed at -amortized cc5t at rhe pres"nt v..lue of the, future lo.lse payment!., Th~ lea«! p'aY111eot!. Are d4K(}Untetl uslflC 1h1: 

1,_nte,r<?st ,ale 1n,pUc1t 1n tbe lease 011 if fl<>t readilV determinablet USlr\€ the rncrem.et'tal borrowing r.atM Lt-.tse. Uabllitles are ,en,eas-ured witl, ~ 

corre.spondin~ adJus.tmenl to th!;! related nt.ht of u.se ~u:~et if the Comparii,i d1an1:es rn: .nsessme nt if Whe..th.1u It w ill ~J(@r'e.Se a o cxt<!fislon ot a ter!Tlrnatlon 
optloM, le.• st!l l~btnty and ROU a~stt ,ha11e M~n !ie"paratelV presented m ,th~ S~lance.Sbe.et and le~~ payments ha Ye b~ n c;lassUl&d uflr.1ntJng c~~li flows. 

l'nmltlon 

Etfec.t)ve April 1, 2019, the. Compiloy adopted Ind AS l \6 and applied t he. standard to all !eas·e co.ntr.i.cn ofi.s(ff'\g on Aprll 1, 201.4 U!.l(lg the mod,m:~d 
retrospective mc,tl\od trid ha~ ta~et:1 the- cumulative adJus:tment to relained earn.inirs, on the dale of init;ial·applk:ation 
Con~equent1Y, the Company recorded t ho te.t~ ltablOly at the prese·nf value. of the 1ease payme11h diSCounted at th-e incrrmental bofro\l.linf r<'i1e .and lhe 
rt1;ht of use -asse~ at its c:arryfne .arpl,)1Jr,t as If ,he s1:~ndard haj,J beM appQed since- the rommcncemern d_;He of the le:aH~, but dls~ounted at th~ innement~I 
borrowlf1g ~ teat Ille dat~ q ( initial appliutfon, Comp•rativc, as-,at ind for t~e yHt e nded Match 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively a'djo~d imd 

Hi~refore- wm conllhuto to be ttported underl~ -aci;:QUotine pr;ifi-c:ies fo,year end.ec;I MJrch 31~ 1019 

(c) foreign ",.1ffCn{Ytn1nslation 
(i1 Functional and pf'ut ntat,ion q.menty 

hems hlducfo-d rn·t~ -fln~~RI stateftle"ls oft he e11tjty are mecisur~d u.sing, t~e o.ntc-n(Y of1lht! prJmary«on<;>rnic en\l'lronment i11 which the ei:itity opei;at.es 

{
1the funcUooa! curre.ll;ty')~ The finandal statements: are pre.s:entedln lnd iitff rupee.ijNRI. wh1d1 fs e"tity''s functlonal and prase.ntatfon currency, 

(Hl Tranuct)pf'u and balances: 

Forc-fe.t1 currency trr.tn.sac·ti.oM are tt.anslated into thefun,tit>nal c1.urency-ttsmt; the e)(change rates at the dates of the. tr,ansacuo,ii. for'~l&n etch~oge-gains 

•md loi5e, ruuttlr,g fTom th~ s1?nlcrrU?flt of such lt-n.$actiom: and from thf!-tra.nstalion of rn.ontita.ry a~setS' aod liab.illties de·nomhlated 1(1, fort!lgn t urrenc-1e~ 
at ye9r end C)IChi nge. ~t•.s:·~ro _generally 1ec:ogt1lsc.d in profit or loss. 

(d) Borrowio.t. costs 

Geoer·al itnd spedUc b.Qrrowi".& cos,~ th.u-are d,,v.cdy attributable to tl-le. acqufs-1tlon, ccnstructkiri or p1aduct.¢1n of iJ 11ut lifvin~ usel arf! Y:Pitali.srid- dlJrt~ 
u,e. p,eriQq of lime ,thal is· nrguif"fld to complete .tnd prepafe t.he asset for Its lntl'n<fcd use or .sale, Quailry,ng -.iss~~s are assets \l'J;at fl~e,ssini·N U kt a 
.!.ubu antraI petiorl of !ime, to get ready fof their 'inten:ded u:.c o r ioal-e 

lnve~tmen\ lntcme earned on the tr,mporar,, investment of specific. borrowlnts pending their e)lpenditu1e oh quallf'(inc assets is dedoe\e,d f ro(ll the 
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(cl Employu bent fi,s: 
(i) Short-term oblfgiitions 

Uablfities for wage.i ~nd -Sllar,e:;, f nnoal leave a,-.d 5id IJ!a·ve, indudir,I:! no.o-monetuy benefits: U,3t. ,.-e eip.~ctc.d-t<, Ix· settled wholly wltbio 12 moriths. 
after the end of the period I~ which lhe. employees. rendei; \he related .servic.e aJe fei;og,rised in re.sp~ct -of emptoy:.ee.s· 1,er.iites up to the crnd of the 
rePQriing period a nd are mea$Ured .il thfi: am·ounH 'll'tf)'1'<:U:'d to be pa·tc) When the U.tbHltid are ~etded. The. liabi1iUes a •e presentl!O a.s curref'\t employ~e­

beae:flt 0bliii,-il't1ons in,t_M- balante she~L 

(M) Other fontrterm emplo_yH ber,eflt obligaUon.s 

The ltatimtles for \famed iea1,e, a nd $!ck ~ ~ve are not ~xpeeieci to be-$ettled wholly withif) 12 months ,after tht!: ti,d or the period in !Nhlch tt'I~ e.mployecH 
render tt-.e 1ef::ited seNIU . Th~y ar~ theFl.!:fore: meanii'ed as tt~ pre-sent. value o{ e>:i]et:t~ fut'-lre payments to be made in resp,e<t. of servkcs· provided b'( 

~mplovees ,1p to :M end of tilt! rE!poftil'IC period lJSing the project~ lJn"i\ ~nd·i, meH1Q-d, The: benefits are djKouMed usi"& the. markt-t y1ekb ~t th• ~I'd of 
the- rep~rh11£ period th..lt ha~e terilu appro>clmattr,g to thE!. term! of the felated o.blig.1bon. 

lhe obligation~ are presented iiS w rrent Uab11itl•s in the b&lant-e -she'!'t ff tht'. entfty does not k:wa an uncendrtiOnaf right t9,de-fef K"tlle,nenl. fOf q:t lfast 
t welve mot.'1\hsafter the r!!porting period. regardless of wher'I the ae:;tua1 scti,lem~nt ts cXPIK.ifld to oc:ct:ra 

[Ml) Post-employment obUg1ti"om 
Deffne(:I eenefjt plan~ 

For defined Qelletrt reti,emitnt t.P..neflt pl.ans, the tmt of snovldlng berni·flts T5 dere-rmiMd using the profeded untt credR me.thPd, with actuan.11 Val(Ji!t'lons 

b1hng Cjl'tied out at"the e(ld of e.i~h anm.1t1l 1eport1ne. s;>:eriotJ. Remt'~s.ucemcn\,. comp,btng utu.ar~I gains .i.nd lone.s~ l~ effett of th~ thange:slo lhe asset 
cfNling, (if .t1JpUe;ablcl Md lhe. return on plan imets (e,.;cludiog ne.t uite~st), is relieC\ad l mmediate!y In tho balaru:e sheet-. wit I'\ a ch.a.rgC! or crf!d1t f(!Ce>gnssed 
in- other comprehensive- income in tht period It'\ whkh th_e,·y o«,t.Jt. Rem.eaturement recognise~ in ol,her c.ompr~hf~,Vf iru;:ome is ,~tle,;;ted Immediately in 
ret-alned ear.ning~ and i.s. nm rec;;!.assified to prof rt or lo$$. P3st st<Vk:e co·st Is r('t'ogni.~d II\ profit or loss In the. pcrtod of a plan. ame11dmen.t. N~t fnte.re$t ~ 

cnlcul.atci.l by applying the discount ,ate- iit the be&jllnirtg of the peflo•Q to the net defifled benefit ll;,b1lity or aue.t. Oef1ncd bt!Mfitcosts are c-alegorl!;~d -as 
·fotlowsi 

- s~rvic, co$t {lncludiog t-P.lrrent service- cost. past service-cost., as well as "ga1M,and toss&s on cuftail·ments---am:J seulements); 
- net lntere-R ~xperwe- or inccm~;,and 
- rem~a.sureme.rtt 

The Company presents the firn two component~ of defin&d benefit co~i in profit or las~ In the •1r.e, ltt'rn ;etnployee beMfit.s expense.'. C\,1[1a1lment gains 
eo<f lw-,.e~ are accoo.nted J-or a·s-past $erY\ce c.ost~ 

l he: N!:t11'em@nf benefit obli~Uon reroen'jsed in th·e ftn,3ndal st.atemcrttt represenu the ·aGtual defkft· er surplus In th~ Company's defirie.d benefit plans. ~rW 
5UrpkJs rcWltlng ((Orn t't,is cakulatjon is ffmited to'thEl present-valv~ Qf ,rw etof)omfc: bet1efits ayal)a~e II\ t he rorm of refond!.' from the plans o r re.ductfons 
rn f.uture ,ontributio,is to the!' plans. 

QE!fi'ned con.tribut!on pl1ns 

Payment to' d(!fmed contribution pfans sucl't as. provident fund eic .. are recognised as eXpen:se Wh(!n e.mptoye&s ,ha!ii! rende,~d seNli.;85' eni,tOng them to 
such cont rib\Jtio.os. Company h.3!. no furth@r J)<l;Vf'tl.e.nt 0bligatio11s on~e \he,contributions h.av~ ~ n fM"i4, 

(Iv) Termination benefits 

A lta·bilit'( for ill 1ermi'nation b~•ncflt 1!1 ,ecogni.sed a, tt,e Hdler ofwhen the: e ntlty tan rto tonger w1t"l,draw tne ,;iffe,-, 'o( the termination lx-otfrt -1nd when the. 
entrty rec09:.ni~s any related re.s.trut:turingcosts, 

If) r,xo, 
lnc..ome Ja)c expe!"sc represents th~ sum of the ta,: cu,-re" ttv payable and deferred tax. 

(i) Clc'rrenHncome-tu: 
Th@ tax cune-"t~ rayable is boned' on t~xable profit for th~ year, la,cab1e profit diffl!>rs Jr~ 'p·rofil b~fore tall,1 U tqpo,ted [fl the statef'l1enl 0r p rcfit an~ ,1o$s 
be.C'.tUSt' of Items Of -ine:ome or eJCpense that are taxable. or dedu,tib1e in other yiit.ir"S ~nd lt~l"fls; t.hill ate rte.Yer la::<able or d@ducr~bk!, rhe <:omp.any'sc1:1,tent 

til(j.s u1lw lat('d us.Ing tJ~ t.ue--s that h ~.e ti~11 e.nactE-d or.subttantive,V en·a,\ed by 1he end of1he rep.ortir~ period·. 

Current ;qnd deforred ta,c arf! r@c.ogn1sed 11'1 1n.oflt or los.s, e.x1;ept when they ri:~t~ lo items th~t 1ri:. recQ13r,is-ed in Qther cornpreh,;:n$iVi:t income.. or directly lri 
~qu'i:ty, In Whii;:h .:;•se-. the .cuneint a.f'd dtfE!rfed ux are :iil~o to!'cognJsed rn other cotri_prebe.ns.i'l,oe lntome or directly iJt e(jOity .resPettive~. Where c1Jrrent t ix 

or defem!:d t.ai <irises from the Initial ac.c:ount"ing for ct bu-slntJJ.S rornblnaUon, t'he tax l!Cfect Is induded in· the :&CC:O\Jl\tlne fof t~e buslnP,4S cornbi"ation., 

(II) Oe.fe·rred li}C 

Deferred taK is recoin!-Sed on. tempoJ.tfV d1ff@rer,t:~ tietw@'en the Gafl'Ylftg -amounts of ~s~ts iin<l tiabili\i~.i; in the. finan-;ial s,atements "1nd th& 
correspond,ng taic. ~SP~ u~d in ,he computation of ta)(,1ble profit Oere,·red tat llabHrt,es are. ge~erally rec:ognlse:d for all taxatk t.emp.o,ary differen.ces 
Deforred ta:,; aue:t$ ~r.e recogntsed for all deductible te.mpo,jry dUfe.ren.cesj lhe C3f,Y forw.ttd of"unuscd tax ct~dibarid .in.~ unused t:l:x lo}$es to t he 4;!:C.t~rit 

tfolt it ls p_roba"ble-that bJ,c-ab-li! profits wiU bt! available ac~inst which tho$"e-dedL.lctibte tempor.1,v differen,e$ <:an b~ 01ilis.ed Suc:b deferr@d tax assl!H .11:id 
llllblUttts-ar@ 11ot tecogri1sed 1f tfle,ten,pofa{Y differctl'e arf,.es from the (nitial rec:og~~lon (oth_(lr t han i.n a bw;,.ne.s; <:ombifti!lt,lan) of-as.sets and llcibillties ~b a 
tran,sactfon th.at -affects n@ltber the ~aiable. proltt nor the accountine profi(, In additton. de.(ened tax li~bilitiCi. ar~ not rcrc.ognlsed ff the tttTIF)C>raty 
dltfe,ence arlse1 from the: lJ,iHaJ rt!cognlUoo of ~QodwNL 

Tt,e ur,-.,.l11e, amount of dl!!forred tax a.ssets lS Fevie-wed at the end of" each r,eportircc. period and redoced to t he e:d ent that ll Ii no lonect prob3bl~ that 
suffic.fonl t i!xable prgfib wllJ be ~v.1i&ablc to alkw.-.afl or part of the astEt l0 ~ te-covtred, 

f>efoned fa·,c babilitie.s and .a}Siets-are mea,s·ure.d at t ire tu ra.tes. that are !JCpotted tp apply in tr,e pe(iod in which rbe l1a61llt-y 1s settli?d c;,r t~i;! ii-}~~ ,ealii~d. 
ha sod on t11x ,ate?S j'a_nd tA:K htW$) thil have-be.en enac:ted o r subna·ntn1el•ftfnaued bv tire end of.t.f;"~ re~rttnt perK>d. 

y 
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1 
2020 

(AU •mounts in INR Oore-, trnles~ othrfY<h-f! .staled) 

jgl Prop-ertv .. plant and @quip,nent 

FreehQ~ 1~.nd ,s c,arrfe·d at Muortc.al cost,, Alt o<het items of p,Opei\v, plant iHld <:quiprN:nt ;;fe nate-d at historical ,ost less Cfopre<.ltHJbr1 krstorftal cost 
loc.lvciel expcnd,t!.11.4!' th.al. is d1recJly ilttr1butabJQ to the a~qoi~ition of the. items. The c.ost of ptoperrv, p l~nt and equipment <icqUired In a busin~ss 

combir1•tioo 1s recorcted at rair va lu,e. oo the d.ate cf ~,qwsrtlon. 

Subsequeni cos1s ~re illcCltwad In th@ -as,set~s carrylns ~mQ\Jflt -or recog,11~td ;u a ..separate a.sset, .l.$ appropriatt'-, o nly 'whel'J lt Is probable ~~at future 

rtot.-omlc benefits assoc:iatQd with thi'!. lttim wlll flow to the Conn.:i;iny ~f'ld the cost of tht1 l\e m can tie me~su,ed rellibt~ The carrying 11rnotJnt o, a.n.y 

CQfflf)Oru.rnt .accounted for as a 1ep.-1rate. aneit Is d~ft!.C.bgnl!.ed when r,placed. ,All othi?r 1epalrs artd mafntenan,e are charged ttJ profit or loss dtJ(lng the 
reporting pefi.O;d in whkh t.My are ini::orred, 

Ol?p<eclation r11ett'!ods:, estimat@d useful live-, .ind residual value 

0,::prec\itiori is. u !Culated using the $~r:aii;:ht--lfne method to alloc~te theit cos,t, ne.t oJ rheir 1esiduf!I vall..ies,. over theh es.t~r:na.ted userul lilte.i as fallow,: 

prope_rty~ Plant and EquJpment. Nu:mbt r of Yeats 
f'Janc ind £quipr:nc:nt 15 y'eacs 
Offic;e f~oipl'T'ttnt S Vt',ArS 

,i:=um.i\Ute, ~ixture and 01her Fittings" 7 yean 
Lea~hold Improvement• Lease t erm or 7 year'$, W'hkheveris rdWer 
Vehick? ave.ears 
Comp(Jters {Eod Us.er Oevlc~l 3-ve.irs 
Comj:luteu (other tn.ari Encl U.ser Ot\/lc:e) 6yieim 

'Base:-d oo ttt hnkal evaluation, the maiu_g-emMtmlli~ves lhat tfle usefof ti•.les- .. s f!iven above be~, represent the period over Wh'ich n,an.,e,etl'K!nt <!X.pec\_s tc 
use tl~e-~e ~ssets_ Hence. the u.seful hves to~ th~se ~,;,sets~ dlfferol!nt frqm lhe us.eJul lives ~s pfescribed undctr Part C of ~he·dule II of 01e Companles AC'. t 
2013, 

The r~s'CiuaJ Valutl, esUmated U)eful lives ond mothods of deprec.ation ,11,e reviewed ·al the end of each reporting pftriod -and the effect of a,iy t hange.s In 
estimit e Js accounted for prospectrvely, 

Assets-field un<fer fi" ince !e:,u•s ate d(!pretiat~ o~r the tr expeded u~fL" 1/v~, cm tl'.\e Sarne basf$ o,s owned' usou. How~er, when lhere is. no reas.ori:able. 
certainty that ownl!rsh1p ~il1 be obtainctd by th~ end ot the lease te,m, GIJ.seU are. de.pre-d;,le'tl t111er tJle .shorter of the le-as~ term <>nd thidt u:M!:ful Uves. 

An item of pr.ope<ty, phmt Al'ld l!qlJipmer.t Is dereuigl'.li,\'+#<f 1,.1po" dltpos:al or When 110 fut:un~ ~onomk beneflu-are e:.tp,ttcttd to ;Hise from lhl:! contJr.iued t.tst­
of U'~e .useL Any Cillf1 o r loss· '1rising on the. dispos:al or reu,~mentof an item of property, pl.anl and equii,m-e.nt is d~termin~d as the diffl! t'(Wtt!. between the 
sale$ proceeds and the ca1rylng ilmount of the a.sset and is ,:t.>c;ognl~~d in profit or loss. 

(h) ln1"'1glble OS$el$ 

Good.Will 

G'ooctwllt a rblns on an ;u;:qt,sisitioo oJ .i bu.,.srness fs cauied at t(lsi iil'S e.s;ablis.hed at t,he ddte oJ acQu1SlUoJJ ol the bu51n.e.ss le$J. .ice:um\llatid impaJrmeoL 
Iossa-Sc ff dn',' 

For the pl/tpose.s of Jmµ:airment te.5t1ng. goodwlll is allocated t6 lhe Company's c.ish•gene,_.Hn,g untlf_(Or groups of t•s:h-e-encrat!flg uni1S) that l.s e1tpecte-d to 
benefit flom t.t,I!' atq:ois.lt;ion. 

A cash•i:::~nerabng onlt to which goodwill has beer} allocated i.s tcsttd for fmpaicfnenl-annualty, or- mofl!! 1r!'Qa~rtlV when there is an ir1dication that t he unit 
may b.e imp.,ir-e<I If 1h~ rc<o ... erablt! amount of the c.ash·i:erieratlog,unit is,~l!'SS ttian its ca rrying am.ount,. t he lmp.tlTmef'lt lo.n ~ allocated fir.st to redu,e t he 
carfYH1g • mount of anv p,oodwUI 31locatcd lo lhe unit.arid th.~n to the other ;if.s:SQts of the unit pro rata ba$ed oo the c.1rrytng amount of each asset in the 
IJq.it Any fmp.1frm1rnt k>ss far jOOdwilt is rec:.oen1s.ed dltt!tt~ ln pcofi;t or IQ~"S" An Jmptfrment loss recognised for goodwill is riot rever.se-d II\ ,SlJb!eque11I 
periods, 

On dlsposa.l of the.- rcd@Vdlrtt t ash•ge11eratinP. unil, the a.ttNb\Jtabl'e amotmt of goodwill iS included in the.dct<u mrnation or the!: profit or ton on dis'PQsal 

Other 1ntahgible auiets 

Intangible ass'ef.$ wi,h finite uie;ul lives that are iilcquir~d ~ep.i'~tely ~re c;,uiled j \ cos-t.le:ss acc\JmUl~te·d 1Jmortiswtion ~nd attun,ulated hnpaument IO$~S. 
Amottisation is recogJljsed on a stfiiJiehj•Hne b.asi:s·ove, their estimated t1seful live-s. Th~ c !:tlm;ned use,ful lffe ~fld amortis;ttion method are te-\l'll!Wed at the 
end of uch reporting period, wrth 1he eH~ct of any chang~:s in E!$tfmate beini ,1ccount(!:d for on a prO~pect.i\fe ba$is, !rt;.ng:!~f' auots with 1ttde:Rnhe U$e,ful 
l"ives thi!t ,11re ~cqUlrod :tep:ar.:.t'e'v arl;! i;a,ried it ,0$\ htu •t:eumulau,d lmpail'mr;mt h~.s~:;. 

A(nortiS:atJOn methods irnd p@riods 

Theo Comp1,ny amurttses lntan,gtble a s-sets w"rt,t, ii finlte u.sef,Jtllfo.using t,he s\rat~ht•li11«:- method ov<H t~c- following pe.riod.s..: 

Licen~~ rte:ht-s 
Computer softw.jt;re 
T~c-1'nkal ~oow-tlow 

Trademarld & o.ther inti:lleJ;tu~I property flghh 

6ver the period of lk:er1se, 
6 year.s 
4 ve11f5 

4ye.ars 

Afl int.antibtc .1sSt1t f> d!:!:recog,i'5ed M d/spcm~t, or when rl.u future econom1e: benefns ;are expected from u.se o,. drst,1:1s.al. Gain~ or lQsse-$ a,fsi!lg (,om 
derecoi;nition ot an mt3ngJbl£1 .>sse-~, rne; sured as the dif(4!:ret1ce be~waen tl>e net disp0sal proteeds ~nd t he car,vmg arrro\J'l'lt onh~ a~set. i!re r~co~i~d In 
profit or lois whef1 tlw "s-s~ ~~ der@co_g-n4~d. 
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(AJl;amounts·;·n INfl Crorc.. unlns-oltterwise riate:d) 

{I) tmpafrm(!nt of nQn financial a.ssets 

At the end c( ea,t-i reporting porrod, th~ tornp~nv re-\'i@W$ the <auyrnc amount~ ol lts t.angibk! ~nd intJn,g;bJe: assets to dttfrmlne whethe, there rs any 

lndkat~n \~al those a:;nts ~ave s1,1tfefed .an impalffflCf\l lors ){ any $Uch Indication exlrts, the. re<,0verable amount or the )~stt Is estir'f\.ll!!d ln orde.r to 

detefmlOC? the extent i;>f H•e fmpairn,ef't los$ (if iny) W"en it 15 not poss(ble to E!stl,n_.\te t he re., .ovet,lble-amount of 4n indi"'1.'dual am.u, the. Cotnp;iny 
estimatf:.S the r~e.ovt-rablo& ~mouot of the cash-g.enerating unit lo which tj,e a~set belor,g:s-, Whon ::i f8-.ISOA..lbk' .arld consistent b.;.~is o1 al1P4;::atloo ~an be 

1de:t1tifl~'d, t~tpor,nE'! as~~~s \ire al$0 aJIO(:.Jt~d Lo fl"tdMdual cash•gen-erat/ng units., or otherwi~ ttie.y afe allotitl'W ,Q the im~·nes-t e:,oup o, cuh,;gene,atin@. 
l.Jnih for which a rea·1onable-a·nd conslstP.nt aHoca.uc;m bash c,an be Ment~fied, 

Kecoverab1e amount is the higher of farr value le,ss costs of disposal and "alue in use, ln t1sresslng .. ;atue In m~1 th·e estimated ftiture cash flows are 
~1$"-:o.umcd to lhclr pr~sent value using a pre~tax discoijnt rate tl111ineflt<ct$ <ufrt::nt mof li:Ct a.ss~ssmepts of tbe Ume ,value of mone_y and the r is"s spe<:ifi, to 
the cisset for which lhe estimatc.s Of fulUrl! osll nows t..:1ve. r.ot been adjusted. 

ff \he fecoverable 1tmCOnl of' an as~t (¢.r c·ash-gt!ne(atlng unitl Is esUrnated to ~e le-ss thtn ils UHyfng 11niourtt. tfie e:anyin'g .amount: of the, asset (or ,;ash• 
genel'ating unit) is reduced to 1,s-re-c<>verablt? aroount. A.n lrnpalrm~nt IQss ~ re(.6gnlse,d imme-dr.itety in profito, loss, 

Whe" an iMpa!rmeo\ las.s subsequently r~vors<"J~ the carf)'ing 3mount oJ tile- as.set (or a c:ash•gener.tting Unit) is increased to the revised estimate of iB 

recoverable timo1Jnt, but. so that thelnqea$'ed c:arrying amqunt doe.s not exce~d tt'ie c:_a1ry1ng amounJ that would hav@: b~en de\etmin.ecf h..,d no imp~irment 
loss been recog:nfse-d for the H~~t (otc.u:h,£1:!Mfiltlng.untt) lnpri~(ye.\f3.. A re.1,1er~t oJ .m tmpifrrnefltlOss is rcwt,1l1Jtd imn~i .. l@IY In ptofit.or k:t.u~ 

I.ii l nventorlu 
lnve.ntQrle,s- are stated at the lower of .cost and aet reJlrsable '1311.f~. Co-sts of lt\,Jt_ntoriP..s ani .P-et~rrnine(f on we(ehted averiiilge buis, Cost of lnvt!11torle!. 

comprise or co5t of pureh,asfo ari.d other reJaUfd cost incurred in bringing the in.ventoriQs tothej, prPs(!nt loc:atloe and con_d{tior:i. 

(k) PtovtsionS,, conti111ent 11.abmtv ind condng•nt asseu 
P101'iSions ~re: recoeniscd V1hen tht- Co"fti.t,aliy has a pr't!S(!nt obUga1Jo11 (legal or constrvctivet as- a result of_., p:u_t ewmt, tt Js. ptobitble that th"e Company Will 
b~ requir"ed to settfe the oblig_oition1 and a r~lh1blt estimate Can be made of the a;mwnt ofthe-obligaUon 

Tt.e ·amount rccognis-ed as a s,rOVision is the ,best estim11te of th~ conskferation f'<:-~Ult'<!d lo setti~ the pre,,:;ent oblit::ation at the «:-nd of the reportfng period, 
taking into .tccount th~ ,l~ks '<Ind u.ncert'ainhes. surro·undins the qbli1:;1ti()n, When 3 provl~to" t~ tne~su,~d u~ ng the. cash nows estimate(! to .sente the 
~fresenr obtig~tion, ,ts Carrying. amount l1-th"1t present value of (hose cast, flows I when ~he effect oft'het tme wilt.111! of fnt:Htey ls materlal). 

Whe-n ,:;Qme q r all of the ecooomic bencftls- rcqult.ed to setHe a provisfon are -experted to be f4H:(5Yered from~ tlilrd p.lrt~, a recolvabl~ Is recogn~ed as ~m 

,met If l? ls 1,•lttuallv cert,ain that reimbur~ment wlll be,re.ctil:td and lh-t. amount of the.receivable can be meas.ured reliably. 

A pte~nt obljgation that arises from fAl1ot evenu whe~ it i> either notp,ob;,ble·thilt.an 6utnow of resqurce$ will be required to sertleor.i reHabk estimat~ 

of the .lmounr u nnot be made1 is disciosed na <.ontingent liilbffitv, Cootlng_eM 11.lbU(tk s atf?'also d1:scfowd when there fs a pQnible o~!gation arisln.gf_ro.n, 

past cwnts, th.e e.xlst~nce of which wi11,be c-on1irmed cnly bv th"e occurrence ot ,,on•O(Ctlrr~_nte of· one or rno,-e. Uncertain future events not whoHy wrth1n 
the «mtrot of tht Company_ 

Claims,agafnst the Company i;..here the posslbiUty of .-."y ootOowof r.esources In ~ ttlemen\ Js remo.te, ilre not d i.sdose·d .JS conti,,gen.t llablUtfes.-

Contlngent as~ts are oo,, f~<Qlfllsed io tlnanclal .staten1@nts srnc~ thJs ,riay result in lhe ,~cognition of income that may ne-1/it-, bt reatlscd. HoW~"~t. y,.,f;en 
th6 r@ali.$~t1ori of Income is virtually cert-iin, then t he rclated.a'net ts not :!I c·ontlng.ent c1s.set ar1d is recosriised. 

{I} Ffnilnciill "instruments 

Ftl'\~ntial a$Sets-and finaqcla1 ljabilitits are recogniled When the Company b@.c.omes a J)Arty to the co1Jl~c;tval p,oviskms otthe instromenu, 

Financial -assen and fmanclat ll3bllltles art inlltalty mea~ured at fair valoe, Tf,l.nsaction costs thar at<!: dtrnctly att11butable to the acquisition or isstie· or 
fin.sndal asse.ls and finan<ial llabilt\res (o.tbar th.-n !Inane.al assets and financial liabilities at f~ir valtJ~ thrcu_gt, profit or loss) .1re ~dded to Cr d~ducted f1om 
the fail value: of the finandal auets o r finan<.iolll liabilities, ;;is appropri.at~, on Initial r<:!C(lgrtltion, 'tra~i:ld-iori wsts dlr«tho attributable to the .acqu"fsitron of 

financli1 a.s~ts o, f(nancl.il liabilities al fair value through prof rt:~ Ion are recogntstd tmml'.ldlateJv In profit or loss, 

(J) Anandal assets 

A.II re'wt.1, W;JV purchiiStt.s o r s.a.le-f Oti fi]\andal,.as~ts ate recognised, aod d-er~cogl\i}ed an o1 trad@ date basis. Rigu(a(' W':JV l)lltcila~, or sales ar, purchases 
or n~:. of fl•oancio~ a~sets that require delivery of .tMets Within th~ time: frame.established by reguli!tfOn Qr coo~ntlon in the ma,ketplace_ 

All ,e'-ogntsl'O 'fTMt'ICi'al aS~t-s-are 54.,1bsequeotlv measun:d ill' their entirety -at e.ither ~morti:wd cost or fair value~ d"epending on the classffK:~lion of' t_ht: 
fin:snda1 aueu 

C_l.ifflfication of fina11<ial ·as.Hts 

(tj Debt Instruments at amortised CQS1 
A d~b\ Fn!ttt.1m~nt rs rne.utJr.ed .Ji Amort~ed'Cost if it Is held Within il b.Jsfoa:!.!. mod~l whose ObJcctN"t is to ho ld the a$sel in order to w llect cont"'<tua\iash 
(lows and the tQ"tn~c:tu~I t.em1»of th~ fimmcfal A.s.sel give rise On specified dates-to ash flows thot'olre :S~t-ty payqu!:nJs of ptir,clpal and 1ntere.st oo !;he 
pr(nclpal amount .outsta.nding. 

12) O~bt in!.1:rtunent at Fair v11lue: th104.11h other compr•hensiva- income: (FVTOCI) 

A debt rnstn:iment i$ meas:ured at FVTOCt ff It ls. tleld w1thln ~ t:t1Sf11ess model who.sl;!' ohfe~lvt> is ochiC"ved by botn collectlne. CM\1itCiu.:1l c:as.h flow!. and 

selling Fimrnc.tal Asse:u and the , o,.l,ii!cttlal terms of the Fiitii!ndjl As.set eive rts, on $PQC11f<id dat_b to caSh flows. that are sol.eJy pavm.enl$ of ptm_c:lp;d ~nd 
in~er~\ot1 the principal :amount outstanding. 
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(3] O~b.t-lnstrum@nt at Fatr value. through profit and Ion (FVTPL) 
O~bl lnsJrur'nt'nts th3l do not meet the amortised cos.t Criteria c·, MOO t tltl'!rla (s-ee above) arl! rneaslhed il~ FVlPL In addtt/on, d@br lnstwmtnt.s th~t 

me~t tht' amortl,ad etnt cntefli Ot\he •~VlOCI rnterfa b~t •ue de!>lgni!ted u .at MPL 11-C!! rf1eas1Jre d• at i:'ViPL. 

{Al Equity investments 

All fqUlt',I htlll!'stniei'lh are n,cuored at fair value4 with value. c-hane,tt ,teognrstd In Sratembnl of t'roflt and Loss, except· for those et:1u,ty fnV(TSt'n'lt-na fer 

whkh the company has elected t o pcesent thtl' value ch:rngu in 'Othe, C.Ompre-hcndve lnc.omc'. 

lmj:>1,Jtmeht of flnandal a.n@ts 

The Company ('l!C.QflOll eS" lo~ aHowomc,1H iJShit, th:c e-)(ptr.t~d U('dtt° IOU (Etl) model fo, the. rlt'hl"ct;il as.sea Which a,~ not fil( 1/~tued throueh profit Qf lo~. 
Lo.s~ allowance fo, tfdd.e re<.~iv.bles Wifh ,no stgnifKant'ffn-ancio, t0'1'lPQoent i$1Tl(!<1,su-,ed o1t an amount equal (o llfet◄mP. ECl. for all o~htr fina•ncial as¾!ts_. 
ei pected cre,,dh: los:ses. are me,esurt>d at l!n amount equal co tbe 12-monU, ECL, un\~u .the,e ha:. been 11 .s4gnificanl incr.eaJe In credl1 rbi~ t,cm mffia1 
rccog!litk>n rn t.thi<h c-.i1.se tf,ose.-ar.e ,n&:t$uf~d at lifetin1@ fC.l. Th~ amount ol ~xpe.ct'~d credJt to~e-s (ot revi!rsall th.lt {s ,eouir~d to adjust t~e loss-alloWince 

~t tt>e reportine ~•te to the .,mount tllat is. re.qtlir~-d to be r~cognhed i$ teco·g:nized as-a n imp.aifrnellt eaio or (oss in statement of profit or l-os.s. 

Dt!(eCO&nltion 

T~e Corn~any der~t"9e'1is~::; 1 financial·asset whi;n the.c~ntri:lctual rfgh\i lo the t i:1$h flOV1s from the a~ t ,expire, i;irwhen it t·,,e:f\sfers th.i:fi~nclalas.set a"d 
stibstilnl~ll'if all t.h<' rl-slfs-a·nd rew;,td~ of owrit"rship Of tM a's~-•ft, toltoother· part\'. If the COml).an\i neither tfarisforS-l'!Or 1etaihS subsu:ntrallv alt the. t l$~S ~nd 

re~rUs of ownenhip and ,ontinue:. to controi the t ran,sfured u.se\, the Company recognlses its retained l'nte-rest in the-.c1ss-et and illn a,sociatc9 ~iilbifity for 

amounts it mav h1we to p;y. If t"_e Company retai-ns subsfMH~lly a11 the 1isks and rewards of ownership of it tr.ansfor,ed finaflCial asset, ttie Compan¥ 
cont1s,ue:$ t o recogo:tu~ the fmanc£al n sel an.d a:lso recogoiies a collateraJBed bo r1.owtng for the proceeds rece.ive:d. 

(Ii) FinilrKial Uabiltie s f nd equity in$lrumenb 

Clanification as debt ot rqulty 

Debt" and eq Uity instn.lmen\s 1$$ued bv e CQm~riv entity are. cliiss:ifi(!<i as- e.ither'fihaoctal liiibili\ie.$,Of • ~ eqLlity In -aa;:.i;:irdJnce w it~ the subtt3f\Cc of the 

C:ol'Mtictual arrangemenls and't he det111itlo11s of a flna.n.dal li:tbillty and art e:qu1ry 1nstn.1ment. 

Eq'-'ity instruments 
,l\n equity instrume-rtt is i ny-e.ontrdct ~hat @v!dences a tl!!Sldual fn teriest In the .JSS"ts of an entlty after d4tduc.tlng all ~f its flQbirrt:les, E~vitv PMtrvments. iS"S\JCQ 
by thc,erolity ;:are re<.ogriised at th proceeds r1te:eiv-es.i, oe~ ofdi1e(:t-is~ue coMt; 

CQmpouod financial instrument5 
Th-c? component par.ts of COJJlpo\Jod finanJ:"ial' lnstn.t.r:nents js.sue d by 1(1e Corn~nv are du~ified ,sep.aldl"ely as tino1nciaJ ti'a,b[litie.s a{ld e 9mt:v in accwdanc.t!. 
Wrtl\ the! substance of the: coritractuat aH~neements: and 1he duf1nitlons of -a f~nanci.1;1 liability artd an equitv lr'lstrumer\t. A con'\#ersicn option t h•t wtll b.e 

.s,e.ltled by tile exchange of a fixed amount of c'ash o r anO'-her fimmdal ~sset for~ #heed number of the Company'.s own ~q.urty 1nstwmenu is •n equtty 
rnstn,1men.t. 

At the date of 1$$-i.11?, the- fair value of the. liability compone{\t fs-esti'mated using the prevalUnc market i11tc,est tate for similar non-co rwe rtibJe lnst4UtrA!nts. 
Thfs amourtl t~ recognised as a liability' On a11 -amortised cost bash using the e.ffective fnterest method until extinguished u~ n convE!rsion o, at the 
u1suumcnt's rnat\Jtil\' dat'e 

Th! conve tsron o~t.On class.med as equitv fs dete1mined by <led <Jctin,:: the·:amount of, the- Jiabiht,y c:omponent from the fa it value of th~ compound financial 
Instrument as a whole. This is recogn-isr.d and included i~ equity, net of inco111e tax.,effec:ts, and is flOt subse·que,-.ttv reme;nure d. In addit40n1 the Conve,sioQ 
optlOq classff~ <is equi,v will remain in equity ur,til the-conve:rs.ion opt:.Oq is exercised. in whtch case, the balilnce: recognjse.d In 1c>qutt-y win be trar'ldC?r,red :to 
ottie, component of equitv. Wh1H'I th~conversion optlbn remains unex<!rt:1se<I at ttie. matut~ty date of the e:onv<!tti)ile Instrument, the balahc~ ftcognl$ed In 

tqufty wm bo t~ansfem.-d t o ,e.rnlr,ed e.a,nl~ts. No g.1m or lo~~ ti rc<"Qgnh:<id In profit ot k>si upon t orw~r~lon 01 c11.pil"atlon of the conversion optl"on1 

1,ansatJ.fOn c:o~s that re<lar!! to th~ trsue of the <,01w@nit>I~ notes,.are al_loo.at~d to th!! lrab(llty a.nd ~uaty comP.QMt\ts in prnportion to the all~adon oTthe 

erQ.SS pro·cccds., Transa,tjoo costs rdat1nc to Hi<! equity comp<m.cnt are ,e.cognfM."'C:! dirc,ttv in equity, Tranuct(on cost~ re!Mi.n.e. t o the lii biljty cQmpont"nt 
:.,re included in th.e c:arryln& amount o(\he liability component aOO afe- amortised over the live·s of the convertible: notes using \he eJtectJve. interP.$\ me1hod, 

f"fn-a:nclal llabilfttl!.5 
All fioanc.lal UabjJitles ~re !,,Ubsequ_enUy measun-d at a.mo,rtf~d cost usine the ef.fe_QiYe lnte re.st rnethod or at fVTPL 

Financial liabilili.es,subseque-ntly measured at amortiSed c-ost 

Fi•n.anctal liabilities that ate not held-for-trading_ ~nd ·are not desj~aled -.as at F-VTPl are mea-$(.!red ill amortise·d cost al the end or subsequent .accountmg 

P!riod.$". l he. c.-.a, ryi'nE. -amounts ()I flnandal liabilitk!$ that are subseq_ue.ntlV meuured at amortised CQ:St are det ermlne..d based on the- effe~~e- mterest 
method, l,ntor~sl e~peme t_hat ls not t:Dplt,1i1s~d u oart of <.ost sot an aSsl'.!:t ls 1nc1udcd 1_ruhe 'Fina!\c:f!' costs' line. Item. 

The effe<:Jiw 'interest lt,ethod 1$ a me.thod of calcuhirtng·ttie amo(tfsed cost of i f~ancla1 li,ablllty and o1 allocatirii lntere~ expen&(' over the rfl,e,\lan\ pertod 

The effective int~rc.-st rate ris. l!:le rate thi t e)CijC.t1V d iS(o1.m1.S e~Jlma:ed f\Jtu re c~~h payment~ (1ncludil"li 4111 fee s. and points patd or 1cceive.d t!Jat form an 

mtegral pan. of \he effecfo1e lnte,est rate, transac.t1on CQsts an.d other premloms or d iS<'.Qurus) thrQugh the exp~c:le:d life oft),~ !in~ntlal liabllitv, or (whe:te 
appropriate) a -shorter pl:!1'100~ to th~ net carryfng . .amount -on tnlUal ((!C:c>glutio•n. 

Oerecognltlon ~ finandal Uabllltfl!s 
The Comvhy de,ec.of!nlses fln:tnlJal 'l1~b1li\Je5 when, and onlv wt;leri, t he_ (Ofllpan'fs obl1gatJoos a,e. dJschougcd, c~ncellf!d of h.lYI? e!cl(plr~. An <1:11.chang-c 

bttWtien With a leod~r of d tbt ll'tstrumcn,u \ytth .Sl.ibstantl:Jlly dlffe.rerit ttt'rn$ ts ac.col.mttd ror "ls aA exting_ul.JhMtnt (If the o riginal fi"a"cl:111 l,ablllty ,1nd lho 
ret".Qftflitton of ,; new (inanc:bl hability Simfl:irly, a subst~ntl'at modlfK'att0h or tJle te_rmsof ,1n ·e:ds:tlog Hnan.ct~l ltabiliW (whether Qr npt attrib4table. tQ the 

finilncial dittiJ;Ultv of the d.ebto r) is iC~Q(.mte:d for o1s an rxtineoishmenl of tt,e origin-al flnanclal fn,blliW ;;rnd lhe- recQ_gnillon of a new Hni:1nC:i~l l1abHitv, The.' 
diffe rt>nt.e between the,carl)'lt1g amount' of tM flnirncjal liab1lity de,rec~otsed and th.e col\Sl~eration pi!iid and pavable is n?CQ&ni.sed Jn profrt o r loss,. 
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FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL_SJATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 
(All a(Oounts in INR C,ore; 1.ml~s o th~tWIK ri.attiij 

Off~tt_rng of flnandal tnstrum,ents 

F~nanctaJ .tst@ts a~n·d fin_anc iat ti~bilitie.s are offset ar,d the ne t amounr 1s , eported in the balance 1he-et irthere Is a cun @nt ly enfonC!-abre l~t-al right to offset 

the ofCCogn1sedamount's and th.ere it an mtentfon to5e.Ule-on ~ net b:.sis, to rl!a1ue. the ~ssets and sett I~ the Oabllities.simuJt-an.eousty1 

Casti a,id c.aili equlvalent In .th~ halance sheet t omprlSe. ciuh at Mnll.~ and,oo hand and .s.hort-,erm c;lepositi w4tll &'I or"40t1.il rnaturitv of three monttlS or 
les5, which are s.ubJoct to an in~gntflcant rfak of ch;,nges in Voltie.. 

Fur. the fMJfpos.e pf the. $1:atemjtot of eash nowS', c.nh and casb equjvatents.(onsist-0f c . .i.sh an.d .$h~rHern1 deposits, u. defined above, "el o, ou\st(lridinR 
bahl- o .;erdra(ts as thC':Y ilrC! consicforcd an i :,tegral part ctf (h.e ('.nmn11,iy'·-t r;111'$h mM;e.e·emt".nt~ 

(nl DMdend, 

ProvH!o n I$ ,,,-ade fo1 the amount o t any dfvicl~d det:late.d, b~lng appro~rtately author}o;e,r;f :1od rio foneer I t th~ disc,etion o f t/)C!! ~nnty, on Or-befo,e the 
end of th~ teportlng pe·riod b.u1 not d istributeQ .it the e:nd of th~ report(~ pt'.rlod. 

to} Earnr,,cs per4..hare 
Bask e,amlngs per .share 

S;;._,:ic. eamings per st'}are-ts calculated by divrding: 
... t ~e pro,ft ·attributab!~ to ownieu-o1 d i@ Com·paoy 

• bv \he weiP.hlP,d ilo'er~ge o~tnbQr of eqiihy $hil,e.$ ouut.·andlni;: durinr, the flnanc1d ve.-ar . .,i:1,ust(?d for bonus elemenls Jn· equity .sh•:es l»u~d ducine tn~ 

yeaf and eKclud inc treasu_ry shil res 

Dllut~d f.tmiflgsper ,:'1are 

D0uted earnif'l&S ~ ( share adjusts the figures usect In the detem;in.at ion of basic eamtng.s per shate: to take ~nlo a.!'.:<;aont: 
• the after lnto.n,e ta:ireftect of inte.,t-.s't .l.nd other nna.odngcosts a~ ociated with diluti\le pptendal e.qult~ 

- the weftflte.d a.~e,age. numbe.r of addltlonar e,qul{V ~.h.ar.u. that would have lN:tfn outsbndine: .a-s.sumillg the con~rsfon Ofall dlkltlirlf! 1;1otel)(tat 
t'Qi.lk't" .shares. 

Critlcal itttounUng Judg.emenb,. and key $0Uf.Ct-S of t.sdma1ion uncertainty 

lrt tfie. appl1C4ti'on of tllc., c;·omp1uw's i11Ccount'i_ng poJides, whk.h .are describe.d in Notll !, t.homanag~ri'H!•l)t of thl? Comp·any.are- requ{r~Q to mak.e:judge,:ne ntS;, 
estimates- an~ asSUml)tio.n5 ,a bot.rt the ear,vir,g amount-s of .ts.lets -.n•d ltabilil1e·s that are not readily ~ppare"t from olher SOUrl!.E·:s. the ert1mate1 .a.no 
i s;socl)ltd ~s.sumptlons are based on hlsto,ka.l experfe:nct ae1d Olhtr factors that a re considered to be relevant. Actu:,I ,ewlts Mi:IV differ fi'Qm t he,;e 
estfmates. 

lh~ e.sllmates ~ d uode:,lyint a~urnptlon1. are ,evit?wed on an onJoin·e b;1S~ ReWslo'nfto .iccourit(ng esd t'l"ljltes are re.cognlw d i{I the period in whi<:h the 
~rtrmo1te lj revised if the re\ljsfon affecu ot1ly that period, or In the pe,iod :of the revision and furu,e p~rtod.$ ff the reVisjOn affetb both ctJrn'.!•f't i f'd future 
periods. 

Crltle:211 J1,.1tfgemenb in aipplyinr acc.ountlng polfdu 

l he follow;nP. .ire the cntkat judgements, ap~rt frorn tho~e in-volvf"IJ ~tfmt1:tWJn51 that the dlreclofs• hav~ m'aUa- lrt the prnceS5· of applVtrie the.companv'5 
aci:ounUn·g polkies ,md thet have the. mos:t S!ID1lflcar,l i:Jft:ct on theamQlil't$ rrc;ogrfised r" the fin-ancial statements. 

(1) US4!ful lfvu-cf p,ape(ty1, plant an.(t eq~ipment 

Man.age,nerit rEl'Views-tt,e useful 'lt"11t-:s of p,opert'i, pl.i.nl and equipment .,H le~st once 3 vea,. S1.t<,t\ f.iVC$ afe ,de.'pendent u pon <ln -a.sseument of both the 
~ec11nica·I lives of dte il.s$.ets apli a-lso tMlr Okely' @c-onomic li"es· b11S--ed Qn Virious-iotert,al allcl @J(ternal raGtors 1ncludi{1g /e(atrve. efficienc:v i:lod c;iperatine 
c-on,s. I\C«Jtdiiigly, d.epreci..:l~e-livcs-a,e revlewe·d antHHllly ysing t~ best infcrmaHo'rf available to the Minagement. 

(ii) lmpifrrr,,nt of non ~n-lndal a u ets and gaodwill 

Oete,nirnlt1g wh't!:ther the .l5-s.et/goodwill is jmp.i1r1="d ,~qUl(e-s .1n •:rt.11nat.i0<1 of the. vnltJ~ In 1,1.se of tt,e (a~h-gef1er-tjng u.nlu to whkh ;)SseVgoo"dwlO '1~s 
b.eeo .il"louted. Thi:! va lue In use ccabJlation reqvire.s the. Compo.ny to e.:s:til'l\ate ~e fu:ture (ash flowHi::,i;pei:::'ted to arise from.the cash-getter~tine. unit. and-.! 

svitable:, d is.count n ttt ln order.to catrolate ,present Vii!lue, Wh~,e t he actu.al iuturr.c.ash flo·ws :a,e. rtss than.e:8'.pcded, a materf~t irnpairrne nt 1-0ss may .af~ro 

(11.IJ Valuation of deferred tax assets 

Th@ Company t l!:V1e!:WS t he tar,Y.ng amount ot deferred t l'>I ass~ts-at the el'u:I of e~d1 r'eportin.g period, 

(iv) O'efintd b•neftt plans 

tl,e -lP~l of the d~flncd ~nofit eratulty plan and other post·-errtployment medical benefit~ and th.e present Va!..iO: c f the gratuity oblt,galio11 a re d£>te.rmined. 
u~iQg ~®irial vatu&!lb-rts. Ari a:ctuatial Yal1,1~,iort irivolves flli~ine: v~riOtJs asSt.JtttµUons that may d lHe, from actual development~ tn tht ftitu re The:.se ll'l<'lude. 

the determination of the discoo11;1 rate , futu,e salary jnc·,ea.s~l am;! mortality rates. Due to the comple);.rttes 1,wol_yed f·n, th:e va:lt,1ation and its l,o"'g·lerm 
nature, a deftried benefit oblieauon ts highly s~n$41M! to chan.ge.s j_n the~~ assurpptions, All •mumpt lo.ns: are r<!-Ykw~ c1t each rttPort1ng date. 

(vi Ptov1dons and Co~Jngent liab~lttes. 

A pro~1sroo ts re<:'.ognlsed when th~ Compi'ny h~s a present o1>0g,..lion a1 a resull of pHt evtont and it is pro b.:tble lh;H .-" outnow of resoUrC'~s <NIii be. 

,eqift'rsed to settl.e tht obllgatfon, ln res~c\ of w~ich a, reli~bie u.s.timate c.an be made. These atf i-t''l(ewed at each Balance sh-eef dat(! and adjusted"to rt(lseert 
th~ ~u,rent be.st f-stimates 

lvi) R.\tvenutl' recognbJon 

The companv has recogo1sed .-e.Ye.nue am'ountrng to INR 444.20 <.To t<': ro1 sale of Lee CQQOper brand products- to <Nsto·mers dorlng Marth "31, 2D20 (Miirch 
3-1, 2019: INl\'498.3-S Cfore). l h'? w~torrier.s,.have the righc to returo the.-goodS'tf their Conn.1rners are dissatisfied·, The tomp;.ny h.a.s, there:foro~ ,e:cogn!sed 

revel'tue o.n these t.nmsaa.1oos wnh .a Cortfl'Spor!din& provrs"ioo ,a,g;;l'inst revenu~ for ertim4'ted tt"turns. 

(vlfl f:11pedt!:d « edit Lou on Trade Receivable. : 

The -Company !;Seterm'ine.s the iltow.i-nce for crt'dit losses ba_sed on hi$!o~ a1 to» ~l(-,;i,er1en·ce adj~sted to ref'lc!ct. curre.nt .and e!.tfm.ate:d fulure. e.c:0nomic 
oondlttOns. The Company con$ide:rtt1 <;.U" en! i!fnd .lnhc!pi:lte~ future -et:6no rT\1c;-coodit"\Om 
rehnmg to c:.ustomt:!rs ltlc Cor,,paf1V deals, Ill ~IGubtlng exi::recled ·credit lt,!.Su on U,ese fJnam:fal ·ilsJets a.,e- estimated us!og .t µ~vfsion maUfx ba.sed on the 
Company historical t redit IQss experienc.e, adJ1.med for ~ct.ors th•t are ~edflc to I.he debt-o rs, e,enefil tcQnomic crn1nditions and art a-ssessm~nt of bojh lhe­
('()rr.r,t .t.~ W4"11 3$ th-i!' forftca.St direction of conditioM at tlle r~portli,g d~l~. ,n.ck.1:dlr.g time ... a!tie ¢f r!'!oney iH•..d ~ s ta'ke-!".Tr.to J.a.Cl.!nt es!l:-:-:;:\tC$-C! pctsib!t! 
cff«t (rom the p~ndt!mlc- rc lc1un·g to COV10·19 

The Company .eva.fi.iate.s it ~n atnngemt-n\ quatifll?s to b~ a lea$e ,H per th~· ,equirem~n\s of Ind AS :Ut, 1centHlcatf011· oJ a lease requires jU:dg.meot. The 
Company us~· J\J.deement in 1~~ssfng thit lease t~,:m (l.ncluding-antkipated renewal.sf and rhe ;1pp(icable dbcolJnt r.att, 

lhe Compaoy delerrnin.es t.he: le«~ term .a.s: th~ t1on..c:ancellable period of a lease,, tonethe, With both periods C'()V'Qfed bv a11 optkm lo E!ll'lencl \he le.as, if 
the (o·rnpariy 1s· "'.isona~v certaln to e·x.crci:s(!. thal opcion_; a.nd perlOd,i co·ve<ed by an o;rtio.o to tf'tmfo.ite tl\e luie If t~ Comp.ln":Y r~asonably certa['n not 

to e-xi1:r! 1S:c tbat option. ]::, a5se_SaSif'IG \Yhethi,r the tU:mp~_Q)I ts rus..oriably c1trtain to eitt!-rc-ise an option t o e_xtenrt • l&iiS81 bi not t<.\ 1t1e.ercts0c ari -c,ptton ro 
termin•te a li?ase, U tOn$1ders ~II ro-lev,itnt fad.$ a/ld cifc1Jmst.i1ic:~s that <.1e.ahr a t11 ~01'0011,c- intt-Jttivc fot the <:ompany to: exerc,se 1h.e. tlj)UOr> to 1?11.Wnd t he 
~.ue, o r hOt to exorctsct the option lo termln1te the le.slSt'. The Coinp.;iny rcwscs: lh(l lUs<! tt"tm 1fttiete-1s ,1 ch~ni!,9. m lhe n.on•C~Acellabkl period of a Jeast> 

The dhcount rnt-e is genc,r.all~' based on lhe in( remC:rttal borrowlog rate of the compa.n¥. 
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FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 
(A.II .amounts in INR Crore, vnfess otherwise stated) 

!4, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 

Gross Block (At Cost/Deemed Cost) Deoreclation Net Bl~ck 
Desctlptions of Assets As at Deletions/ As at Asat Deletions/ As at Asat As at 

Ap,ril 1,,2019 
Additions 

Adiustm'ents March 31, 2020 Aprill, 2019 Adiustments 
Forthe Y.ear 

March 31, 2020 M,arch 31, 2-020 March 31, 2.019 

Leasehold Improvements 0.53 0.56 - 1.09 0.06 - 0.12 0.18 0.91 0.47 
Office Equipments 0.76 0.03 0.01 0.78 0.07 . 0.15 0.22 0.56 0.69 
Computers 0.72 0.20 0.01 0.91 0.19 0.01 0,23 0.41 o.so 0 .. 53 
Furniture, Fixtures and Other Fittings 2.78 0.95 0.19 "3.54 0.27 0.05 0.44 0.66 2.88 2.51 
Electrical Installations 0.64 0 .25 0.04 0,85 0.05 0.01 0.10 0.14 0.71 0.59 
Air Conditioner 1.50 0.09 . 1.59 0.03 . 0.10 0..13 1.46 1.47 
TOTAL 6.93 2.08 0.25 8.76 0.67 0 .. 07 1.14 1.74 7.02 6.26 

!capital work-in-progress 0~ 

Gross Block (At Cost/Dee_nied Co_st) Depreclatfon N.et Block 
Descriptions of Assets Asat Deletions/ Asat As at Deletions/ As at As·at Asat 

ADrll 1,2018 
Add.It Ions 

Adiustments March 31, 2019 ADril 1 2018 Adlustments 
For the Yea! March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Leasehold Improvements 0.17 0.40 0.04 o.s~ 0.01 0.01 0.06 0.06 .0.47 0.16 
Office Equipments 0.09 0.69 0.02 0.76" 0.02 0.01 0.06 0.07 0.69 0.07 
Computers 0,23 0.57 0 .08 0.72 0.0S O.Dl. 0.15 0.19 0.53 0.1.8 
Furniture, Fixtures and Other Fittings 1.38 1.89 0.49 2,78 0.08 0.09 0.28 0.27 2.51 1.30 
Electrical Installations 0.26 0.51 0.13 0.64 0.02 0.03 0.06 0.05 0.59 0.24 
Air Conditioner 0.08 1.45 0.03 1.50 0.01 0.Ql 0.03 0.03 1.47 0.07 
TOTAL 2.21 5.5"1. 0.79 6.93 0.19 0.16 0.64 0.67 6.26 2.02 

!capita l work-in-progress 0.291 

Notes: 

(ii Refer Note 31 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment. 

(ii) Refer Note 38 for details of charge against property, plant and equipment. 

<z 
t 
~ 
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FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2020 
(AU amou.nts in INR Crore, unless- otherwise statedl 

5. INTANGIBLEASSETS 

Gross Block Amortlsatlon/lmpallment Net Block 
Descriptions of Assets Asat 

Additions 
Deletl_ons/ Asat As.at Deletion.sf Amortisation lmp,airment As at Asat ~sat 

. April 1, 2019 Adlustments March 31, io20 April 1, 2019 AdJu.stments Fort.he Year For theY.ear March 31, 2020 M.iilrch 31, 202_0 March 31, 2019 

Goodwill (Refer Note below)_ 176.30 176.30 30.13 . . 50.63 80.76 95.54 146.17 

(A) 176.30 176.30 30.13 S0.63 80.76 9S.54 146.17 
Other Intangible assets 
Co1T1puter Software 0.16 . 0:16 . 0.03 0.03. 0.13 0.16 
T~c:hnical Know-How 26.46 . 26.4'6 4.29 7.38 . 11.67 14,79 22.17 
Trademarks & othe.r intellectual property rights 26.42 26.42 9.87 . 9.05 18:92 7.50 16.55 

(B) 53.04 53.04 14.16 16.46 . 30.62 22.42 38.88 

TOTAL (A)+ (8) 229.34 . 229.34 44.29 . 16.46 50.63 111.38 117.96 185.0S 

Gross Block Anrortfsatlon/1,npalrment Net Block 
Descrfptions of Assets As at 

Additjolls 
Deletlons/ M-at As at Deletions/ Amortl.~tlon lm~alrment 11,sat As at As.it 

Aorll 1 2018. Adjustments March 31, 2019 AJ>ril.1,2018 Adlustments FOr the Year For the Year March 31, 2019 f,1arch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Goodwill (Refer Note below) 176.30 . 176.30 30.13 30.13 146.17 176,30 

(A) 176.30 176·.30 . 30.13 30.13 146.17 176.30 
Other Intangible assets 
Com,puter Soft·ware 0.16 0.16 . . 0.16 
Technical Know-How 26.46 26.46 - 4.29 4.29 22.17 
Trademar.ks & other jntei1ectua1 property rights 26.42 26.42 4,35 . 5.52 9,87 16.5S 21.07 

(B) 26.42 26.62 53.04 4 .35 9.81 14.16 38.88 22.Q7 

TOTAL (A)+ (B) 202.72 26.62 22.9.34 4.35 9.81 30.13 44,2,9 185.05 198.37 

~ 

i· 
~ 
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FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIALSTA TfMENT$ FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 311 2020 
[AU .1mounu In lNlltrQre, 1,mle_ss ot)lerwis-e.';t.-tcd} 

Note: Impairment testlng of-goodvAU 

Goodwill .i<::qulred througfl business· combinations and "cence.s. wlth •indefinite lives has been allocated to lhe CG Us below, which are ..atso t he opefatlng actd repottable 3egments1 fof impairment- te:5t1f'g .;. 
• CGU : Lee Cooper Appa:rel 

••- -•----••• -• o--- ••••• -••- -v•-• •• .~-•• •-•- _,. ,-~- •••~•• ,.,_,._,..,,,._ .,,._. ..,., ,uun,• ,.,_. '-'""'-" ¥ ' theCGUs: 
lnt;,ngible Assets CGU : Lee Cooper Apparel 

March 31, 2020 March 3l., 2019 

Goodwill 95.54 146 . .17 

Ot!,er Intangible Assets with Indefinite rite 

fhe CJompany tests-whe.tl'ler go-odWIU has suffered any 1mPairmant on an annual bas(s. Tfre rec·overab!,: arr,ount of a ~sll gerreratlng un1t {CGU) Is determined based en value in use calculatiohs which re.qu).re t-he u se of assumptions. The calc:ulc1ti"Ol'\s use 
cash flow projections· based on fin·arida[ buQgets-approved by m-anagement. 

Ca:sh flows is e)(t,rapolat ~d uslng the es-tlrnated grpw'th rates. Tt,e-se growth rates are consi,;.tent with forecasts•included ir, industty report$ 5pcdfk to tlie industry in Which each CGlJ operates. 

The followin'8 table sets out the key assumpU011s used for value In use. calculatjon·s-

Management has determined the valuei assigned tQ tach.o f the ab'ove key assumptions as follows 

Assumptfon 

Re..,.enue growth rate 
EBITbA Margin ¾ 

Working capit-ll as a¾ to revenue 
Di.scount A.ate 

Approact, used to determ.ined values 

Average annual growth rate for forecast period l5 bctse~ ori p,st performance of the. brand and mangement1s e-Kpectations of preva·ilfng, m1'rket co ndltiom 

Ma-rragetnent fotecasl the ESlTOA¾ based on the current bu·sines~-s.truch,1re adjustin1rfor inflationary r,ncrease and not reflecting any fuu,.re restruct rlng or cosl-saV1n.g me.as.ures 
Worldni c-apit,a1% to revenue b.a sed·on the currcntbusines-s mode.I 

Re flee.ts specific rf_sks" relating to tbe relevant busln·ess· and lndu~try ln which it operates 

The recove,able:' a mount ot CGU de~ermfr,ed as per Ind AS 66 • lmpa1rmenrof As!.-eU ts INR 235.80 Crore 

Se.ositivity to chances in assumptkms 

The Jmplicatio..n~ of' th~ key assl:imp{io,n.s for the· retov~r.able amount are 4iscuned below: 
• - J ·- - . •• - ·~- , ·- --~·- · -· · ··- · -- --· ... ·- -•¥---·-- --·-··· 

P.articvlars 
Increase t,y 100 Decrease by 100 

ba.s is points basis points 
Revenue growth rate 16.14 (15.87) 
EBITDA M.argin % 16.39 (16.39)' 
wo,~ln:g capita! as ·a" to rei.oenoe (2.83) 2,83 
Ois,oun, Rate (12..35) 13.56 

Based on the Impairment testing c.,.rrlc.Q oul a.s pet various fac-tors elven above, the amount oflmpaitmentloss on Goodwill charced to statement of Profit a.od Joss ls. lNR 50.63 Crcre (March 3 1,- 2019: tNR .3Q.13 Cron:) 

"' 
f 
~ 
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(All amounts in INR Crore, unless otherwise stated) 

!6. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Non Current 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost 
Ban~ Deposits w ith more than 12 months maturity (With VAT authorities) 0.02 0.02 
Security Deposi ts LOS 0.87 

Total 1.07 0.89 

!1. NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS(NET) 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 3,l,, 2019 

Advance payments of tax (net of provision) 2.01 0.07 
Total 2.01 0.07 

IS, OTHER ASSETS 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Non Current 

C~pital Advances 0,07 0.06 
Prepald expenses 0.15 0.17 

Total 0.22 0.23 

Current 

Advances other than capital advances 
Advance to suppliers 0.32 5.4.l 
Advances to employees 0.02 0.04 

Others 

Prepaid. expenses 0.56 0.23 
Balances with Statutory, Government Authorities (Includes GST) 7.00 0.89 
Othe.r current assets 0 .20 0.11 

Tota.I 8.10 6.68 

19. INVE-NTORIES 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

(Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable value) 
Stock-in-trade 107.57 60 .. 75 
Packing materials 0.11 0.49 

Total 107.68 61.24 

! 10. TRADE. RECEIVABLES 

Part.iculars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

C1.1rrent 

Secured, considered good . . 

Unsecured, considered good 298.21 309.94 
Doubtful 8.02 . 
less: Allowa11ce for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance) (8.02) 

Total 298.21 309.94 

111, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Particu_lars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Balance~ with banks in current account 0.76 0.10 
Cheques on hand 25.50 
Cash on hand 0.02 0.01 

Total 0.78 25.61 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 
(•II arnounu U'l lNR Crore, unlen otbe,wise st1\e.d) 

U. SHARE CAP1T Al 

I Authorised Share Capital 

.Particular 

At March 31, 2018 

lncr~~se/(decrean) durtnc the year 
At Match 31, 2019 

lncrease/tdecre.ue} dorlng the vea.r 
At M arch 31, 1020 

Terms/rights attached to shares 
Equity Shares 

Equity Share of iNR )0 ead) 

N1,1mt;,er Amount 
~.99,900 0.40 

3,99/300 0.40 

3,99,900 0.40 

Cor'nputsontv Convertlblc.Pre{erence 

Share of INR 910 each 

Number Amount 

1,000 0.P9 
-

1,000 0,09 

(\,000) ,(0.09) 

Tbe company has equity .Shares having a ·par valu@ of INR 10 per'share. Each holder of equity shiilre i's. entitled to one vote p~r s hare. 

Gompulsorify Coiwe.rtible Preferenc;e 
S~are,of INR 910 each (Series H) 
ijumbl!r Amount 

100 0.01 
. 

100 0.01 
. 
100 0,01 

In the event of liquidation o.f tht! C.omp~ny, thll!-holders of equity sh;;ares will be entitled to receive re.maini.nt a,s.set$ of the company, i;ifter distribution of all prelere.ntial amounts, The. 
dl.suibutrons will be in prop·ortton to the number of equity.shares M id by the sl)areholders. 

Compulsorily Convertible Preferente shares (CCPS) 

CCPS Series 11:The Company hils CCPS'Series II h.av{ng a par value of INR 910 per sliare. CCPS 5eriu II shall oot carry any dividend. Each s hare. is convertible Into equity s hares of the company 

such that the perc.entage of CCPS holder1s .shareholding post C:Onver.sloe, is at least 2.5% of the e-qufty shares of the Ccmpanyon .:a f\tlly d iluted basis . Th~se shares are m.artd~to,Oy convertible 
in March 29, 2022. ·In the-event of liquidat ioo of the Comp.any, she holder of CCPSshilll rank s~niot to equity' s~:ues ~nd other clq;sses or .series of the share: c•pitill of the Company. 

ii. Issued, subscribed and paid up share capftal 

(a) Equity Share Ca~ital 

E~ulty .shar~s of INR 10 each issued, subscribed .aod fully p.ald 

At Apdl 1, 2018 
Issued during the per iod 

At March 311 2019 

Issued dur!og, the perlod cri conversion of CCPS Series. I 
At March 31, 2020 

(bl Convertible non·•participatlng preference share Cipital 

CCPS Series 11 

CCPS Serres II of INR 910 each issued,, subscribed-and fully paid 
At April 1, 2018 

h sued du"r'i:ie the period 

At March 311 2019 

fssued during ·H1e period 
At Mar<h 31, 2020 

(~} Compound Financial lnst.rument 
CCPS Setles I 

Equit ycomponentof CCPS of JNR. 910 each iuued, S1Jbscrfbed 

and ful(y paid 
At April 1, 2018 

Issued during the period 

At March 31, 2019 
Conv~rted during the period 

At March 31, 2020 

m. Details of shares held by holdfng company 

Numb.er 

2,S9,100 

2,59,100 
91,035 

J,50,13S 

Numb.er 

100 

100 

100 

Num~r 

1,000 

l,QOO 
{1,000) 

Amo•nt 

0,26 

0,26 

0 .09 
0.35 

Amount 

0.01 

0.01 

0.01 

Amount 

174,53 

174.83 
(174.83) 

Out of equity and preference shares i ssued by the company, shares held bv its holding c:omp.1nv ~r• :as below; 

Futur:eTrendz limited, holding company 
Equtry sha.rc,s 

f!,1arch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

3,50,135 

l\l'. De:talls of shareholders holding more thiln 5% shares in the comp-any 

Name•of th~ sh_arrhoktei' 

tquity shares of INR J.0 each fully paid 

Futore Trendz Umlted 

CCPS Series I of INR 910 each fully p•id 

Beacon Trusteeship ltmiled ( Trustee of FSRl CCPS Trust) 

CCPS Series ii of JNR 910 each fully paid 
n,dra tustornerl11sight Fund (an Attern.i-te Investment Fur.id) 

3,50,13S 100.00 

100 100,00 

Mat March 31, 2019 

Numher %holdifl( 

2,59,000 99.96 

1,000 )00.00 

100 100,00 

v. Future Trendz Limited, the t,olding romp-any· has .acquired from Seac;;on Trustee.ship limited ( Tr~ste~ of f~L CCP.S Trust), 10-l)O Compulsorily Convertible Preferec,ce Sh~re5(CCPS)-Serle.s l 
and 100 Equlty Sh,ares in ~he Company on february 04, 202P and the CCPS are then cor,verted into equity, 

vi. None cf thr sh11'(!S acl!: (eSe rVed fer issue under oplions, 
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I u. OTHER EQUn:Y 

P•rticulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

I. Reserves and Surplus 

(a) Se.curiti"es Premium 242.42 24.99 
(b) Retained Earnings 2.07 36.95 

ii. Other Components-of E'quity 1,00 175.33 

Total 245.49 237.27 

i , Reserves and Sur~us 

(a} Securities Premium 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
Balance at beginnt'ng of year 24.99 24.99 
Add: 

Conversion of'Compulsority Convertible Prefe-rence Shares (Serie-sf} 217.4J 

Balance at end of year 242.42 24,99 

The amount recf!ived in excess of face value of the shares is recognfsed in Securities premium. This is not available for distribution of 
dividend but can be utilised for issuing bonus shares. 

(bl Retained Earnints 

Marr;h 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
Balance at beginning of year 36.95 16.4l 
Net (Loss)/Profit for the year (34.6.1) 20.46 
Less; Transi tion Impact of IND AS 116 (Net of ta, Rs. 0.1 Crore) (0,18) -
Add: Items of Other Comprehensive Income directly recognised in R~talned Earnings (0.09) 0.07 

Reme.3,suremen't of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax 

Balance at end of year 2.07 36.95 

ii. Other Components of Equity 
Particulars March 31, 2020 Mar<t, 31,2019 

(a) Equity Component of Compound financial ir.1strument1 - 174,8-3 
(b) Financial guarantee given by ultima te holding company towards bc,nk credit facihty 1.()0 0.50 
obtained by the Company 

Total 1,00 175.33 

114. BORROWINGS 

Partkulats Marcl1 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Non Current Borrowings 

Unsecured -at amortised cost 
Liability Component o f Compound financial Instruments ' 42.69 

Less~ Current Maturit\i of liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments - 22.46 

Current Borrowings 

Secured Borrowings - at amortised cost 

Working C.apita1 loan from Banks 14,90 

Total 14.90 20.23 

lhe working c.apitat loan carrying mterest rate In th!! range of Current year 9 .50% to 10.50% (Previous Yea, NIL) is secured by ilrst charge o n 
a ll exbting and future current assets including flXed assets . 

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 

Futu re Trendz Umited1 lhe holding company has acquired from Seaec,o Trusteeship Limited (Trustee of FSRL CCPS Trust}i 1000 Compulsorily· 
Coovertjble Preference Shares and 100 equity Shares in the Company on February 04, 2020. 

Parttcufars 

Value of preference shares issu.ecf 

Equit y compone!"lt o( convertible instrument 
Non Current Borrowi,,gs 

Interest expense (including dividend distribution tax) 
Dividend paid 

March ill, 2020 March 31, 201~ 

250.00 
174 .83 

42.69 

11..B 
24.38 

~ ~ 
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115. INCOME TAX 

Deferred Tax 

PartlculaTS March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Deferred tax relates to the following: 
Deferr.ed tax llabillties 16.34) (21.76) 
Deferred tax assets 0.55 21.62 

Net Deferred tax liabilities !S.79' (0,14 

Movement in deferred tax liabilities/assets 

Recognised in 
Recogn~ed in 

Particulal'S 
Opening Recognised in 

retained 
other 

Closing balance 
balance profit or loss 

earnings 
comprehensive 

income 

For the year ended March 31, 2020 

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to: 

Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets (21.76) 15.42 . (6.34) 
Total deferred tax liabilities {21.76} 15.42 - - {6.34) 

Deferted tax assets in relation to: 

Provision for employee benefits 1.13 {0.82) . O.o3 0.3¢ 
CCPS related finance cost 17.04 (17.04) . . 

MAT credit entitlement 3.45 (3.45) . -
Unpaid Taxe5 . 0.02 . 0 .02 
IND A·S 116 -Transition Impact . - 0.10 . 0,.10 
IND AS 116 Impact . 0.09 . 0 .09 
Total deferred tax assets 21.62 {21.20) 0,10 0.03 0.55 

Net defer.red tax liabilities (0.14) (5.78) 0.10 0.03 (S.791 

For the year ended March 31, 2019 
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to: 

Property, plant and equipments ani;I intangible assets (4.76) (17.00) . - (21.761 
Total deferred tax liabilities (4.76) (17.00) . - (21.76) 

Deferred tax assets in relation to: 
,Provision for employee benefits (0.22) 1.38 (0.03) 1.13 
CCPS related finance cost 17.04 . - 17.04 
MAT credit entitlement - 3.45 . 3.45, 
Total deferred tax assets (0.22) 21.87 - (Q.03) 21.62 

Net deferred tax liabilifles (4.98) 4.87 . (0.03) (0.14) 

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set.off current tax assets and current tax liabmties and the deferred 

tax assets and deferred tax iiabliti'es relate to Income taxes levied by the same tax authority 

Major Components of Income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are as follows : 

i. Income tax recognised in profit or loss 

Current income tax charge 

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of earlier ye·ars 

Deferred tax 

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Income tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss 

ii. Income tax recognised in OCI 

(lncome)/loss on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 

Income tax (income)/expense recognised in OCI 

2019-20 

4.13 

5.78 

9.91 

2019-20 

10.03) 

(0.031 

2018-19! 

S.60 

{7.24) 

(4.87) 

{6.51) 

2018-19! 

0.03 

0.03 
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Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by Income tax rate for March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 

1 . 201;9~20 2019.191 

Accounting profit before Income tax (24.70) 13.95 
enacted tax rate in India(%) 

Income taiton accounting profits 

Effect of 

Additional Allowances 

Other non taJ<able income 

Non-0eductlble expenses for tax purposes: 

Impairment of Goodwill 

Other non dedo.ictib1e expenses (net) 

Interest on delayed payments of tax 

Utilisation of tax credit 

Current Tax Provision (A) 

Incremental Deferred Tax Liabtlity on account of Property, Plant and 

Equipment and ,Intangible Asset s 

ln,remental Deferred Tax Asset on account of Employee Benefits 

expense 

Incremental Def<?rred Tax Liability on account of sec 43B Items 

CCPS related finanGe cost 

IND AS 116 

Incremental Deferred Tax Asset on account of unutilised tax credit 

Deferred Tax ptovision (B) 

Total Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 
(A+B) 

Adjustment in respect of change in Income Ta~ Rate (refer note 1) 

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of earlier years 

Ta-x at effective income tax rate 

Note On Tax Rate Change : 

25.17% 34.94% 
(6.22) 4.87 

(3 .01) (10.63) 

12.74 10.53 

0 .61 5.36 
Q.17 

(4.70) 

4.13 5.60 

(9.35) 17,00 

0.72 (1.38) 

(0.02) 

17.04 (17.04) 

(0.09) 

3.45 (3.45) 
11.75 (4.87) 

15.87 0.73 

(S .96) 
(7.24) 

9.91 (6.51) 

1. The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 has inserted section llSBAA ln the Income Tax Act 1961 providing existing domestic companies with an 

option to pay taJ< at a concessional rate of 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess. The Company has adopted the option as prov]ded under section USBAA in the 

Income Tax Act 1961 for the financial year ended 31st March 2020. The Impact of such option on adjusting the opening deffered tax (net) is Rs 5.96 Crore which is 

recognised in the Profit and Loss statement for the vear ended 31st March, 2020 



29

FUTURE SPECIALITY RETAIL LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 
(AU amounts In INR Crore, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 3.1, 2019 

Current 

Trade Payables to Micro and Small Enterprises 4,77 3.26 
Trade Payables to Others 170.32 241.29 

Total 175.09 244,55 

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities: 

for .terms and conditions with related part1es, refer note 33 

Details of Dues to Micro And Small EntefPrlses 

Particu~rs March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Current 

a) The principal amount and t he lnterest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 

supplier as at the end of each accounting year 

Principal 4.77 3.18 
Interest 0.04 0 :08 

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 along with the 

amount of the payment made to t he supplier beyond the appointed d•y during the 

year 

Principal 

Interest - -

c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of dei•Y In making 

payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but 0.49 -
without adding the interest specified 

d), The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year 0.53 0.08 

e) The amount of further Interest remaining due and payable even in the 

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid 

to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a de(luctfble expenditure 
- . 

under Section 23 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

This In formation has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis intimation received from the "suppliers:" 

regarding their status under the M icro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

I 11. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

P.articulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

current 

financial Liabilities at amortised cost 

Current maturities of Ion& term debts - 22.46 
Payable for capital goods 1.40 4.23 
Dues to employees 1 .93 2.55 
Deposits from customers and others 1 .21 1.44 
Interest ac.<:rue.d on Borrowings 0.13 ~ 

Total 4.67 30.68 

l1s. REFUND LIABILITIES 

Particulars' March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Refund Uabilities 86.60 54.27 

Total 86.60 S'U7 

Under the Company's standard contract terms, customers have a right of return the goods within specified time or when goad's remained 

unsold at larg-e format store-. At the point of sale, a refund liability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue is recognised for those 

products expected to be returned. The Company uses i ts accumulated historical experience to estimate the number of returns on a 

portfolio level using tne expected value method. It is considered highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue 

recognised will not occur given the consistent level of returns over previous years. 
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!19. OTHER LIABILITIES 

Particulars March 31, 202,0 March 31, 2019 

Current 
Advance rece-ived from Customers 0.11 0.01 
Statutory liabilities (Includes GST. TOS, Pf, ESIC, PT &lWF) 7.49 7.50 
Interest on MSM E parties (Refer Note 16) o.s; 0.08 

Total 8.13 7.59 

!20. PROVISIONS 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,.2019 

Non Current 

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 30) 

Gratuity 0.68 0.46 

Total 0.68 0.46 

Current 

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 30) 

Gratuity 0.02 0.02 

Leave encashment 0.66 0.46 

Total 0.68 0.48 

ju. CURRENTTAX LIABILITIES(NET) 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
Current Tax Liabilities 
Provision for Tax 0.03 0.03 

Total 0.03 0.03 

!22. REVE"NUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Partlculars 2019-20 2018-19 

Sale of products 

Tra.ded goods (Apparel, footwear and other fash'ion products) 443.48 497.70 

Other Operating Revenues 0.72 0.65 

Total 444.20 498.35 

!23. OTHER INCOME 

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19 

Interest income on fina.nc·ial assets carried at amortised cost 0.03 . 

Total 0.03 

!24. CHANGES IN INVENTO-RlES·Of STOCK•IN' TRAOE 

Pa rticu la rs 2019-20 2018,19 

Inventories as at the beginning of the year 

Stock~n-t rade 60.75 33.22 

Less: Inventories as at the end of the year 

Stoc~•in•trade 107.S7 60.75 

Net increase in inventories 146.82 127.531 
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i2s. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 

Partitula.rs 

Salaries, wages and bonus 

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 29) 
Gratuity Expense (Refer Note 29) 
Staff welfare expenses 

126. FINANCE COS'T 

~articulars 

Interest expense on financial liabilities not classified as at FVTPL ( Including DDT) 
Interest expense on borrowings 

Other Interest expense (Interest on MSME and Interest on TDS) 

Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 31) 
Ot her borrowini; costs 

l21. DEP~ECIATION, AMORTISATION AN D IMPAIRMENT EXPENSE 

Particulars 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 

Amortisation on intang·ible assets 

Impairment loss bn goodwill (Refer note 5) 

Depreciation on ROU Assets (Refer note 31) 

!28. OTHER EXPENSES 

Particulars 

Repairs and maintenance - Others 

Rent 

Travelling and conveyance 

Advertisement and marketing expenses 
legal and professlonal fees 

Director's sitting fees 

Payments to auditors (Refer note (a) below) 
Insurance 

Transportation charges 

Impairment loss recognised under expected credit loss 

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Rates and taxes 

Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer note (b) below) 
General expenses • 

• includes royalty on sales 

(a) Details of Payments to auditors 

As auditor 

Statutory Audit Fee 

Tax audit fee 

Other services (certification fees) 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

20 19-20 

31.14 
2.15 
0.20 
0.10 

33.59 

2019·20 

-
1.75 

0.72 
'0.85 
0.89 
4.21 

2019-20 

1.14 

16.46 
50.63 
1 .75 

69.98 

2019-20 

0.04 
3-.18 
2.21 

8.26 
2.44 
0.09 
0.26 
0.34 
5.68 
8.02 
0.13 
0.06 

031 
12.84 

43.86 

2019-20 

0.26 

0.26 

2018-19 

2018-19 

2018-19 

2018-19 

2018-19 

31.99 
1.62 

0.12 
0.15 

33.88 

11.23 
0.15 
0.30 
. 

0.76 

12.44 

0.64 

9.81 
30.13 

-

40.58 

0.03 
3.76 
3.13 

10.50 
1.40 
0.07 
0.20 
0.26 

4.29 
-

0.58 
0.07 
0 .32 

14.33 

38.94 

0.15 
0,03 

0.02 

0.20 
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(b) Corporate social responsibility expenditure 

Contribution to Sone ki Chidiya charity foundation 

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 

Amount spent during the year on 
(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset 

(ii) on purposes other than (i) above 

I 29. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Particulars 
Face value per share (INR) 

Earnings per share 
(a) Basic earnings per share {INR) 

(b) Diluted earnings per share (INR) 

(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share 

(loss)/Profit attributable to the eq~ity holders of the company 

Diluted earnings per share 

(los-s)/Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company 

Used in calculating basic earnings per share 

Add: Adjustment 
(loss)/Profit attributable to the equity holders used in calculating diluted earnings per share 

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator 

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic earnings 
per share 

Equity Shares 

Compulsorily convertible instruments 

Adjustments for cal~ufation of diluted earnings per share: 

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating diluted 
earnings per share 

2019-20 2018-19 
0.32 

0.31 0.32 

0.32 

2019-20 201$-19 

10.00 10.00 

(963.76) 564.60 

(963.76) 564.60 

(34.61) 20.46 
(34.61) 20,46 

(34.61) 20.46 

- . 
(34.61) 20.46 

3,50,135 2,59,100 
8,978 1,03,278 

3,59,113 3,62,378 

3,59,113 3,62,378 

The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in share transactions during the year. There have 

been no other transactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the dale of authorisaHon of these 
financial statements. 
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j30. EMPLOYEE BENE~IT OBLIGATIONS 

March 31, 2020 
Current Non Current Total 

Leave obligations 0 .66 - 0.66 
Gratuity 0 .02 0.68 0.70 

Tot.ii Employee Benefit 0.68 0.68 1.36 
Obligation 

(i) Leave Obligations 

The leave obligations cover the company's liability for earned leave. 

March 31, 2019 

.Current Non Current Total 

0.46 . 0.46 
0.02 0.46 0.48 

0.48 0.46 0.94 

The amount of the provision of leave obligations is presented as current, since the company does not ha,ve an unconditional right to· defer settlement 

for any of these obligations. 

(ii) Post Employment obligations 
a) Gratuity 

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefft payable is greater of the amount calculated as per the Payment o! 

Gratuity Act, 1975 or the Company Scheme applicable to the employee. The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once 

vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of employment The gratuity benefits payable to the employees are based on the 

employee:s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. 

The employees do not contribute towards this plan and the full cost of providing these benefits are, met by the Company. In case Qf death while in 

service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting. The Company's obligation towards Gratuity is a Defined Benefit plan and ls not funded. 

The amount recognised in t he balance sheet and the movement in the net defined benefit obligation for the year are as follows 
Particulars 1.019-20 2018-19 

As at beginning of the year 0.48 0.37 
Current service cost 0.16 0.20 
ln,terest expense 0.04 0.02 
Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 0.20 0.22 

Remeasurements 

Gain from change in Demographic assumption . (0.11) 
Loss from change in financial assumptions 0.03 0 .03 
Loss/(Gain) from change Tn experience assumptions Q.09 (0.02) 

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.12 (0.10) 

Benefit payments (0.10) (0.01) 

As at end of the year 0.70 0.48 

Significant risks and assumptions 

i The principal actuarial risk to which the Company is exposed are interest rate risk longevity risk and salary risk 

Interest Risk A decrease in the government bond interest rate wlll increase the plan liability 
longevitY Risk The impact of longevity risk Will depend on Whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or after. Typically for 

the benefits paid on or before the retirement age, the longevity risk is not very material. 

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan 

participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability. 

ii The prfncipal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as foll0ws: 

Particµlar:s March '31, 20i!O March 31, 2019 
Discount rate 6.72% 7.50% 
Salary Escalation 0% for first year 7% for first 2 years 

and 5% therea~er and 5% thereafter 

Withdrawal Rate Upto S years 20% Upto 5 years 20% 

and 1% thereafter and 1% thereaft,er 

_Retife111ent Age 58 years 58 years 
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Sensitivity Analysis : 

S·ignificant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis 

below have been determined \)ased on reasonably po~sibJe changes of the respective assumptions occurring at t he end of the reporting period, while 
holding all other assumptions constanr. 

lncrease/(decrease) in defined benefit liability 

Impact on defined benefit obligation or g-ratuity of increase in discount rate for 100 basis points 

Impact on defined benefit o'bligatien or gratuity of decrease in discount rate for 100 basis point_s 

Impact on defined benefit obligation or gratuity of increase in salary escalation rate for 100 basis points 

Impact o.n defined benefit obligation or gratuity of decrease in salary escalation rate for 100 basis points 

"2019-20 

(0,10) 

0.12 

0.11 
(0.09) 

2018-19 

(0.07) 

0.07 

0.07 
(0.07) 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlik!!ly that the 
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 

The following payments are expected payment towards to the defined benefit obligation in future years: 

Within the next 12 months 

Between 2 and 5 years 

'Between 5 and 10 years 

Total expected payments 

March 3 1, 2020 March 31.. 2019 , 

om 
0.14 

0.11 

0.27 

0,02 

0.10 

0,10 

0.22 

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 12.31 years (March 31, 2019: 11.42 years} 

b) Defined -0ootribution plans 

The company also has defined contribution plans, Contributions are made to Provident Fund in India and Employee's State Insurance Company ("ESIC") 

eq1,1a·1 to a certain percentage of the employees' ,alary. The contributions of provident fund are made to registered provident fund administered by the 

government. The obligation oft-he company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The 

expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan Is INR 1.62 Crore (March 31, 2019: INR 1.05 Crore) towards provident fund, 

national pension scheme, labour welfare fund INR 0.02 Crore(March31, 2019: NIL) and INR 0.5:LCrore (March 31, 2019: INR 0.57 Crore) towards ESIC. 

131. COMMrT~ ENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

IA. Commitments 

Capital commitments 

The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not provided for (net of advances) as at March 31, 2020 is INR 
0.11 Crore (2018-19: INR 0.58 Crore) 

B. Cont}ngent Liabilities Mari:·h 31, "2020 March 31, 2019 

i. Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt . 

ii. Guarantees excluding financial guarantees . 

iii. Other money for which the company.is·contingently Jiable -
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32. LEASES 

On t ransition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use· asset of Rs.7.82 crore, and a lease liability of Rs. 8.10 crore. The 

cumulative effect of applying the standard, amounting to Rs. 0.18 crore was debited to retai·ned eamings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption is 

lnsignificant on the loss before tax and earnings per share. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase In cash inflows from operating activities and an increase 

in cash outflows from financing activities on accou.nt of lease payments.The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as 
at April 1, 2019 is !0.2¾ 

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April l, 2019 is 10.2%.The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on 
initial application: 

1. Excluded the init ial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application. 

2. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts 
that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17. 

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2020t 

Particulars March 31, 2020 
Balance as at April 01, 2019 7.81 

Additions 2.14 
Deletions (0.52) 
Depreciation (1.75) 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 7.68 

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense ln statement of Profit and Loss. 

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31 2020 · 

Particulars March31, 2020 
Current Lease Liabilities 1.20 
Non Current Lease Liabilities 7.14 
Total 8.34 

The following is the movement in lease l'iabllities also for the year ended March 31 2020 · 
' Partic.ulars Mar.ch 31,,2020 

Balance as at April 01, 2019 8,10 
Additions 2.14 
Finance Cost accrued during the year 0.85 
Deletions (0.63) 
Payment of Lease Liabilities (2.12) 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 8.34 

Rental E)(pense recorded for short-term leases INR3.18 Crore for year ended March 31, 2020. 

Particulars March 31, Z.020 
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation t.o non cancellable operating 

leases are as follows: 

Within one year 5.37 
'Later thah one year but not Jater than f ive years 7.83 
later than five years 3.55 
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!33. RE'lATED PARTY TRA~SAC'llONS 

li) List of <elated partie< as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures 

(1) Holding/ Ultimate Holding Company 

Future Ttendz limited 

Future Lifestyle Fashions Umited 

Ryka Commercial Ventures Private Limited 

Lifestyle. Trust 

(Z) Fellow Subsidiaries 

FlFl 8usiness Services limited 

FLfL Travel Retail Bhubaneswar Private limited 

FLH Travel Retail Guwahat'i Private Limited 

FLFL Travel Retail Lucknow Private Limited 

HFL Travel Reta,1 West Pdvate Limited 

(3) Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
Hetal ~otak 

Kaleeswaran Arunchalam 
Vitthal Nawandhar(upto 07-02· 2020) 

(ii) Transactions with related parties 

(41 Enterprises over which KMP of the Company or the ultimate holdfng company can 

e><ercise significant influenee 
Future Retail Limited 

Future Enterpris.es Limited 

Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited 

Future Sharp Skills Limited 

·Retail llgln Techniques (India) Limited 

Futµre Generali India Insurance Company Limited 

Future-Generali lnQia Life Insurance Company Uniited 

Future Corporate Resources Private limited 

(formerly known as Suhani Trading and Investment Consultants Private Limi1ed} 
Travel News Services I India) Pnvate Limited (TNSI) 

The following transactions occurred with related parties during the year 

Name 

(a-) Sale of Products 

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 

Future Retail limited 

(b) Purchase of Products 

Future Enterprises Limited 

: (c) Purchase of Property, plan.I and equipment 

Future Ufestyle Fashions Limited 

Future Retail Limite.d 

(dJ Sale of Property, plant and equipment 

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 

(e) Other e•penses 

Business exhibition expenses & Shared Servloes 

future Lifestyle. Fasl\ions Limited 

Supply chain service provider 

Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited 

Employee Training & Development 

Future Sharp Skills Limited • 

lns11rance Service provider 

Future Generali India Life lnsura~ce Company Limited 

Future Generali India lnsurnnce Company Limited 

Rent for Airport Stores 

FLFL Travel Retail Bhubaneswar Pr1vate limited 

Flfl Travel Retail Guwahati Private Limited 

FLFL Travel Retail Lucknow Priv.te limited 

FLFL Travel Retail West Private Umited 

Travel News Services (India) Private Limited (TNSI) 

capex Related Expenses 

Retail LightTechniques (India) Limited 

Future Supply Chain S.olutions limited 

Future Enterprises Limited 

(f) Other Operating ln~ome 

Shared Setvices 

Future lifestyle Fashions llmttecl 

(g) Financial Guarantee from 

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 

149.44 
152.26 

1,16 

0.01 
0 ,01 

0.04 

o.n 

11.48 

0.10 

0.09 
0.18 

0.51 

0. 67 

0.38 
0.97 
0,g2 

0.06 
0:05 

0.72 

0.50 

2018-19 

142,20 

214.53 

1.59 

2.47 
o.oz 

0.08 

1.02 

s.si 

0,()1 

0.11 

0.14 

0,24 
0.20 

0.29 

0.68 

0.22 

0.lS 

0.89 

0 .72 

0.50 

Af 
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(iii) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services 

Nam~ 

Trade Receivables 

Future lifestyle Fashions limited 

Fut<,re~etail Limited 

Future 1Enterprjses Limited 

Future Corporate Resources Private Limited 

Trade Payables 

Future lifestyle fashions Limited 

Future Retail Limited 

Future Enterprises Limited 

Flfl Travel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Limited 

Fl.FL Trave.1 Retall Guwahati Private l i mited 

FLFL Travel Retail (ucknow Prlvate Limited 

FLFL Travel Retail West Private 'Limited 

Travel News Services (India) Private Umited (TNSI) 

Retail Ljght Techniques (India) Limited 

Future Generali India Ufe Insurance Company Limited 

Future Generali India Insurance Company Limited 

Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited 

less than INR 50,000 

(iv) Key management personnel compensat1on 

S.hort t erm employee benefits 

Post-employment benefits 

Di recto, Sit.ting fee, 

March 31, 2020 

13S,24 

87,17 

0.12 
0.56 

o.oo• 
0,09 

o.oo• 
o.oo• 

0.05 

0.04 

0.03 

10.95 

M Terms and conditions of transactions wi th related parties 

March 31, 2019 

131.44 

72.04 

8 .86 

om 

2.55 

0.02 

0.57 

0 .06 

0.02 

0.11 

4.81 

March•31, 2020 

1.63 

0 .07 

0.09 

1.79 

March ·31, 2019 

1.91 

0.05 

0.07 
2 .03 

The sales to and purchases from rel'ated parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail In arm' s length t ransactions. Outstanding b;lances at the 

year end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash, There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivable~ 

and payables. For the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has recorded impairm~nt of receivables relating to amount owed by related parties of INR 

7 .16 Crore (March 31, 2019'. NIL). This assessment is undertaken each frnancial year through examining the financial positlon oflhe related party and market 
in which the related p:arty operates. 

j34. SEG"!!ENT REPOI\TING 

The Company is engaged in the business of trading of branded apparel, footwear and other< fashion products, which is the only reportable segment. There is 

no othe"r segment which requires reporting as per Ind.AS 108 " Operating Segments". 

Information about major customers 

Revenue , rising from sale of producls from two customers amounted 10 INR 301.70 Crore (March 31, 2019: from two customers amounted to INR 356.73 

Crore), exceeds 10% of revenue from operations of the Com pany. 
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j3S. FAIR VAlUE MEASUREMENTS 

Financial Instruments by Category 

Particulars carryfng Amount 

March 31, 202:0 March 31,,2019 
FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Amortised cost 

Trade Receivables 298.21 309.94 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.78 25.61 
Security Deposits 1.05 0.87 
Other Bank Balances 0.02 0.02 

Finandal a:;sets at fair value through other comprehensive income . . 

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - -

Total 300.06 336.44 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Amortised cost 

Lease Liabilities 8-.34 . 
Borrowings (including accrued Interest) 15.03 42.69 
Trade Payables 175.09 244.55 
Other financial liabilities 4.54 8.22 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 

Tofal 203.00 295.46 

Fair Value 

March 311 2020 March 31, 2019 

298.21 309.94 
0.78 25.61 
1.05 0.87 
0.02 0.02 

. . 

. -

300.06 336.44 

8.34 -
15.03 42.69 

175.09 244.SS 

4 .54 8.22 

. 

203.00 295.46 

The management assessed that the fair values of short term financial assets and lrabilities significantly .approximate their carrying amounts largely 

due to the short · term maturit ies. of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is 1ncluded at the amount at which the 

instrument could be exchanged in a cur.rent transaction among willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

The Company determines fair values of financia l assets and financial liabilities by discounting the contractual cash inflows/outflows using 

prevailing interest rates of' financial inst ruments with similar terms. The initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is at fair 

value. Further, the subseqµent measurement of all financial assets and liabilities is at amortised cost, using the effec;tive interest method discount 

rates used in determining fair value. The interest rate used to discount estimated future cash flows, where applicable, are based on the 

incremental borrowing rate of the borrower in case of financial liabilities and average market rate of similar credit rated instrument in case of 
financial assets. 

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial li;ibilities using the best and most relevant data available. In 

addition, the Company internally reviews valuation, including independent price validation for certain instruments. 

Fair value of financial assets· and liabilities is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at th·e measurement date, regardless of whether that .price is directly observable -0r estimated using 
another valuation technique. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate fair value: 

(a) Fair value of short term financial assets and liabilities significantly approximate !•heir carrying amounts largeJy due to the short term maturities 
of these instruments. 

(b) Fair value of quoted instruments is based on the market va lue at t,he reporting date. The fair value of other financial liabilities as well as other 

non current financial li'abilities is estimated by discounting future cash flow using rate currently applicable for debt on similar terms, credit risk 
and remaining maturities. 

(c) The fair value of the Company's interest bearing borrowing received are determined using discount rate that reflects the entity's borrowing 
rate as at the end of the reporting period. 
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! 36. F.INA.NClAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

(A) Credit risk 

Credit risk iS the risk that c0tmterparty will not meet fts obligations under a financial instrum.ent or customer contract, leading to .a financial loss. The Company is 

exposed to credit risk from its·operating actlvities primartly trade receivables. 

Trade receivables 

Customer credit risk Is managed i'S per the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a 

customer is assessed based on payment performance over ,the period of time. The Company's exposure of its cu.stomers are continuously monitored based on the 

customer's past performance and busine~s. dyn;imlcs. Credit exposure is controlled by customer's uedit limits that are re111ewed and approved by the 

management at regular intervars .. 

An impairment analys1s is performed at each reporting date. The Company applies the Simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses prescribed by Ind 

AS 109, w111ch permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. The expected credit losses on the,se financial assets are estimated 

using a provision mat rix based on the Company hlstorical' credit loss experience, Mjuste,;J for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions 

and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at tlie reportlng date, Including time va[ue of money. 

(Bl Liquidity risk 

Uquidity risk is the risk that the company will fall in meeting its obligations associated with its finandal ltabilities. The company's approach to managing liquidity is 
to ensure that rt will have sufficient funds to meet lts liabilit ies w hen due without Incurring un.accept;,ble losses. The Company monitors the roll ing forecasts to 

ensure it h<1s sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs, 

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn 

up based <;>n the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabitlt ie5 based. It include both tnterest and princtp.al cash flows. The contractual maturity is based on the 
earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay. 

Particula fs Carrying W,thip l yea.r 1-5years Mote thanS Total 
amount years 

As at March 31, 2020 

8or·rowing including, Interest aecrued 15.03 15.03 - - 15.03 
Trade payable 175.09 175.09 . 175.09 
lease liabrlities '8 ,34 1.20 7.14 8.34 
Other finaneial liabilities 4.54 4.54 - . 4.54 

203.00 195.86 7.14 . 203.00 
As at March 31, 2019 

Borrow'ing including Interest accrued 42..69 24.38 24.38 - 48.76 
Trade. payable 244,55 244.55 - 244.55 
Other fihanci;,l liabilltles 8.22 8.22 - - 8.2.2 

. . 
2.95.46 277.15 24.38 . 301.5'.3 

1B) Mafket risk 

Market (isk is the risk that the fair value of future cash f lows of a f1nanclal instrument will fl uctuate because of changes in the market prices. The Company ls 

exposed in the ordinary course of its business to risks related to changes in foreign currency e_xchange rates. The Company's exposure to l nterest rates risk and 
other pr tee fisk is not significant. 

(i) foreign currency risk 

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions primarily on account of import of trading goods and c..ipit~I gog(is, 

Foreign exchange risR arises recognised liabilitie.s denominated In a currency t hat iI not the f~nction·al currency of the Company. The company's exposure to 

exchange fluctuation risk is very limited for its purchase from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. 

Following \able detai ts the carrying amounts of the Comp.ny's unhedged foreign currency denominated monet ary items at the end of the reportlng pe•r iod: 

Particulars March 31,2020 March3 1,2019 
Amount Payable 

Euro -

USD - o.os 
Total Exposure . o.os 

A 5% strengthening In USO and GBP w ill decrease the ptGfit for ,the year by lNR N)L (2.018,19: INR 0.002 Cror~) and a S% weakeoing ln USO and GBP will increase 

the profit for t he year by INR NIL (2018-19: INR 0.002 Crore), In man.gement's opinion, the sensitivity a,,-alysis is unrepresentative of the l~herent foreign 

exchange rlsk because t,he exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year. 
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{ii} Interest rate risk 

Interest rate r isk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 'fluctuate because of thanges in market Interest rates. However, 
the company is not significantly exposed to interes1 rate risk as at the respective reporting dates. 

137. C:/1,PITAL MANAGEMENT 

For the purpsoe of the company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, equity instruments, share premium and all other equity reserves 

attributable to the equity holders. The primary obJective o.f the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. 

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as go1ng concerns through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital 
st ructure of the Company consists of net debt (i.e. borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and equity of the Company (comprising issued capital, reserves 

and retarned earnings). The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'net debt' to equity. The Company's net debt to equity ratio is as follows. 

Particylai:s March 31, 2020 Match 31',,2019 

Borrowings (including accrued interest) 15.03 42.69 
less: Cash and Cash Equivalents (0.78) (25.61) 

Net Debt 14.25 17.08 

Equity share capital 0.35 0.26 
Other equity iristrument 0.01 0.01 
Other equity 245.49 237.27 

Total Capital 245.85 237.54 

Net debt to equity ratio 5.80% 7.19% 

138. DETAILS OF CHARGES AGAIN~T ASSETS OF 'THE COMPANY 

The credit facility from IDFC bank is secured by way of a first & exclusive charge on the entire current assets and movable property plant and equipment of the 

Company and corporate guarantee from Future Lifestyle Fashions limited, the Parent Company. 

139. ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINITY RELATING TO GLOBAL HEAL TH PANDEMIC ON COVID-19 

Company's products fall under the non"essential servkes eategory and hence the Company experienced a temporary impact on Its operat ions upon 

-implementation of the nation w ide lockdown. However, The Company is actively monitoring the impact of the global health pandemic on its financial condition, 

liquidity, operations, suppliers, Industry, and workforce. The Company has used the principles of prudence In applying judgments, estimates and assumptions 

based on the cvrrent estimates. In assessing the recoverability of assets such as inventories, trade receivables, flnancial assets and other assets, based on current 
indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amounts of \ts assets. The extent to which COVID-19 impacts the 
operations Will depend on future developments which remain uncertain. 

40. The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/ reclassifie•d wherever necessary, to make them comparable. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

t 
jt'~~ 

Hetal Kotak '7 

Executive Director and CEO 

(DIN : 07863592) 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: JUne 1.6, 2020 

Saurabh Bhudolia 

Director 

/DIN : 07748251) 
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To, 
The Members of, 
FUTURE TRENDZ LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Opinion 

DfflKH & CD. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the financial statements of FUTURE TRENDZ LIMITED ("the Company"), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
(statement of changes in equity) and statement of cash flows for the year ended, and notes to 
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as "Standalone Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2020, and loss and total comprehensive income (including other comprehensive 
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India t ogether with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for other informat ion. The other information 
comprises the information included in the management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report 
Including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance 
Report, and Shareholder Information, but does not include the standalone financials 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and in doing so, consider whet~i==-?1~.t1ther information is materially 
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inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of 
the Act. This responsibi lity also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143{3){i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether has adequate internal 
financial controls systems in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exits 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exits, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Financial 
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the standalone Financial Statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement in the 
Financial Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including and significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we may have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure "A" statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, 
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of accounts. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in Annexure "B". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

(a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 

financial position in the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements. 

(b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

(c) The company is not liable to transfer any amounts to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund. Therefore, there has be _ delay in transferring amounts, 
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required to be transferred, t o the Investor Education and Prot ection Fund by the 

Company. 

For DMKH & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. : 1 

i~· 
Manish Kankani 
Partner 

Membership No. 15802 ·•-D~ 

Place: Mumbai ,___ 

Date:20/08/2020 
UDIN- 20158020AAAAHT7269 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements" of our report to the members of FUTURE TRENDZ LIMITED of even date 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we report that: -

i. As explained to us, no fixed assets are held by the Company. 
ii. As explained to us, there are no inventories during the year. 
iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

granted loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships 
or other parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanat ions given to us, Company 
has not provided any loan, investment, guarantees, and security under section 185 and 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provision of sections 73 to 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules,2015 
with regards to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government 
under Section 148(1) of the companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out 
by the company, thus reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the 

Company. 
vii. 

a) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has been 
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident 
Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess, 
Professional Tax and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the 
appropriate authorities. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Income-tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material 
statutory dues excepting those mentioned hereunder. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in 
respect of, Income-tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise 
Duty, Value Added Tax, cess that have not been deposited with appropriate 

authorities on account of dispute. 
viii. Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given 

by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans or borrowings from banks and debenture holders. The Company has 
not taken any loans from Government or any Financial Institution. 
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ix. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information given by the 
management, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or 
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. 

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the company by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

xi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Companies Act. 

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where 
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party 
transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by 
the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the company, the company has preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year and 
in respect of which the Company complied with section 42 of the Act and amount raised 
have been applied for the purposes for which the funds are raised. 

xv. In Our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the 
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or 
persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the company, the company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 

For DMKH & Co. 
Chartered Accountants Firi+~lon No. : 
Manish Kankani 
Partner 
M embership No. 1580 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20/08/2020 
UDIN-20158020AAAAHT7269 
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Annexure "B" to the Auditors' Report 

Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under the heading of "Report on other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements" of our report to the members of FUTURE TRENDZ LIMITED of even date 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/S FUTURE TRENDZ 
LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 
Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
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reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 

and procedures that 
1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements. 

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 

or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For DMKH & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. : 116,~t.w:::==,.... 'I<+' Q,J.'f:-r\ & Cq • 

Manish Kankanl ' D t j 
Partner ~: ..,l.~ 
Membership No. 158020 - _ o-:::.:, 

';::,.... ' ,....,v.,,. 
Place: Mumbai - -- /4 

Date: 20/08/2020 
UDIN-20158020AAAAHT7269 
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ASSffi 
1 Non-current assets 

(a) Financial Asset s 

(i) Investments 

Total Non - Current Assets 

2 Current assets 
(a) Financial Assets 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 

Total Current Assets 

Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1 Equity 
(a) Equity Share capital 

(b) Other Equity 

Total Equity 

LIABILITIES 
2 Current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade payables 

(i i) Other Financial Liabilit ies 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

FUTURE TRENDZ LIMITED 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020 

Note 
No. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-12 

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
For DMKH & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 116886W -

1<~· 40,~ f~ 

~~M,~ {8f! ~ , \ 

I ' 
I • \ • 

I M'" 'nf.' " 
Manish Kankani 

I ,..,,,,...,,.y 
I _/2'{" \ . ..5,.' 

Director Partner '. ,· 
0
,'5· Director 

~ l ,.,-C, _,. 
DIN- 07218622 DIN- 07230828 Membership No.:158020 -~& 

Place : Mumbai Place: Mumbai 

Date :20.08. 2020 Date : 16.06.2020 

(fin Lakh) 

As at March As at March 
31,2020 31,2019 

35,807.60 25.90 

35,807.60 25.90 

4.63 8.20 

4.63 8.20 

35,812.23 34.10 

55.00 55.00 

35,756.91 (21.19) 

35,811.91 33.81 

0.29 0.29 

0.03 0.00 

0.32 0.29 

35,812.23 34.10 
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FUTURE TRENDZ LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

~ in Lakh) 

Note 
2019-20 

No. 
2018-19 

1 REVENUE 

(a) Revenue from operations - -

Total Revenue - -

2 EXPENSES 

(a} Other expenses 9 3.60 7.99 

Total Expenses 3.60 7.99 

3 Profit before tax (1- 2) (3.60) (7.99) 

4 Tax Expense - -

5 Profit for the Year (3 - 4) (3.60) (7.99) 

6 Earnings per equity share of Face Value of f 10 each 12 

Basic(~) (0.65) (1.45} 

Diluted (~) (0.65) (1.45} 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-12 

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For DM KH & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 116886W -

i+· ~\~ & Co 

~ 19·; ~ Manish Kankani 
'5,t./1 f 

Sa ~ Mutha ,,11 ~ 
Partner ~Ji>£o p.Cc,O Director Director 

Membership No.:158020 - DIN- 07218622 DIN- 07230828 

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai 

Date : 20.08.2020 Date : 16.06.2020 
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FUTURE TRENDZ LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

A Equity Share Capital 
(i) Opening Balance 

(ii) Change During the Year 

Issue Of Equity Share 

Closing Balance 

B Other Eugity 
Retained Earing 
Opening Balance 

Profit for the Year 

Total Other Equity 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For DMKH & Co. 

Chartered Accountant s -FRN: 116886W & 

11<+ · I t~•t J 
Manish Kankani i~,r.u~"0

' }f 
Partner -?11>----{o~ 

"'R~op..G 
Membership No.:15802 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 20.08.2020 

2019-20 

55.00 

55.00 

(21 .19) 

(3.60) 

(24.79) 

(24.79) 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Sa~ Mutha 
Di recto~ 

DIN- 07218622 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 16.06.2020 

Director 

DIN- 07230828 

(? in Lakh) 
2018-19 

55.00 

55.00 

(13.20) 

(7.99) 

(21.19) 

(21.19) 
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FUTURE TRENDZ LIMITED 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

A Cash Flow From Operating Activities 

Net Profit Before Tax 

Adjusted For: 

Interest Income 

Operating (Loss} Before Working Capital Changes 

Adjusted For: 

Trade Payables, Othe Liabilities and Provisions 

Cash Generated From Operations 

Tax Paid 

Net Cash From Operating Activities 

B Cash flows from investing activities 

C 

Payment to acquire financial assets - lnvestement 

Net Cash Provided By Financing Activity 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceed/(repayment) from Optionally Convertible debentures (OCD) 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C} 

Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For DMKH & Co. 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 116886W 

1<+· 
Manish Kankani 

Partner 

Membership No.:158020 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 20.08.2020 

San~ Mulha 
Director 

DIN- 07218622 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 16.06.2020 

Director 

DIN- 07230828 

2019-20 

(3.60) 

(3.60) 

0.03 
(3.57) 

(3.57} 

(35781.70} 

l35781.70J 

35781.70 

35781.70 

(3.57} 

8.20 
4.63 

If in Lakh) 

2018-19 

(7.99) 

(7.99) 

(0.09) 

(8.08) 

(8.08) 

(8.08) 

16.29 

8.20 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD YEAR MARCH 31, 2020 

3 Non-Current Assets -Investment 

Number of Units f in Lakh 
As at March 31, As at March 31_, As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2020 2019 2020 2019 
Non-Current Investment-Unquoted 

Investment in Equity Instruments 
Subsidiaries (At cost) 
Future Speciality Retail Limited 350,135 259,000 35,807.60 25.90 

350,135 259,000 35J807.60 25.90 

4 Current assets (t in Lakh) 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2020 2019 
Cash and Bank Balances 
Cash and Cash equivalents 
On Current Accounts 4.63 8.20 

4.63 8.20 

5 Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 
As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019 

No. of Shares (t in Lakh) No. of Shares ('° in Lakh) 

Authorised 

Equity Share oft 10/· each 6,000,000 600.00 6,000,000 600.00 

6,000,000 600.00 6,000,000 600.00 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid ug 

Equity Share of t 10/- each 550,000 55.00 550,000 55.00 

550,000 55.00 550,000 55.00 

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares : 

Equity Share of t 10/· each 

Particulars 
As at As at 

Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 

No. of Shares No. of Shares 
At the beginning of the year 550,000 550,000 

Add : Issued during the year -
At the end of the year 550,000 550,000 

(b) Terms/Rights Attached to Equity Shares 
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value t 10/- each. Each holder of equity share is entitled to 

one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares wil l be entitled to receive the remaining assets 

of the Company after distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion of the number of equity shares held by the 

shareholders. 

(cJ Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company: 

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 

Name of Shareholders No. of %of No. of %of 

Shares held Holding Shares held Holding 

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 550,000 100 550,000 100 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

('° in Lakh) 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2020 2019 

6 Other Equity 
Retained Earning (24.79) (21.19} 
Optionally Convertible debentures (OCD) 35781.70 -

35,756.91 (21.19) 

7 Current liabilities -Trade Payables 
Trade Payables 0.29 0 .29 

0.29 0.29 

8 Current Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities 
Other Payables 0.03 -

0.03 -

9 Other Expenses 
Audit Fees 0.30 0.30 
Miscellaneous Expenses 3.31 770 

3.60 7.99 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY 

Future l rendz Ltd ("The Company") is a company incorporated in India under the provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 on September 15, 2016. The registered address of the Company is located at 
Knowledge house, Shyam nagar, Off. Jogeshwari-Vikhroli link road, Jogeshwari (East) Mumbai - 400060 
.The Company is engaged in the business of Retailing of Fashion & related activities. The Financial 
Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 16, 2020.The Financial 
Statements are presented in Indian Rupees m and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs except 
where otherwise indicated. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.1. Statement of Compliances with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Ind AS notified 

under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 (as amended)] and other applicable laws. 

2.2. Standard issued but not effective 

On 30 March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 116, "Leases" as 

part of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)) Amendment Rules, 2019. Ind AS 

116 replaces existing standard on leases i.e. Ind AS 17, "Leases" with effect from accounting 

periods beginning on or after 01 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the 

recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. It eliminates the 

classification of leases as either finance leases or operating leases for a lessee as required by 

Ind AS 17,"Leases" introducing a single on-balance sheet accounting model that wil l result in 

creation of Right of use asset and Lease Liability for all the leases subject to short term, low 

value leases and transition relaxations. 

2.3. Basis of Preparation and Presentation 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 

AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial 

instruments which are measured at fair values. 

In accordance with Ind AS, the Company's Ind AS financial statements including, two balance 

sheets, namely, the balance sheet as at March 31, 2018 and 2019, and, two statements each 

of profit and loss, cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2018 and 

2019 together wi th related notes. The same accounting policies have been used for all periods 

presented. 

2.4. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, 
plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management. The cost of property, 
plant and equipment acquired in a business combination is recorded at fair value on the date 
of acquisition. 
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is 
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on Derecognition of the asset is included in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

While measuring the property, plant and equipment in accordance with Ind AS, the Company 
has elected to measure certain items of property, plant and equipment at the date of 
transition to Ind As at their fair values and used those fair values as their deemed cost at 
transition date. 

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment has 
been provided on Straight Line Method over their useful lives prescribed under schedule 11 
of the companies Act, 2013. 

2.5. Intangible Assets 
Intangible Assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Amortisation 1s recognised on a straight line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the 
end of each reporting period and the effect of any changes in estimate is accounted for 
prospectively. 

2.6. Impairment of non-financial assets (including investment in subsidiary, associate and joint 

venture) 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non­

financial assets (including investment in subsidiary, associates and joint venture) to determine 

whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 

indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the 

extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 

amount of an individual asse:, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash­

generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the rlsks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been 

ad Justed. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 

carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its 

recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and 

loss. 

2.7. Revenue recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is 
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and similar allowances. 



192

Sale of goods 
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised, when significant risk and rewards of ownership have 

been transferred to the buyer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of 
consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. 

Amount disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of trade allowances, rebates, 
returns and value added tax/sales tax/Goods and Services tax. 

Rendering of services 
Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised as they are rendered based on 
arrangements with the customers. 

Dividend and Interest income 
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company's right to receive 
payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the shareholders and the amount of income can be measured reliably). 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic 

benefits wil l flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. 

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at 

the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 

cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying 

amount on initial recognition. 

2.8 Taxation 

Current tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 
'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income 
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or 
deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by 
the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 

computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred 
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against those deductible temporary 
differences which can be utili5ed. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if 
the temporary difference rises from the initial recognition (other than in a business 
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor 
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary 
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are 
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measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax 

liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which 
the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they 

relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in 

which case, the current and oeferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income 

or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial 

accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the 

business combination. 

2.9 Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is ca cu lated by dividing the profit/loss attributable to the owners of 
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
financial year. 

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in determination of basic earnings per share 
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated 
with dilutive potential equity shares, and the weighted average number of additional equity 
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential 
equity shares. 

2.10 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as 
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in 
which they are incurred. 

2.11 Employee benefits 
Short term employee benefits 
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months from reporting date are classified 
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated 
absences, performance incentives and the expected cost of bonus etc. are recognised as an 
expense at the undiscounted amount in statement of profit and loss for the period in which 
the related service is rendered. 

Post-employment defined contribution benefits 
Payment to defined contribution plans such as provident fund, employee state insurance etc. 
are recognised as expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to such 
contributions. Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been 
paid. 
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Post-employment defined benefit benefits 
Cost of post-employment benefit plans such as gratuity and accumulated paid absence are 
recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss for the period in which the 
employee has rendered services. The expense is recognised at the present value of the 
amounts payable determined using projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuation 
techniques at the end of each annual reporting period. Service cost (including current service 
cost, past service cost) and interest expense are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability are recognised 
in other comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognised in 
statement of profit and loss. 

Other long term employee benefit 
Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the 
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in 
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Cost of other long term 
benefits are determined using projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuation 
techniques at the end of each annual reporting period and the cost (including remeasurement) 
is recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

2.12 Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are 
determined on weighted average basis. Cost of inventories comprise of cost of purchase, cost 
of conversion and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. 

2.13 Provisions, contingent liability and contingent assets 
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be reasonably estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by 
discounting (when the effect of the time value of money is material) the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the liability. 

Contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or it is probable but no 
reliable estimate is possible. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in financial statements 
however disclosed. Similarly, contingent assets are not recognised however disclosed. 

2.14 Investment in subsidiary, joint ventures and associates 
Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are shown at cost in accordance with 
Ind AS 27 'Separate financial statements'. Where the carrying amount of an investment in 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount and the difference is recognised as impairment loss in the statement of 
profit and loss (refer policy or impairment of non-financial assets). On disposal of investment, 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or 

credited to the statement of profit and loss. 
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2.15 Financial instruments 
Classification as financial liability or equity 
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities 
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the 
definitions of a f inancial liability and an equity instrument 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised 
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities 
Initial recognition 
Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets 
primarily comprise of investments, loans, deposits, trade receivables and cash and bank 
balances. Financial liabilities primarily comprise of borrowings, trade and other payables and 
financial guarantee contracts. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets/ issue of financial liabilities 
are added to the fair value of the financial assets/ subtracted from fair value of financial 
liabilities on initial recognition, except for financial asset/ liability is subsequently measured at 
fair value through profit or loss. 

Subsequent measurement 
i. Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost 
After initial recognition all financial assets (other than investment in equity instruments and 
derivative instruments) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. All financial liabilities (other than derivative liabilities), subsequently after 
initial recognition, are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. The 
Company has not designated any financial asset or financial liability as fair value through profit 
or loss ("FVTPL"). 

ii. Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL 
All derivat ive assets and derivative liabilities are always measured at FVTPL with fair value 
changes is being recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

iii. Investment in equity instruments either at FVTPL or FVTOCI 
Investment in equity instrurrents are measured at FVTPL with fair value changes is being 
recognised in statement of profit and loss. However, on initial recognition, the Company can 
make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the 
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in 
equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. 
These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. 
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in 
fair value recognised in othe- comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for 
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equity instruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not 
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments. 

iv. Financial guarantee obligation 
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified 
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make 
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 

After initial recognition of financial guarantee obligation at fair value, the Company 
subsequently measured it at the higher of: 

• amount of loss determined in accordance with impairment requirement under Ind AS 
109 (see policy on impairment of financial asset); and 

• the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative income 
recognised. 

Impairment of financial asset 
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on 
financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights to 
receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL. 

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of 
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash 
flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that 
the Company expects to receive (I.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective 
interest rate. 

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to 
the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased 
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that 
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 

For trade receivables, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 
lifetime expected credit losses. 

Derecognition of financial asset 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. 

2.16 Share-based payment arrangement 
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the 
equity instruments/ option at the grant date. 

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled share-based payments is 
expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate 
of equity instruments that wil eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the 
end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity 
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is 
recognised in statement of profit and loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the 
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share options outstanding reserve. 
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2.17 Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements 
In the course of applying the accounting policies, the Company is required to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the 
revision affects current and future periods. 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
i. Impairment of property, plant and equipment. investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures 

and associates 
Determining whether the assets are impaired requires an estimate in the value in use of cash 
generating units. It requires to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash 
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. When the 
actual cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. 

ii. Provisions, liabilities and contingencies 
The timing of recognition of provision requires application of judgement to existing facts and 
circumstances which may be subject to change 

iii. Fair value measurements 

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting 
purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market­
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the 
Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. 

The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate 
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. A degree of estimate is required in establishing 
fair values. 
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10. Related Party Disclosure 

As required under Accounting Standard 18 "Related Party Disclosures" are given below: 

A List of Related Parties 

1. Holding Company 

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited 

2. Subsidiary Company 

Future Speciality Retail Limited 

Nature of transactions 

Investment Made 

Optionally Convert ible debentures (CCD) Given 

Figures in bracket represent previous year's figures 

11. Auditor's Remuneration 

Particular 2019-20 

Statutory Audit Fee 0.30 

Total 0.30 

Subsidiaries 

35781.70 
(-) 

(-) 

~ in Lakh) 

2018-19 

0.30 

0.30 

({ in Lakh) 

Holding 

(-) 

35781.70 
(-) 

12. Computation of Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Shares 

Particulars 

Profit after tax 

The Weighted average number of Equity shares for 

Basic and Diluted EPS 

Earnings per Equity share (Basic & Diluted) 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DMKH & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 116886W 

1(4· 
Manish Kankani 

Partner 

Membership No. : 158020 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 20.08.2020 

Units 2019-20 2018-19 

t in Lakh (3.60) (7.99) 

No. in 

Lakh 
5.50 5.50 

t (0.65) (1.45) 

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors 

DIN-07218622 DIN-07230828 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 16.06.2020 
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